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Our Strategy

Our strategy is to grow the value of cur business
for the benefit of our members

To achieve this we aim to put the customer at the
centre of everything we do and live by our three
brand promises

Easy to do business with
Great value
A carnng approach

Throughout our 170 year history, this focus on the
customer has been key to the products and services
we have offered and 1s the guiding principle behind
the ongoing success of the group

Today with over 5,600 employees working in 17
offices across the UK, we are the UK's largest friendly
soclety and a leading financial mutual, with more than
five millton members and customers

17ofﬁces

®

Our Hertage Business

Whilst growing our successful general and hife
insurance businesses, we are also very mindful of
our heritage and our members who have contnbuted
to it We define our “Hentage" business as

+ With-profits policies onginally written by
Liverpool Victoria Fnendly Society, including
new with-profits sales
With-profits and other pohicies originatly written
by the Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses
(RNPFN) befare its transfer to Lv=1n 2001
Non-profit annuities purchased from the proceeds
of with-profits pension policies together with a
minor number of other policies which includes
some transferred from other companies

We are committed to offering our with-profits members
a far return on their investments, honouring any
guarantees we have made on our polictes and
providing all our rembers with great customer service

We also have a mutual bonus scheme, designed to
reward eligible members for their ownership of LV=

and the rnisks taken In supporting the establishment
and growth of the group's trading businesses

5, 600 g-mployees

2013
2008
2003
1998
1993
1988
1983
1878
1973
1968
1963
1958
1953
1948
1943
1938
1933
1928
1923
1918
1913
1098
1903
1898
1893
1888
1883
1878
1873
1868
1863
1858
1853
1848
1843
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Chairman Statement

Dennis Holt
Chairman

Our purpose remains to help people look after
what they love and to dehver on our vision to be
Britain’s best-loved 1nsurer

Mutal bonus for with-profits members

2012 I  £20.9m
2011 T (1111 £18 6m
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Enterpnse Value

+3%

With-profits

asset shares
outperformed
benchmark by 1 5%
producing a total
overall return for
the fund of 9 9%

The banking cnsis of 2008 caused an enormous
shock to economies threughout the world, and the
consequences are still with us Businesses and
consumers continue to be financially stressed as
a hesitant recovery 1s attempted It will clearly be
some years yet before stability 1s fully restored In
this context, LV= 15 well placed to help customers
with our focus on offering good value, relevant
products, backed up by award-winning customer
service Our purpose remains to help people look
after what they love and to deliver on our vision to
be Britain's best-loved insurer In so doing, we are
confident that we will achieve our overnding goal of
creating value far the benefit of our members

General insurance

The general insurance business has been
completely transformed over the last six years

to become a major player in retall markets, and
one that 1s known for its award-winning customer
service We are now number three in private motor
insurance (cars and motorbikes) with an 11%
market share and a significant ptayer in our other
key lines, particularly home insurance and small
business insurance

We have a good mux of products across personal
and commercial [ines and we are now well
established in both the direct and broker channels
We have 2 7 million customers in our direct
business and, having come from a standing start
In 2007, the broker business now has 1 4 million
customers, both considerable achievements in a
market that 1s highly competitive

This business is now self-supporting In terms of
cash and capital generation, and for the first time
returned £38 million of funds to the group following
a year of record profits mn 2012

Life

Our life business has similarly refocused over the
same period, concentrating on market segments
with attractive margins and good growth potential
As a result we have strengthened our market share
positrons whilst burlding profitability We are the
market leader in advised income protection and a
top three provider for pension drawdown, enhanced
annuities and equity release

Our with-profits policies continue to be among the
best-performing in the market The first full year
with Threadneedle Asset Management Ltd (TAM)
managing the assets has seen continued good
perfermance and as a result we have mantained
our record of exceeding retevant benchmarks in the
short, medium and ionger terms

Group

LV= now has a well established and strong

brand This awareness along with our distinctive
and award-winmng customer service proposition and
products means that we are well placed for future
profitable growth Fundamental to this I1s that we
put our people at the heart of our business We
have been externally recognised by Towers Watson
as a high performimg erganisation and we believe
that the culture we have created for our people
results in high performing teams, focused on
driving the business forward for members

Member value

As LV=1s a mutual and not a quoted company,

we use Enterprise Vaiue as a way of measuring our

market value 1n a way that s broadly equivalent to

a quoted company Our overall Enterpnse Value has
increased by 3% this year, after taking mutual bonus
into account, and follows a 9% increase in 2011

In line with our core ambrtion of creating value
for the benefit of cur members, | am pleased to
confirm that, for the second consecutive year,
the board has approved a mutual bonus for
with-profits members of £20 9 million

(2011 £18 6 million) reflecting the impressive
full year performance and the strength and
sustainabihty of the Society’s financial future
Group tota! balance sheet assets are also up
11% to £11 4 ilhon from £10 3 bilhon 1in 2011

Maintaining standards

The board continues to guide the development
and delivery of gur strategy, and to oversee all
material aspects of the management of nsk and
return We continue to apply the same standards
of best practice corporate governance that an
equivalent shareholder-owned business would
be expected to meet

Board changes in the year included welcoming
James Dean as a new non-executive director and
charr of the Audit Committee, and saying farewell,
with our thanks, to lan Reynolds who stood down
having served a term of four years

We have well established competitive positions in
attractive markets across general and hfe insurance
which provide the group with a diversity of earnings
Qur capital position remains strong enabling us to
retain a high equity backmg ratio for the benefit of
our with-profits members as well as paying a

mutual bonus

| would like to thank all our members and
customers for therr loyalty to V= and our
employees for therr commitment and hard work
We will strive 10 ensure that we continue to retain
your confidence
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Chief Executive
Statement
Mike Rogers
Chicf Fxeoutive
We are now established as one of the UK'’s top three I'm pleased to report that 2012

saw a strong strategic and financial

performance from all areas of the LV=

group This s the fifth year of increased
growth and underlying profitability As well as a

Group underlytng
_ 126 2 profit strong trading performance, we made significant

steps In embedding our vision to be Britain's

I ] === |£126m vestioved msurr

+19%

private motor 1nsurers with over 70% brand recognition

Group underlying operating profit increased by 19%

to £126 2 milhon contributing to an operating profit
increase of 31% to £83 8 million and a profit before
tax and mutual bonus of £103 2 milhon {2011 loss

_ 835 |pont of £16 9 million) LV='s financial posttion remains
profit strong and we have over £1 biliion of capital
N ] << |£84m resources 2 at 31 Decernbes 2012

+31% We participate 1n markets where we have a
competitive advantage and where there are
good prospects for continued manageable and
profitable growth Qur composite mode! provides

Statutery profit/(toss} diversity of earnings, a good balance between

_ 1032 | before tax & mutual bonus capital generating and consurming businesses, a

- (16 9) £1O 3m powerful shared brand and customer proposition

as well as important operational leverage across
business support functions These strengths
mean we feel well placed to continue to be

2012 @ successful in the future

2011 @
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83%

employee engagement

85%

of our employees think we
are an ethical orgamsation

88%

feel positive about our
brand and values

We are now established in top five positions

In the majonty of our chosen markets in both
life and general insurance and we have clear
strategic vistons for each business which are
coming to fruition

General insurance

I'm pleased to report that general insurance

had an extremely good financial year Stronger than
expected return from investments delivered

an undertying operating profit of £117 1 million
(2011 £76 4 milhion} Profitabiity was achieved
despite some £25 million of excepttonal weather
related costs and further strengthening of our
reserves During the year we saw a return to price
competitien 1n the general insurance market with
downward pressure on motor and home rates,

which we do not believe 1s sustainable into 2013,
given continuing personal injury costs and low
projected investment returns Our pre-tax return on
capital employed was also significantly ahead of our
expectations Qur focus on key product lines such
as car and home n the last five years means we are
now established and profitable in these markets and
we can increasingly focus on broadening our offering

We were particularly pleased to see the continued
strong growth of our SME business line with GWP up
40% to £74 6 million and a streng improvement m
our combined operating ratio for thus business Most
of the growth in our motor book came from our direct
business, which grew 1ts customers by 260,000
over the year We are now established as one of the
UK's top three private motor insurers, with over 70%
prompied brand recogmition, an excellent customer
service reputation and strong renewal rates

Duning the course of 2012 the general insurance
business received many industry accolades from
both consumers and the industry alike The most
prestigious of these was being voted General
Insurer of the Year at the British Insurance Awards

Looking forward to 2013, we do not anticipate

a repeat of the strong investment return seen

In 2012, however we antictpate a continued
underwrnting profit together with increased revenue
growth across home, motor and SME, leading to
returns on capital and growing cash generation,
allowing continued capital flow to the Society

Life business

Our protection and retirement businesses in life saw
excellent growth i sales of 15% and an underlying
operating profit of £26 3 miflion (2011 £24 5
million) Our strategy of focusing on market segments
with attractive margins and good growth potential
where we have relative scale and expertise, has
resulted in a continued strengtheming of our market
share positions We maintamned our top three position
in enhanced annurties, a market which 1S continuing to
show strong growth driven by a shift in demographics

In protection our position as a specialist, focused
on market leading positions In income protection
and critical liness, amongst others, has allowed

us to grow 1n a market which 1s generally stagnant
2012 was a very challenging regulatory year for the
ife industry and we successfully managed the initial
ntroduction of the Retail Distnbution Review and

gender pnicing, neither of which we anticipate will
have a significant impact on our business model
or prospects

Looking forward we plan to continue to develop

our direct to consumer proposition and hope to

see renewed growth in the protection market as
economic conditions ease We believe there s

the opportumity for continued progression in our
speciahst retirement busmess across both annuities
and pensions, where we are a leading player in the
drawdown market and pension consolidation

Group-wide

During the year we continued to invest in preparation
for Solvency 1, including the development of

our Internal model apphcation and enterpnise

nsk management framework The delay to the
implementation of Solvency l1, announced durng the
latter part of 2012, 15 frustrating but much of the
investment will continue to bear fruit for us as we
manage our capital and nsks ever more effectively

Within our legacy business hnes, the team continue
to work hard in relation to matured policies that
have not been claimed As aresult since 2007 we
have reunited members and their beneficianes with
over £14 milhon in unclaimed assets

The morale of our people 1s ¢crucial to the success
of our business since 1t has a direct iImpact on the
expenence that our customers receive To measure
how our empfoyees feel about working at Lv= we
conduct an annual staff survey cailled ‘Engage’
across the group The survey, conducted in October
2012, showed that 88% of those working at LV= felt
positive about the brand and its values, 85% said
that LV=1s an ethical organmisation and 83% said
they felt engaged as an employee

These results are despite the decision to close
our employee final salary pension scheme to
future accrual with effect from 1 July 2013, and
offer to move ali affected employees to a defined
contribution scheme from that date We remamn
committed to providing our employees with a
competitive retirement proposition

Qur brand goes from strength to strength and we are

attracting increasing recognition and awareness across

consumers and the introducer community, including

« Moneywise Most trusted car insurer — voted for
by consumers

« Moneyfacts Award for best car insurer and best
customer services — voted for by consumers

* Winner of best customer services In financial
services at the European Call Centre Awards -
voted for by the industry

* Fmancial Adviser Five star life and pensions
provider - voted for by the industry

« Moneyfacts Bestincome protection provider —
voted for by consumers

In a chaltenging year LV= has been able to deliver
excellent results Despite the uncertain ocutiook
for the UK economy, we are confident that our
successful business model and strong competitive
position in our chosen markets leaves us well
placed for 2013
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Finance Director Review
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Philip Moore

Finance Direclor

We focus on delvering strong returns for members,
while managing and protecting our capital position

Qverview

Throughout 2012 LV= operated against a backdrop

of volatile financial markets, continued wezkness in
the UK economy and uncertainty in Europe, with the
FTSE 100 falling as low as 5,270 in May and credit
spreads widening to 2 87% at the start of the year

Despite this we can once again report a goed
financial performance this year with the life and
general insurance businesses continuing to
perform well and the investment returns of our
with-profits members' assets outperforrming
market benchmarks

As a result of this success, LV= has delivered on
1ts financial aims of delivering strong returns to
members, while managing the capital position and
continuing to foster ongoing growth

Underlying operating profit tin 2012 of £126 2
million (2011 £105 8 million) reflects another year

of profitable growth from both the life and general
insurance businesses This 1s particularly notable
given the increased competition in the markets in
which we operate

The £120 mithon improvement in IFRS profit before
tax to £103 2 milhion {2011 ‘loss before tax £16 9
milhion} reflects the underlying operating profit
performance and positive short-term investment
fluctuations, particularly in hife, which accounted for
£89 millien of the improvement year on year

Results for 2012

The table opposite summarnses the underlying
operating profit sphit between our businesses
Underlying operating profit excludes the impact of
model and valuation changes, and a margin for
prudence in the life valuation assumptions compared
to the value of new business assumptions for
example In the credit default allowance )
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Underying aperating
profit

£126m

+19%

Operating profit

£84m

+31%

Profit before tax

£103m

Results for 2012 - unaudited

£m 2012 2011
Restated”
General Insurance 1z1 76 4
Life 263 245
Group {17 2) 49
Underlying operating profit 126 2 1058
Addittonal margin for credit default and other risks * {29 4) (18 9)
Model and valuation changes' * {13 0) (22 9)
Operating Profit 838 64 0
Accounting policy differences (IFRS)**** (11 6) (77)
Short-term mvestment fluctuations 657 (46 4)
Centrally managed costs (22 7) (13 8)
Amortisation of intangibles (12 0) (13 0)
Profit/{loss) before tax 103 2 {16 9)
Mutual bonus (20 9) (18 6)
Income tax expense (34 3) (42 2)
Pension scheme actuarial {loss)/gain net of tax (145 5) 697
Transfer from the unallocated divisible surplus {97 5) (80}

Restatements have been made to the prior year results to refiect the following changes
The hentage with-profit rading results are now reported within the group result rather than within the life business
Hentage underhing operating profit mainly compnses expense under or over runs

Life results have been sestated to reflect the change in the tax gross up raie applied to Wfe value add and additvonal margn for credit defautt risk
Previously these items were grossed up at 20% Going forward the tax gross up will be based on the weighted average tax rate applicable In
2012 1this was calculated at 5%

Lite and group underlying profit have been restated 10 reflect loss of earnings in the life business on funds which have been paid across 10 the
group as dividends in 2011 and 2012

Additional margin for credit default and other risks represents the difference for new business between management s best estimate of credit
default which 1s used to calcutate the value of new business reported within underlying eperating prefit and the market consistent basis used for
vatuing policies This Is pnncipally driven by the annuity business within life

Model and valuation changes represent the impact on the infarce business of changes in valuation assumptions and improvements In the actuarial
rmodels used to value existing policies

The: life resylt includes changes in the present valug of future profits expected to emerge from policies in-force during the year Where this differs

from the treatment under IFRS an adjustment ts made in the Accounting policy dufferences (IFRS) line

The general insurance business has conunued

to perform strongly delivering a record underlying
operating profit n 2012 of £117 4 milhion which s
£40 7 mullion better than 2011 This growth was
driven by good investment returns and profitable
expansion in chosen segments, particularly direct
maotor, partially offset by exceptional weather claims

The Iife business saw sales growth of 15% in 2012,
most notably in key product lines of enhanced
annuities, equity release, pensions and protection
This growth drove an increase in underlying
operating profit of 7% 10 £26 3 rmilion

Group underlying operating profit inciudes
unallocated group overheads and also the net
trading profit or loss of the hertage with-profits
husiness and the return on the group’s free capital
The loss in 2012 reflects recurnng group overheads
and also non-recurrning cost overruns in the with-
profits business as well as a lower return on the
free capital

Qur IFRS profit before tax of £103 2 million shows

growth of £120 1 million reflecting

» Growth 1n underlying operating profit offset by
Increased prudence in valuation assumptions
particularly credit nsk,

+ Strong short-term investment performance
reflecting market value gans, in particular
benefiting from narrower credit spreads in the
annuity business bond portfolio and improved
equity performance, and

« Centrally managed costs — the group incurred
norrrecurnng costs of £22 7 milhon mainly in
respect of regulatory projects and the decision
to reserve an additional £15 mullion for payment
protection insurance claims (PPI) relating to the
former banking business which closed in 2010
The net costs included a pension curtaliment
gain of £13 million

The pension scheme actuarnal loss of £145 5
millton 1n 2012 (2011 gain £69 7 million)
calculated under IAS19, 1s prnimarily due to a
reduction it the rate used to discount the scheme's
liabilities, and atso reflects the impact of this year's
tnenmal review As at 31 December 2012 the
scheme reported a deficit of £10 2 million

{2011 £106 9 millon surplus)
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Heritage with-profits fund performance

Assets Under Management
Heritage WP Fund @
Senchmark

£678.0m  £273.5m

14.2 13.3 9.4

Overseas Equity

UK Equity

Other Group Assets fund performance

£172.8m

Property

£257.1m  £605.8m £50.4m

UK Gilts

£84.0m £2,121.6m

JoueLLiopad pung

Alternatives

Assets Under Management
Weighted performance @

£321.7m £92.0m

14.2 16.9 3.0

12
L)

UK Equity

Overseas Equity

With-profits 2012

Asset Class Breakdown

UK Eguity
Overseas Equity
UK Gilts

Bonds

Property
Allernative
Cash

£167.0m

Property

£3.828.3m £1934.8m £453.1m

0.8

UK Gilts

Other Group
Assets 2012

Asset Class Breakdown

UK Equity
Overseas Equity
UK Gilis
Bonds
Property
Alternative

ash

£46.9m  £6,843.9m

2.0

Ajuswiopsd pury

Alternatives

Total overall returm on with-profits assets
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Investment performance

Threadneedie Asset Management — 2012 was
the first full calendar year with Threadneed|e
managing Lv="s investments and this partnership
proved very successful with six of the seven major
asset classes achieving or exceeding their market
standard benchmark

With-profits — The strongest performing fund

was the Liverpool Victona Friendly Society (LVFS)
with-profits fund with an absolute return of 9 9%
Qutperformance was mainly drven by stock
selection within the equity markets Threadneedle
delivered strong relative performance for our
with-profits members (some 1 5% points above
benchmark) ensuring that LV= remains near the top
of the industry performance tables

Other Group Assets - Outside of the LVFS with-
profits fund the majority of the assets are invested
In bonds and gilts which performed in line with the
market The absolute return on these assets was
7 5% which has proven very beneficial to both our
annuity book and general insurance business

Capital resources

Capital management

Capital 1s managed on both economic and
regulatory bases to ensure we have sufficient funds
to meet our business objectives, promises we

have made to our members and policyholders and
reguiatory requirements Caprtal 1s monitored and
managed both at a group and entity level

We operate through three main companies

» {VFS is the parent company of the group and the
company where we wnte the majonty of our ife
insurance business LVFS 13 aiso the sponsor of
our staff pension funds

« Liverpool Victona Insurance Company (LVIC)
and Highway Insurance Company (HICQ) —
these are the companies which write our
general insurance business

We seek to deploy capital where we believe the risk
1s properly rewarded Asset and liability matching

Is extensively used and nisks are hedged where

we believe we would otherwise receve insufficient
return for the nsk taken or to reduce volatility

We report our caprtal position on a regulatory basis
using current European legisiation which defines the
capital requirements an organisation must meet
The two different bases reported below are

+ Peak 1 {a traditional valuation basis), and

s Peak 2 (more realistic for with-profits business)

£m 2012 2011
Adrnissible Assets 7,865 7,186
Add back caprtal requirements of regulated related undertakings 254 242
Mathematical reserves (after distnbution of surplus) (6,686) (6,123)
Regulatory current liabilities {353) (381)
Available capltal resources 1,080 924
Capital requirements of regulated related undertakings {254) (242)
Capital resources of RNPFN fund (179} {164)
Peak 1 Capital requirement {240} (218)
Peak 1 excess regulatory capital (excluding RNPFN) 407 300
With-Profits Insurance Capital Compenent (221) (65)
Peak 2 excess capital resources (excluding RNPFN) 186 235
During 2012 the main movements in regulatory capital were

£m Peak 1 Peak 2
Excess capital at 31 December 2011 300 235
Opening adjustments (1) (60)
Expected changes 12 4
Economic varances 147 59
Basis changes (non-economig) 166 46
Claims expenence vanances (54) {1}
Expense variances {34) {48)
New business (129) (17
Staff pension scheme (32) (32)
Mutual bonus - (21)
Other 32 40
Increase i Risk Capital Margin - {19)
Excess capital at 31 December 2012 407 186
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Risk appetite

We have embedded our approach to nsk management through our
nsk appetite This defines a corndor of capital we wish to maintain
by nsk and entity and we regularly monitor and report our position
against our nsk appetite If capital moves outside of our defined
nsk appetite we have a pre-determined and documented seres of
management actions which we will take to restore the position

Capital management actions 2012

During 2012 we have taken a number of actions to improve

our capital posiion and to reduce the sensitivity of our capital
position to market movements Examples of actions taken
Refining the Investment strategy 1n our annuity book,
Hedging fixed interest exposure for our deferred annuity book
within the with-profits business,

Hedging of the majonity of our longewity nsk in our staff pension
scheme, and

Hedging the majonty of economic exposure to interest rates
and inflation nsk for the staff pension scheme

Stress and scenarlo testing

In addition to calculating capital on the required regulatory regime,
we undertake a series of stress and scenario tests to ensure

the robustness of our solvency position in regard to different
levels of new bustness growth, movements in investment markets
and changes in other assumptions such as the longevity of our
enhanced annuity business

In looking at movements In Investment markets we consider a
number of single stresses {e g equities falling by 40%) and also a
number of multivanate stresses (because markets are correlated we
expect extreme movements, in say equity markets, to affect other
markets, such as the level of credit spreads) These are considered
by looking at our distribution of expected market events and we test
a number of points on the distnbution 1 e one in 10, one In 100, cne
in 200 In addtion we run a number of ‘real world' scenanos such as

Heritage with-profits payouts and industry comparison

a repeat of the credit crunch of 2008 and 2003, where we know the
exact economic conditions which affected the investment markets,
and this enables us to test the robustness of our busimess model
should these conditions be repeated

We use the outcomes of the stress and scenario testing to
develop the management actions we would undertake if our
capital or other performance measures move outside of our
defined nsk appetite The impact of some of these stresses Is
gven in note 3 of these accounts As a result of this work and
the potential iImpact that a return to votatile markets would have
on our capital base we have developed a number of potenual
management actions, for example, increasing capital resources
through remsurance structures or other forms of external capital
raising which would increase our financial flexibility

Liguidity management
Following continued growth in profits the general insurance
business returned funds of £38 million to the group

The group manages liquidity pnmanly through its asset and
lability management process which ensures that, on a fund by
fund basis and also at legal entity level, assets are held to match
habilities both by amount and by maturity

The group generates cash from profitable trading in the general
insurance business and from realised margins on in-force
long-term insurance policies Surplus cash 1s used to fund new
business growth and central costs

When reserves are strengthened or released at a fund level,
assets are erther transferred from or paid to the LVFS Estate

Fund In addition, surplus capital 1s held at subsidiary level to
ensure that individual entities are adequately capitalised and have
sufficient iquidity to meet their obligations as they fall due

Recent maturity and surrender values for LVFS with-profit policies show that L=
continues to perform in the top quartile when compared against industry payouts

Endowment

@ Upper Quartile
@®Lv=

TEAB 521=

£36,052
=£24.2835
ES—— 317603 £21.756
SE7:407= pEETy
10 yrs 15 yrs 20 yrs 25yrs
Notes

1 The payouts are based cn the following policres
Endowment - Pelicyholder aged 30 at entry monthly prermium
of £50 matunng 1 February 2012
Band — An investment of £10 000 as at 1 Novernber 2012
Pension (regutar) - Policyholder retinng at age 65 maonthly
premium of £200 matunng 1 January 2013

Conclusion

Overall 2012 was a strong year for the V= group, despite the
challenging economic chmate While the signs of economic recovery
remain fragie, we have a sufficient capital base, manage nsk

Pension {(regular) Bond

£106,788

£85,744

SE515410E
£50.944

——— Zi17519:
£11.758
5yrs 10 yrs 15 yrs 20yrs 5 yrs 10 yrs

2 The industry payouts are taken from the mast recent past performance surveys
and relate to matunties dunng 2012 and 2013 The sources are
Endowment — Money Management survey published May 2012
Bond — Money Management survey published December 2012
Pension - Money Management survey published March 2013

actively, maintan a robust business model and so feel confident
that we are well placed to continue growing profitably in our
respective markets
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Review of 2012
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General Insurance Business

53% ncrease 1n profits to £117 mullion

THE EXTISH
) ‘INSURANCE
AWARDS
2012
WINNER

Lhe Aflaition mark of achievoment

Review of 2012

In 2012 the general insurance business delivered
continued growth 1n both market share and
profitability We now insure three mullion vehicles,
representing a motor market share of approximately
11%, as well as a further 1 1 million policies across
other business lines Underlying operating profits
chimbed to a record level of £417 million, more
than £40 mulion up on 2011 Investment returns
contnbuted £112 mullion {2011 £46 million) to
operating profits Our direct and broker businesses
both contributed strongly to operating profits at
£64 milhon and £53 million respectively

G

E S

- bl —

a9 pai S b

& 8 & &
Gross written QOperating
premiums (£m} profit (£m}
£1,485m £117m
+2% +53%

These profits were delivered despite a very
challenging year for the insurance industry as
awhole The year began with severe storms in
January, followed by three separate flood events
spread throughout the year, which generated a tota!
claims cost of £25 millon Our results were also
impacted by a further increase in personal injury
claims frequency The increase came primanly
from lowvalue whiplash claims, indicating that
ctaims management companies and law firms
were accelerating ¢laims activity in anticipation of
changes In the law (the Legal Aid, Sentencing and
Punishment of Offenders Act — LASPO), which are
due to take effect in Apr 2013 Despite these
adverse influences we are pleased to report that
we were still able to achieve a sub-100% combined
operating ratio of 99 7%
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Motor in force policies

3.0m

Total in force policies

4.1m

\

77.0% 22.7% 99.7% 17.7%
Loss ratio Expense ratio Combined ralig Retumn on capital
employed
2012 @
2011 @
2012 2011
Gross written premiums £1,485m £1,456m
Underwriting profit £5m £30m
Investment return £112m £46m
Operating profit £417m £76m
Loss ratio 770% 74 5%
Expense ratio 22 7% 23 2%
Combined ratio 99 7% 97 7%
Pre tax return on capitat employed 17 1% 12 9%
Motor In force pelicies 30m 2 9m
Total in force poticies 41m 3 9m

Gross wntten premiums grew by just 2% for the year
as a whole but this masked divergent expenence
between products and channels The direct business
continued to grow very strongly, increasing the
number of in-force car insurance peolicies by 17%

to 1 78 milien This resulted in gross premiums
written for direct car insurance rising by 15%

to £662 mithon Within home mnsurance, where
competition 1s intense, the direct business grew

by 6% to 529,000 inforce policies and total gross
premiums also rose by 9% to £146 milhion

The broker business wrote £655 million of
premiums in total, which was 9% down on 2011

In commercial ines, however, written premiums
grew by 16% to £160 millon, predominantly due

to growth in the SME sector This growth reflects
our increasingly strong relationships with regional
brokers and a successful online proposition for
broker-sourced commercial package policies In
commercial motor, we found that market premium
rates remained inadequate and we were content
not to seek growth in market share and as a result
commercial motor business grew by just 1% to £85
milion Similarty, increased pnce competition in
broker motor personal hnes saw sales fall 16% to
£481 mulhion

Qur customers

2012 was also a year in which we made further
progress in making 1t easy for our customers to

do business with us One example of this was our
implementation of a new claims system which
allowed us to redesign and significantly enhance our
claims processes This has led to a more efficient
and personahsed clasms service and resulted in an
increase in customer satisfaction scores and a 12%
reduction in the claims lifecycle

Qur brand awareness also continues to gain
momentum and we now have over 70% awareness
amongst consumers

As In previous years, the quality and consistency
of our customer service was re-affirmed by a
number of important customer service awards
Our customers voted us ‘Best Car Insurance
Provider’ in the Consumer Moneyfacts awards and
‘Most Trusted Provider’ 1n the Moneywise awards
The Consumer Asscctation's Which? magazine
voted us a recommended provider for car and
home insurance and we have topped their tables
for travel iInsurance and breakdown cover

In ali, we won more than 20 awards in 2012,
covering all aspects of our business from
underwnting and marketing, through to claims
handling and customer service, as well as for
counter fraud iniiatives and analytics The two
most prestigious awards resulted mn V= being
named General Insurer of the Year at the British
Insurance Awards and the Best Customer Services
provider in financial services at the European Call
Centre Awards
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Regulatory uncertainty

As we enter 2013, the UK motor insurance
market faces considerable uncertainty as a
result of planned or potential legal and regulatory
developments The most important of these 1$
the enactment, through LASPQ, of the so-called
Jackson reforms to civil htigation costs and
funding One of the objectives of these reforms
15 to cut the legal costs associated with personal
inury claims and to ban ‘referral fees’ paid to
organisations who introduce claimants to law
firms We believe these reforms are essential

in order to address the dramatic increase In
spurious whiplash claims which has occurred over
recent years and which has driven up the cost of
Insurance for honest motorists

On the regulatory front, the motor insurance
industry 1s currently co-operating with the
Competition Commission in a review which ams

to identify possible ant-competitive practices in
the provision of accident repairs and car hire

We welcome the review as we beheve 1t could be
effective in eliminating unnecessary frictional costs
in our industry which have been a contributory
factor to premium inflation over recent years

Finally, we are concerned that the Government
and the insurance industry have not yet been
able to agree a policy for insunng people who
live in flood nsk areas The current ‘Statement of
Pnnciples' whereby insurers continue to offer cover
for flood nsk properties atready on their books,
ends in June 2013 OQur commitment to continue
to offer nsurance to all our existing customers
remains unchanged but we are working closely
with the ABI to find a solution to the problem
faced by the wider market

Looking ahead

Despite the combination of increased competitive
pressures and an uncertain legal and regulatory
environment we are well positioned to continue
generating strong returns on capital from the
general insurance business We have built a

large and loyal customer hase on the back of our
straightforward promises of great value and qualhty
service This, combined with a team of exceptionally
capable and committed employees, means we

are well placed to make the most of opportunities
which will emerge as market conditions improve
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Gross written premiums Annual premium equivalent

£64m 5%

Direct business operating profit Increase in sales

Market
Leader

For advised income protection

Motor market share

—
enhanced annuity and equity releaga{o
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Life Business

ffichard Rowney
oot Life and Pensions

We are the market leader 1n advised income
protection and a top three provider for pension
drawdown, enhanced annuities and equity release

Review of 2012
2012 was another strong year for the life business
as we increased year-on-year sales to record levels
across a number of key business lines Total sales
for 2012 were £157 million, a 15% increase on the
previous 12 months

Our strategy of remaining focused on market
segments with attractive margins and good

growth potential where we have relative scale and
expertise, has resulted in a continued strengthening
of our market share positions

As a result of the strong performance we delivered a
7% increase in underlying operating profit to £26 3
million £11 2 milhon of this was generated in our
retirement soluttons business and £15 1 millon
was within our protection business

This was achieved against a challenging regulatory
hackdrop for the life and penstons mdustry as a
whole, driven by the implementation of a number
of regulatory and legislative changes including the
retail distnbution review (RDR)

We have maimntained strong cost disciplines, with
costs as a percentage of our habiliies improving
from 4 2% to 3 6%

Within our results we have strengthened our
assumptions for the credit default nsk which 1s
integrat to the yield on bond investments that back
our enhanced annuity business

This strengthening of assumptions has been

offset by benefits from more favourable economic
conditions, which remain challenging, but saw credit
spreads narrow dunng the year
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Underlying operating profit

£26.3m

Frofitability

+5% +15%

+7% +13% +19%

=556=

53.0
46.7
=26-3=
24.57

2012 Em @
2011 £m @

Underlying Annuities Pensions Equity Protection

opetating APE APE Release APE

profit APE!

Notes

APE = Annual Premium Equnvalent This IS a measure compising new regular premium sales plus 10% of single premiums
1 Equity release loans are reported mternally on an APE basis Actual loans advanced during 2012 were £89 million {2011 £85 millien)

2 Restated see page 13 for details

Combining great service with

‘best In class’ products

We remain committed to achieving excellent service
standards and 2012 was another strong year for
both customer and IFA satisfaction Qur reputation
as a customerfocused insurer was recognised
across a number of industry service awards
including the FT Adwviser five star service provider
awards and LifeSearch awards for best service and
best overall product provider

In addition our products alse won a number of
awards dunng 2012 wncluding the Gold Standard
award for Individual Pensions and for Protection,
Best Equity Release Provider in six separate
industry awards and the Moneyfacts award for
Income Protection Provider of the year

LifeSEARCH
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Widening our distributton reach

Our strategy to develop mulu-channel distnbution
capability has underpinned our growth and
momentum dunng the year We were successful
in launching a number of new partnerships and
network arrangements and using our brand to
grow our direct to consumer channel

Key highlights included welcoming the RAC as a key
partner in the distnibution of our protection products
and the renewal of our successful relationship with
ASDA which sells our 50 Plus protection product

We extended our already successful strategic
partnership with Sesame (with circa 25% market
share of the adviser network) to include our
retirement solutions products

The adviser and corporate partner distribution
channels remain important for us, however the
introduction of RDR 1s likely to shift consumer
behaviour in the future and as a result we have
invested further in our direct to consumer channel
Our strong consumer brand should help us to
access customers who may no longer be served
by the IFA market

We became RDR compliant welk in advance of

the regulatory deadline, ensuring that our products
and charging structures were compliant with the
new regulations

We helped advisers maxtmise the opportumty
that the new gender directive regulation
represented Qur unique guarantee, which allowed
customers to guarantee gender specific rates

on protection business rght up to the deadline

of 21 December, set us apart in the market

We were the only provider to offer this guarantee,
which demonstrated our commitment to help
advisers do the best for customers

Looking ahead

Despite a challenging economic and regulatory
backdrop our life business has helped drive
significant growth and value for our members over
the past five years

Looking to the future, lack of clanty in the market
remains, particularly with economic uncertainty
continuing to affect consumer sentiment and
regulatory changes continuing to impact However
we remain confident our well established brand
and commitment to cutstanding service and quality
products places us in an excellent posttion

Our business strategy to focus on specialist
protection and retirement propositions across
both {FA and direct to consumer channels means
that we are well placed to respond to the changing
marketplace We are less exposed 1o reduced
demands from austenty measures as we don't
focus on the wealth accumulation or regular
savings market

We are also well positioned to take advantage

of the favourable demographics over the coming
years The ‘baby-hoomer’ customer segment 1S now
at retirement age and faces the challenge of how
they'll maximise the value of their accumutated
wealth in retirement These customers are becoming
more sophisticated with therr purchases ang we are
therefore expecting Lo see growth In the retirement
area of our business with a particular interest in
equity release, enhanced annuities and specialist
pensions such as SIPPs

The demand for protection products 1s expected

to remain relatively static as economic uncertainty
continues and people continue t0 make every penny
count However, we predict that there will be a shift
In customer demand towards simple protection
products that meet modern day consumer needs
Alongside this there will be continued demand for
well designed and well serviced more complex
products supported by a thriving protection adviser
sector We are well placed to support both areas in
2013 and expect to be able to gain market share as
a result of our focus and protection expertise

Our strategy remains unaltered We want to be
the UK's leading retirement and protection
specialist, focusing on profitable, fast growth
markets, where we have relative scale

Our focus areas in 2013 will be to

+« Maintain growth through the launch of
new propositions within the protection and
retirement markets,

+ |mprove our margins through sophisticated
risk management expertise,

« Remain disciplined on costs, whilst investing
in future capability to mamntain our
competitive advantage,

+ Invest in the training and development of our
people, equipping them to provide outstanding
service In our chosen niche markets, and

* Continue to manage exposure to market risk in
our investments
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Risk Report

Steve Haynes
Chief Risk Officer

The role of nsk management

The effective management of rnisk supports the delivery of our
strategy, protects the value that we create for members, and
helps us to 1dentify opportunities where we can make better
use of our capital

Our nsk management approach 1s based on the group's enterprise

risk management framework and has the following core objectives

+ To set out the nsks that the group s able and wishes to accept

« To maintain a risk management and governance framework that in
particular assesses and manages the nsk-return trade-off

« To measure and monitor the group’s nsk exposures against the
board's approved risk appetite statements and nsk limits

LV="s approach to risk

The board has established, through a set of statements, the nsk principles and practices the
business 15 expected to adhere to These statements are reviewed at least annually and reflect both
the group s strategic plans and the nsk strategy The statements approved by the board in 2012 are
set out below

In conducting its business V= adopts a group-wide perspective on nsk, and ams to avoid undue
concentration, operate within its risk appetite, ensure fair treatment of customers and be competiive
In our chosen markets,

Lv= will take on nsks that it has the capability to understand and manage and which support the
group’s aim of optimising value for its members, delivening expected policyholder benefits and
ensuring it manages the with-profits business tn iine with the Principles and Practices of Financiat
Management,

LV= has an appetite for insurance nsk in the ife and non-hfe sectors As L= has long term habilities,
1t also retains 1hquidity premium through its investment strategy,

Lv= takes on market risk in s non-life business, in s with-profits funds in hine with policyholder
reasonable expectations, and i its pension funds If nsk free rates are low, Lv= may seek market nsk
with its mutual capital to earn a higher return, and

As an insurer LV=1s exposed to other nsks (such as persistency, expense and operaticnal risk) and it
manages these to optimise the nsk-adjusted return

LV="s nsk management and govemance framework

V= has a strong nsk culture which i1s based on the nsk management and governance framework

The key goals of the framework are

+ To ensure a consistent measurement of nsk and capital that enables the group to optimise the
nsk-return trade-off,

« To mintmuse ambiguity by defiming the roles, responsibilities and reporting procedures of the nsk
and capital decision makers in the group, and

+ To ensure that the group identifies, assesses, and manages the matenal nsks to which it 1s
exposed and operates a robust control framework 1o maintain these risks within nsk appetite

Risk appetite

The amount of risk that the group 1s willing and able to accept 1s measured and monitored by the board
establishing a nisk appetite statement and an associated nsk tolerance and limnt for each major nsk
dimension The board approved the following risk appetite statements in 2012




Risk Report 27

Dimension Risk appetite statement

Capital and Liquidity Lv= will hold sufficient solvency capital and hquidity to ensure that the group
can continue to trade following an adverse movement in markets

Earnings The volatihity of EV="s earnings 1s consistent with the reasonable expectations

of with-profits policyholders and other stakeholders

Brand The group will always seek to uphold its brand image and its vision to be
‘Bntain’s best-loved insurer’

Regulatory LV= has no appetite for regulatory weaknesses or fallings that lead
to censure actions

Operational & Capabilty The group seeks to miminuse operational nisk events across the business

Risk governance

The roles and responsibilities for nsk management are based on the ‘three lines of defence’ model

The businesses and support functions are responsible for risk taking, implementing the risk management
framework and embedding the nsk culture (first line of defence) The rsk function 1s accountable for
overseelng and challenging the identification, measurement, management, monitonng and reporting of key
risks and for developing the nsk management framework (second line of defence) The internal audit team
provides an independent assessment of the nsk framework and the internal control processes (third line
of defence)

The businesses and support functions are responsible for ensuring that the controls are effective and will
report to the board on any control weaknesses

The Board Risk Commitiee helps the board to oversee nsk and nsk management across Lv= The
businesses and support functions have established Asset and Liability Committees (ALCOs) and Risk
Committees to assist them in the execution of their first ine of defence responsibilities, and the chief nsk
officer chairs the Group Executive Risk Committee to support the execution of the second line of defence
respensibiities These relationships are summansed in the diagram befow

To support a consistent and ngorous approach to risk management across LV=, the risk function has
established a set of formal risk policies and rnisk standards These policies and standards detail the
management and control requirements for the group and are reviewed regularly to ensure they algn
with any changes in the external environment or in the business strategy

As part of this approach the businesses and support functions are required to regularly 1dentify and review
their nsk exposures and rnsk controls Where any nsks are outside of appetite, action plans are put 1n place
which are reviewed and monitored by the Group Executive Risk Committee

The nsk function then aggregates and reports the rnisks along with an assessment against the risk appetite
and nisk imits to the Beard Risk Committee This reporting also assesses emerging risks and the results of
the thematic reviews performed in respect of the group's products and processes
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Roles and responsibilities Relationships
Board and Board Risk Committee ’;c-
+ Set strategic objectives Lv= Board ] =
+ Monitor performance 2
* Set nsk appetite ‘%‘
« Set and uphold values Booard Risk E
+« Approve nsk policies Committee =
Second line Chief Risk Officer A
+ Set business standards Yy _g
+ Monitor performance Group Executive g
« Oversee risk & capital management Risk Committee ®
+ Provide challenge é}
+ Recommend risk management activity T 3
8
First line Chief Executive/Business & Support Functions ®
« Oversee risk management Business Risk Committees
« Monitor rnsk and capital profile Group and lg—]
« Monitor business performance Business Asset and Liability g
s Operate in line with agreed policy Commtttees @ Delegation =
s Report to the second line and board O Review §
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Principal risks and uncertainties

A common risk categorisation basis is used across LV= to ensure & consistent record of the names,
descriptions and structure of the group's risks. The principal risks to which LV= is exposed are shown belo

Risk type

Definition

Management and mitigation examples

Financial markets risk

The risk that arises from adverse fluctuations or
increased velatility in asset values, asset income or
interest rates. This includes credit spread widening.

Active asset management and hedging, including the use
of derivatives

Pension fund de-risking

Asset and liability duration matching

Credit counterparty risk

The risk of financial loss as a resuit of the default

or failure of third parties to meet their payment
obligations, or variations in market values as a result
of changes in expectations related to these risks.

investment restrictions on aggregate and fund
credit quatity

Investment restrictions on sovereign and corporate
exposure tc some Eurpozone countries

Credit counterparty fimits and monitoring

Life insurance risk

The risk that arises from the inherent uncertainties
as to the occurrence, amount and timing of life
insurance liabilities (for example adverse movements
in mortality, longevity, and persistency).

Clearly controlled and defined pricing criteria
Product mix management to optimise capital strain
versus return

Use of reinsurance to mitigate mortality/ morbidity/
longevity risks

General insurance risk

The risk that experience is adverse 1o current best-
estimate assumptions underlying the underwriting
result (for example adverse movements in claims,
or catastrophe experience).

Use of reinsurance to reduce the impact of catastrophe
and large ciaims risks

Use of data. models and analysis tc control pricing and
risk selection

Review and analysis of claims and reserve development

Liguidity risk

The risk that V= and/or its subsidiaries, though
solvent, do not have sufficient financial resources
available to meet their obligations when they fall due.

Asset liability matching
Cash flow reporting and forecasting
Active asset mix management

Operationat risk

The risk of financial loss resuiting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems,
or from external events, including changes in the
legal and regulatory environment.

Attestation process that reports to the board on the
effectiveness of controls
Risk reporting and root cause analysis processes

Strategic risk

Risk of not achieving the group’s strategic plan

as a result of internal (e.g. ineffective, inefficient

or inadequate senior management processes)

or external factors (¢.g. ecenomic. legal. political
changes) that serve to undermine either the straiegy
itself or its execution.

Annual planning process (5 year business pians
produced)

Regular tracking and reporting of key strategic risks to
the board

Annual strategy review with the board and externai input
and challenge

Risk environment and profile
he financial markets proved 10 be more stable in 2012 than in 2011 with gilt yields remaining tow, credit
spreads contracting, and the FTSE 100 Index rising by circa 6%. The notable exception to these improving
rends was the second quarter which witnessed a return to Euro-driven uncertainty which was ultimately
dampened by a strong policy response from central banks and Eurczone governments.

Nonetheless, the UK remains in a prolonged economic downturn, and the Euro crisis, the US fiscal cliff ang
itigh levels of government borrowing provide ongoing threats to UK growth, consumer confidence and the

olatility and performance of investment markets.

he risk profile of LY= didn't change significantly during 2012 and the biggest risks we face continue to
arise from adverse movements in financial markets and adverse trends in general insurance underwriting

and claims.

During the year LV= completed a number of actions to improve the management of its risks; including:
Hedges thai reduced the risk exposures to rising inflation and interesi rates and also reduced
the exposure 10 increases in the volatility of interest rates and eguities in the general insurance

investment portfolios;

Reinsurance to reduce exposure to longevity in the staff pension scheme: and

Ascet liability management in the annui

portfolio 1o further red

& intere ate risk in that portfolig
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Our approach to Corporate Governance

We choose to observe the requirements of
the annotated version of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, even though we are not
formally bound by 1t!

1 The annciated version of the
UK Corporate Governance
Code and the best practice
guidance was published by
the Association of Financial
Mutcals (the Annotated Code )

Compliance with the Annotated Code for
the year ended 31 December 2012

The board considers that we fully comply with

the applicable pnncipies and provisions of the
Annotated Code with the exception of a decision
taken by the board that only the chairman will offer
himself for annual re-election by members at the
Annual General Meeting

Developments In corporate governance

In September 2012 the Financial Reporting Council
published an updated version of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, an annotated version adapted
to the circumstances of mutual organisations was
then produced by the Association of Financial
Mutuals in November 2012 In early 2013 we
completed a review of the amended Annotated Code
and following this review we have taken appropriate
action to ensure we are compliant including setting
out our policy on boardroom diversity

Foliowing the '‘comply or explain’ pnnciple of the
Annotated Code, the board decided that from the
2012 AGM the chairman would stand for annual
re-election Dennis Holt, our current chairman is
retining immediately following the 2013 AGM and
the chairman designate, Mark Austen, is standing
for re-election as a non-executive director in this
respect we will not be fully compliant with the
Annotated Code, which recommends the annual
re-election of all directors, but the board has, in any
event, determined that the annual election of the
chairman provides an adequate means for members
to register concern with the performance of the
board directors who continue to stand for reelection
at least every three years

Appraising the board's performance

Every year the performance of beard members 1s
reviewed both individually and as a team The senior
independent director reviews the performance

of the chairman, and the chairman reviews the
performance of all other directors

The UK Corporate Governance Code recommends
that FTSE 350 companies, or equivalents,

(which would include LV=) commut to an externally
facilitated review of board effectiveness at least
every three years A review of the board and its
committees therefore commenced in late 2012
The outcome of this review will be considered by
the board at its April 2013 meeting

The board

Qur board currently comprises Six non-executive

and four executive directors All the non-executive
directors {apart from the chairman, for whom the

test of independence is not applicable) are regarded
as independent We therefore satisfy the Annotated
Code’s recommendation that, excluding the chairman,
at least half the board should consist of independent
non-executive directors
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Balance of the board

The board contains an appropnate balance of expertise iIn management,
investment, administrative and financial services to meet the requirements
of our members and customers

L NN LG R T L
Executive directors Non-executive directors
Mike Rogers Dennis Hoit
Philip Moore Mark Austen
Richard Rowney Caroline Burton
John O’Roarke James Dean
John Edwards
Cath Keers
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Board members

B Dennis Rolt (64) Chairman
Dennis’s expenence 1n banking and insurance spans
36 years as an executive and a further seven as a non-
executive director, Involving a wide-range of economic
and competitive environments He spent 31 years at Lioyds TSB
including as retall banking director on the mam board This was
followed by five years at AXA as UK chief executive and a member
of the global executive commuitee In his six years as LV="8
chairman he has led the board as it repositioned the business
and delivered on its growth and profit ambitions Dennis 15 also
chairman of Beazley plc

Member of the Risk Committee and the Remuneration and
Nomination Committees

| Mike Rogers (48) Chief Executive

After graduating from Cambnidge University in 1986
Mike spent 20 years warking for Barclays Bank
where he carned out a vanety of roles in the UK and
overseas Among his sentor appointments at Barclays, Mike was
managing director of Small Business, Premier Banking and UK
Retail Banking achieving a post-graduate Diploma in Leadership
from Exeter University in 1995 In May 2006 he joined V=

as chief executive leading the business into profitability and
transforming it into the vibrant and successful mutual 1t 1s today

Member of the [nvestment Committee and
Nominations Committee

Philip Moore (53) Finance Director

+ Maving held executive positions at several leading

§ financial institutions Philip’s career in finance has
spanned almost 30 years He has acquired extensive
knowledge In areas such as risk management, actuanal functions
and asset management and was chief executive at friends
Provident until 2007 when he joined the Pensions Corporation
This was followed by his appointment as finance director at LV=
in 2010 As well as being part of the board and executive team
at Lv=, Philip 15 also a non-executive of Towergate Partnership Ltd

Member of the Investment Committee

Richard Rowney (42} Managing Director

of Life and Pensions

Richard has a first class honours degree and spent
14 years at Barclays Bank holding a number of senior
positions across corporate and retail banking including overseeing
integration of the Woolwich and Barclays' retail banks He joined
LV=1n 2007 as chief operating officer where he transformed the
operational support areas to ensure they could support the fast
growing trading businesses going forward Richard was appointed
managing director of ife and pensions 1n 2010 and 15 also vice-
chairman of Bournemouth and Poole College, the eighth largest
education college in the UK

Member of the Investment Committee

John O'Roarke {(55) Managing Director
of General Insurance
4 John qualified as a chartered accountant and has

spent 25 years In the insurance industry He worked
for Churchill Insurance for 13 years where he was finance director
and then managing director, leading the company to become
one of the UK’s best known insurers John was appointed chief
operating officer of RBS Insurance n 2003 but left RBS in 2005
to set up ABC Insurance, acqguired by LV=in 2006 He became
managing director of LV= general insurance the same year,
leading the team that has quadrupled the size of the general
insurance business and produced strong profit contnbutions

Mark Austen (63} Senior Independent
Non-Executlve Director

Mark qualfied as a chartered management
accountant in 1972 and spent the majority of his
career at PricewaterhouseCoopers managing their global financial
services consulting business His broad range of skills across
several disciplines includes advising organisations on their
strategies, acquisttions, operations, HR policies and technology
As well as being nominated as LV="s next chairman, Mark 1S
also a non-executive director of Standard Bank plc and

Mott McDonald Group Ltd

Chairman of the Risk Commitiee and a member of the Audit,
Investment and Remuneration and Nomination Committees

John Edwards {57) Non-Executive Director

John'’s career in the Insurance and investment sector
spans over 35 years His past roles include chief
executive of Clencal Medical Investment Group, chuef
executive of the HBOS Insurance and Investment Division and
chief executive of International Financial Services at Lloyds
Banking Group He has also served as a non-executive director
of St James's Place and Esure As well as his position on the V=
board he 1s also a non-executive director of Nottingham Building
Society where he also chairs their Risk Committee

Chairman of the Ihvestment Committee and member of the
Risk Committee

Caroline Burton (63) Non-Executive Director

Caroline has a strong life msurance background and 1s
a highly expenenced figure in the asset management
industry having spent 26 years with Guardian Royal
Exchange plc, where she was in charge of investments from 1990
unttl 1999 She acts as a pensions and business adviser for a
number of pension funds and charities and her expertise puts
her Iin good stead to monitor the management of LV="s assets
She is also a non-executive director of Rathbone Brothers pic, TR
Property Investment Trust plc and Blackrock Small Companies
Investment Trust plc

Member of the Audit Committee and the Investment Committee

Cath Keers {47) Non-Executive Director

Cath has over 20 years marketing and sales
experience having worked at BskyB, Next and Avon

In 2008 she won a hifetime achievement award for

her outstanding impact during her career at 02, where she was
customer director in charge of refocusing the organisation’s
customer strategy She brings a wealth of retall industry expertise
to the L= board and holds other non-executive positions at
Telefontca 02 Europe, Roya! Mail and the Home Retail Group (for
Homebase and Argos)

Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees and
a member of the With-Profits Committee

James Dean (55) Non-Executive Director

James s a chartered accountant and s recognised

as an expert in Insurance accounting having spent

much of his 30 years' expenence in audit and advisory
roles As a senior partner at Ernst & Young he dealt with
clients such as AXA, Prudential, Legal & General, RSA and Aviva,
serving on boards outside the firm including as chairman of the
ICAEW Insurance Committee He 15 also a former global IFRS
leader for the insurance sector

Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the
Risk Commutiee
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Board committees

The following board committees met dunng 2012
+ the Group Audit Committee,

the Group Risk Committee,

the Investment Commititee,

the Remuneration and Nominations Committee,
the With-Profits Committee

. s 0

The terms of reference for the board committees are reviewed each year and published on our website

They can be viewed at LV com/board-committees

Board and committee membership and attendance in 2012

Liverpool Victona  Audit Risk Investment Remuneration  With-Profits

Fnendly Society ~ Committee Committee  Committee & Nominations  Committee

Board Committee
Meetings in the year 1t 5 4 4 5 5
Dennis Holt 10/10 n/a 4/4 n/a 5/5 n/a
Mark Austen 9/10 5/5 a/4 4/4 1/1° n/a
lan Reynolds g/9 4/4 3/3 n/a 3/4 4/4
John Edwards 10/10 n/a a4/4 3/4 n/a n/a
Cath Keers 7/10 n/a n/a n/a 5/5 4/5
Caroline Burton 10/10 5/5 n/a 4/4 n/a n/a
Mike Rogers 10/10 n/a n/a 4/4 1/1° n/a
Philip Moore 11/11 n/a n/a 4/4 n/a n/a
John O'Roarke 10/10 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Richard Rowney 11/11 n/a n/a 4/4 n/a n/a
James Dean 5/6 2/2 1/2 n/a n/a n/a

nfa Not applicable
*Meeung o discuss Nomination Committee business only

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee 1s made up of

+« James Dean (chairman from October 2012)

» Mark Austen

« Caroline Burton

lan Reynolds charred the committee until he stood
down i October 2012

The Audit Committee meets at least five times a year

with other attendees including, but not imited to

s the chief executive,

« the group financial director,

« the internal audit director,

« the chief nsk officer,

« the group financial controller,

« semor management in finance, and

« the external auditor (currently
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC)

All the members of the committee are independent
and bring significant and relevant skills and
expenence to the function of the committee

All members undertake induction training and
continuing professiona! development fames Dean,
In particular, as the chairman, has the requisite
‘recent and relevant financial experience’, as
recommended by the Annotated Code

The key objectives of the Audit Committee are to

* Work alongside the Risk Committee, to keep the
performance of LV="s internal control systems
under review,

¢ Discharge its responsibiities in respect of
external financial reporting,

» Ensure the independence of the group's external
auditor,

« Monitor the appropriateness and adequacy of
the plans and resourcing of the internal audit
function, and

» Engage independent counsel and other advisers
as 1t deermns necessary to carry out its duties

During 2012 the Audit Committee discharged its
responsibihities by

Internal controls

« Considenng a number of reports on the group's
internal controls and nsk management functions
and dentified key 1ssues, imtiating actions for
these to be resolved,

+ Conducted a full annual review of the
effectiveness of all matenal controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls
and nsk management systems The review's
aim was to assess the effectiveness of the
control environment and identify any areas for
improvement, and

+ Reviewed the arrangements through which
employees can raise concerns about possible
irregulanties relating to financial reporting or
other matters including reviewing all whistle
blowing reports
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Financial reporting

+ Reviewed the half year and year end processes
and financial statements of the group, which
encompassed the general insurance and life
business results, including recommending the
Annual Report to the board,

« Analysed and scrutimzed the key accounting
policies, judgments and actuanal assumptions
with management, the external auditors and
the actuarial function holder The committee
specifically reviewed the assumptions for credit
nsk default, the nsk free rate, cost inflation
and attocation,

+ Considered management'’s regular reviews of the
gomng concern status of the group, and

» Momitored the financial results communicated to
members, including the Report and Accounts

Internal audit

+ Reviewed the effectiveness and actwities of
the internal audit function and ensured that it
has appropnate standing within the group This
review Included the results of an internal survey,
with the commuttee concluding that it was a
high performing function, white also confirming
support for focus on prionty 1ssues required by
the regulator and 1n keeping pace with a fast
growing business,
Met privately with the internal audit director,
Ensured that significant findings and
recommendations made by the internal auditor
and management’'s proposed response were
recerved, discussed and appropnately acted
upon, and

« Reviewed the proposed internal audit plan for
the coming year to ensure that it addressed key
areas of nisk and that there was appropriate
co-ordination with the external auditor

External audit

+ Rewviewed the performance of the external
auditor, including the chairman meeting privately
with the auditor to give feedback The committee
concluded that the external audrtor was effective
and recommended the reappointment of the
external auditor for a further one year term,
agreeing the scope of the audit fee for the
forthcoming penod,

s Agreed guidelines and monitored the use of
the external auditor for any non-audit related
work to ensure its continued independence
was not prejudiced,

¢ Reviewed and approved the external auditor's
proposed audit scope and approach for the
current year as set out in 1ts 2012 audit
plan, in the hght of the group’s present
circumstances and changes in regulatory
and other requirements,

« Discussed with the external auditor any audit
problems encountered in the normal course of
audrt work, including any restnctions on audit
scope or access to information as part of ensunng
that significant findings and recommendations
made by the external auditor and management’s
proposed response were receved, discussed and
appropnately acted upon,

« Met privately with the extemal auditor PwC, and

+ Considered and monitored the independence
of the external auditor including any potential
cenflicts of interest

The committee reviewed its terms of reference

and effectiveness in 2012, as 1t does at least
annually, and a change to take ownership of the
financial internal model, previously held by the Risk
Committee, was recommended to the board For
2013 a group wide project 1S underway to review
and document the committee governance structure,
including the terms of reference and delegated
authonties in addition, the Audit Committee 1s
also actively seeking to appoint an additional
independent non-executive director to join the
committee in 2013 to further enhance

its effectiveness

The Risk Commitee

Risk Committee 1s made up of

s Mark Austen (chairman)

« Dennis Holt

« James Dean

« John Edwards

lan Reynolds also served on the Risk Committee
dunng 2012

The Risk Committee meets at least four times a year
with other attendees ncluding, but not imited to
« the chief executive,
« the group finance director,
+ the chief nsk officer,
« the internal audit director, and
the head of comphance

It 1s the chairman's practice to meet separately

with the chief nsk officer ahead of most meetings

The principal role of the committea 1s to consider

the risks faced by LV= and adwise the board More
specifically its main activities during 2012 included

« Agreeing and monitonng risk strategy, risk
appetite and individual imnts for specific types of
nsk (e g financial markets nsk and credit nsk),

+ Reviewing and assessing the nsk oversight
provided by management in connection with
current and emerging risk exposures,

« Assessing the iImpact of management's strategic
plans con the nsk profile of the group,

«  Momtonng the effectiveness of management in
identifying and recording the principal risks,

« Ganing assurance that an approprate culture
in relation to the management of nsk continued
to be maintained, with particular focus on
performance measurement,

» Scrutinising the Individual Capital Assessment
(ICA) prepared by management and
recommending its acceptance to the board, and

« Recewing reports from the chief nsk officer
and the head of compliance on a wide range of
1ssues, including regulatory change
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During 2013, the committee wilt focus on the
continued implementation of an own nsk and
solvency assessment process, rnsk based
performance measures and reporting, a refreshed
oversight and apportionment process and enhanced
monitoring of LV="s conduct risk framework

A further change ts that the responsibility to
scrutinise the ICA will be assumed by the Audit
Commmttee This will support the Board Risk
Commuttee focus on monitoning the nisk profile and
associated capital requirements of the group 1n light
of its current and projected free assets

Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Sitting as the Remuneration Committee,

the committee met five times durning 2012

and 15 expected to meet four times in 2013

The committee 15 made up of three independent
non-executive directors

¢ Cath Keers {chairman)

+ Dennis Holt

+ Mark Austen

Input 1s provided by the HR director and the chief

nsk officer, who attend by invitation On behalf of

the board, the committee determines

« Qur broad policy on executive remuneration, and

+ The specific packages for each of the executive
directors and certain senior managers

More details of the group’s policy on executive and

senior management remuneration, and the activities

of the committee during the year are set out in the

Directors’ Report on Remuneration

In its capacity as the Nomination Committee,
which also includes the group chief executive as a
member, the committee
« Evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge
and expenence on, and required by, the
board for board appointments and certain
senior management roles, and
» Prepares a description of the role and
capabibties required for any particular
appointment

Recruitment consultants will usually be instructed
to help compile a shortlist of candidates for
interview for board vacancies The committee will
then recommend appointments to the board for
approval Durnng 2012 the Nomination Committee
oversaw the recruitment of James Dean to the
board The committee intends to recruit a further
non-executive director during 2013 following the
retirement of Dennis Holt on 23 May 2013

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee compnises three

non-executive directors

« John Edwards (chairman)

« Caroline Burton

« Mark Austen, and
four executive directors compnsing

« the chief executive,

« the group finance director,

+ the managing director of the life and pensions
business, and

» the finance director of the general insurance
business

The committee meets four times a year and the
group's chief investment officer, cheef nsk officer
and representatives from the group'’s asset
manager, TAM usually attend by invitation

It 15 responsible for

« Monitoring and reviewing the management of
our investments by TAM, and

« Confirmmng to the board each year that the
continued appointment of TAM remains
appropriate, having regard to the operation of its
mandates and relative performance and charges
compared to alternative providers

With-Profits Committee

The With-Profits Committee meets at least five

times a year, and comprises

+ Graham Burville (independent chairman)

+ (Cath Keers

+ John Perks, the managing director of our
retirement solutions business

Graham Burville has extensive and relevant industry

expenence and was formerly CEQ of Police Mutual

lan Reynolds also served on the With-Profits
Committee dunng 2012

The role of the Committee 1s to

+ Brning independent judgement to the assessment
of compliance with the statement of Pninciples
and Practice of Frinancial Management, and

+ Monitor how any competing or conflicting
interests between different groups of
policyholder are resolved

The committee can engage external professional
advisors to assist in delivenng its objectives
effectively and draws on the expertise of an
independent with-profits actuary, Nick Dumbreck,
who was appointed in February 2012

Group Executive Commitiee

The chief executive chairs this weekly committee
meeting to monrtor our business performance It
also meets monthly in order to help him meet the
responsibiliies which the board has delegated to him
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Matters reserved for the board

There 1s a clear list of matters which only the board

can decide on, other matters are delegated to the group chief
executive Matters reserved to the Society’s board inciude

A} Strategy and planning

¢ determining and overseeing delivery of the group's strategy

+ approval and monitoring of long-term strategic plans/objectives
* approval and monitoring of the group annual business plan

B) Risk

s allocating capital based on nsk and return critena

+ determining the risk appetite of the business and overseeing
1ts usage

C) Financial matters Approval of

« capital and revenue expenditure exceeding £5 million within
agreed budget and £2 5 milhon outside agreed budget and any
other expenditure outside the normal course of business
the Annual Bonus Declaration

+ the Indmdual Capital Assessment and its submission
to the FSA

« the Valuation Report and the Annual Report and Accounts

+ Member Bonus

D) Mergers, acquisitions and disposals
* approval of mergers, acquisitions and dispesals and
overseeing effective integration

E) Governance and compliance Approval of

+ the Notice of AGM (including reappomtment of auditors},
any proposed amendments to the Memorandum & Rules
and related documentation in connection with the AGM

« any chantable or political donations

+ the membership of board committees

» the terms of reference of board committees and subsidiary
company boards

+ the appointment of company nominees to the Staff Pension
Scheme trustee company board

. pol_acy changes in pension entittement and SPS funding

F} Appointment and removal of officers

appointment and removal of the Society's chairman, deputy
charman {If appointed), sentor independent director, company
secretary, group chief executive, chief investment officer, chief
nsk officer, with-profits actuary and actuanal function holder
and directors of the Society and #ts subsidianes

In 2012 the board met eight times for formal board meetings,
twice on an ad hoc basis to discuss specific 1ssues and once for
an ad hoc strategy session In 2013 the board expects to meet at
least eight times and to have two strategy sessions

There was one new appointment to the board in 2012 James Dean
joined the board as a non- executive director in July

Under the Society's Rules all directors are required to stand
for re-election at least once every three years, and therefore
Mark Austen and Mike Rogers will be offening themselves for
re-election at the 2013 Annual General Meeting along with

our new appeintee James Dean We are actively recrutting an
additional non-executive director who 1t 1s anticipated will join
the board during 2013 and will offer themselves for re-election
at the 2014 AGM

Member relations

The board believes that communicating with members (s of pnime
importance An important mechanism for this 1s the LV= Member
Panel, currently comprised of 30 members This group meets with
our chairman, his executive team and other senior managers to
learn about our recent performance, strategy, and future plans
and to provide input and challenge The board will continue to
monitor the effectiveness of this interaction and make further
changes as appropnate

We aiso operate the V= Community which allows us to send
regular emails to over 11,000 users with the latest LV= news,
offers and the opportumty 10 take part in research Participants
give us valuable input and comments on new developments,
such as product design or customer service processes

The Member Care Line 1s a free and exclusive benefit that
handled over 1,100 phone calls in 2012 where members

were seeking medical or legal advice We also run a Member
Support Fund which provides one-off financial grants to members
who find themselves, through no fault of their own, In severe
financial difficulies Requests for help are assessed by a small
independent committee of members Grants that were awarded
during the year amounted to almost £33,000 Our members are
also entitled to discounts on a range of products
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Directors’ Report

Rachel Small
Company Secretary

The directors of Liverpool Victoria Friendly Society
Limited present their annual report together with the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012

Business activities and future prospects During 2012, the key objectives and prionties were
LV= 15 an incorporated friendly society that, together ¢ Achieving the profit and enterprise value target
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with vartous subsidianes, carries out insurance and results for each business unn,
financial services business In the United Kingdom, » Completing the transformation of the general
through LVFS and its subsidianes These activities insurance business into a mature cash
cover with-profits assurance, Iife protection (both generative business,
term and whole of life), annuities, equity release, + Sharnng the financial returns from our trading
motor, home, pet and travel insurance The directors businesses with members via a mutual
consider that all the activities undertaken by the bonus scheme,
group dunng the year were within its rules and any « Completing the implementation of a major
relevant regulatory permissions new system for the management of general
Insurance claims, -]
A review of the business for the year ending « Further enhancing our enterprise nsk 5
31 December 2012, recent events and hkely management framework, operating at all imes g
Our members future developments 1s included below to required regulatory standards, i
« Completing our programme to achieve 3
+6 OOO The board sets objectives and prionties supported by comphiance with the requirements of Solvency g
’ key performance indicators (KPIs) and targets, which Il'and the new regime established by the Retall i
2012 1,133,000 1t monitors on a regular basis throughout the year Distribution Review, and 5
+ Achieving progress towards our goal to be
2011 1,127,000 Britain's best-loved nsurer
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Board directors and interests

The current members of the board and details of its
various committees are shown on pages 32 to 35
together with their dates of appointment

John O'Roarke 1s a minority shareholder in LV
Insurance Management Limited with a 1 11%
shareholding and is a party to the contract for
LVFS to acquire the remaining interest in that
company Further details are given in note 40
to the Financial Statements

We continued to mamntain liability insurance cover
for our directors and officers dunng the year

With-profits bonus declaration

We have declared an annual bonus for the year
ending 31 December 2012 at 1% of the sum
assured for Industnal Branch business and at

2 0% of the sum assured for conventienal Qrdinary
Branch hfe business Internm bonus rates will also
be at these levels Terminal bonus rates in 2012
maintain our highly competitive position

Basis of accounting

These accounts are presented using International
Financial Reporting Standards {JFRS), as adopted by
the European Union, drawn up on a going concern
basis The directors are satisfied that the group has
adequate resources {o continue in business for the
foreseeable future and that accordingly the going
concern basis is appropnate Further details about
the directors’ responsibilities for the accounts are
described befow

Fixed assets
Changes in our fixed assets are shown in note 27
of these accounts

Margin of solvency

Throughout the year and at 31 December 2012
we held the required capital resources for each
bustness class as prescnbed by the Financal
Services Authonty

Independent auditor

A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor
will be proposed at the 2013 AGM

Managing risk and return

We look to create value for members by mamntaining
an appropnate balance between the returns that we
seek and the level and type of nsk we take onin
order to achieve these returns

To better manage nsk ievels on a day to day basis
a system of capital budgets 1s in place for each
business Each business 1s expected to manage
its position in ine with 1ts capital budget and nsk
appetite position

A full overview of our sk management can be
found on page 26 Note 3 of these accounts also
provides further detail about our nsk management
and control

Internal control

The board has overall responsibility for the

group’s internal control systems and for monitonng
effectiveness Implementation and maintenance
of the internal contrel systems are the responsibility
of the executive directors and senior management
The performance of the internal control systems

1S reviewed by the relevant board commitiees,
princtpally the Audt Committee, which take

reports from the internal audit, comphance

and risk functions

The group's Internal control systems are designed
to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure
to meet business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
matenal misstatement or loss In assessing what
constitutes reasonable assurance, the board

has regard to matenality and to the relationstup
between the cost of, and benefit from, internal
control systems

In 2012, the board undertook a full annual review
of the effectiveness of the matenal controls, as
recommended by the UK Corporate Governance
Code The review incorporated an evaluation of
the group's framework and an assessment of

any significant internal control 1ssues that were
raised during the year in relation to financial,
operational and comphance nsk controls Whenever
any significant control weaknesses are 1dentified
actions are taken, or agreed plans are put in place
and tracked by the board to implementation The
system was in place throughout the year and as at
the date this Report was approved

Charitable donations

A full iew of our chantable donations and corporate
socral responsibility actmvities can be found on page
43 In 2012 no political donations were made

People employed by the group and

s subsidianes

The average number of people we employ and
our total employee costs are shown in note 38
of the accounts

Membership
As at 31 December 2012, we had 1,133,000
(2011 1,127,000} members

We make all reasonable and cost effective attempts
to trace and contact members if we believe therr
address detalls are incorrect When all reminder

or tracing techniques have been exhausted we
maintamn a record of the relevant member and,

if they have an unpaid claim, the policy remains
open for payment until we can re-establish contact
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Statement of disclosure of information

to the auditor

As at the date of this report each director

confirms that

1) so far as (s)he 15 aware, there 1s no information
relevant to the audit of the Society’s financial
statements for the year ending 31 December
2012 of which the auditor 1s unaware,

2} (s}he has taken all steps that (s)he ought to have
taken in his/her duty as a director to make him/
herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Society's auditor 1s
aware of that information

Responsibilities of the board of directors
for the accounts

The Friendly Societies Act 1992 (1992 Act) requires
a fnendly society’'s Committee of Management to
prepare accounts for each accounting period As
we are incorporated under the 1992 Act our board
of directors has assumed the responsibiities and
duties of the Committee of Management in relation
to these accounts

These accounts must comply with the relevant
provistons of the 1992 Act, and present fairly the
financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the society and the group at the end of
the accounting penod In carrying out this duty, the
directors have chosen to use IFRS as adopted by
the European Union

Legislation in the UK that governs the preparation
and publication of accounts may differ from
legislation in other junisdictions A fair presentation
of our accounts In accordance with IFRS requires
our directors to

+ Select suitable accounting policies and ensure
they are apphied consistently,

* Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis,
unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume that the
Society and the group will continue in business,

« Make judgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonable and prudent,

* Present information, including accounting
policies, in a manner that provides relevant,
rehable, comparable and understandahle
infermation,

« Provide additional disclosures when compliance
with the specific requirements in IFRS Is
insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, cther events
and conditions on the Society and the group's
financial position and financial performance, and

« State that the Society and the group have
complied with applicable IFRSs, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explamned in
the accounts

The diectors are also responstble for maintaining

+ Proper accounting records which are intended
to disclose with reasonahle accuracy, at any
time, the financiai position of the Soctety
and the group,

» Appropriate internal control systems to safeguard
our assets and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregulanties, and

+« The integnty of the corporate and financial
information included on our website 1V com

The directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integnty of the group’s website Legislation in
the UK governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions
are shown on page 32, confirm that to the hest of
their knowledge and belief

» The group financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU, gve a true and fair view of the assets,
labilities, financial position and profit of the
group,

« The Business Review on pages 12 to 16 includes
a fair review of the development and performance
of the business and the position of the group,
and

* A description of the group’s principal nsks and
detalls of the group’s nisk governance structure
are provided on pages 26 to 28

By order of the Board of Directors

Qo,uw Sy

Rachel S Small, Compary Secretary
27 March 2013
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Business ethics

As a leading financial mutual we take our
responsibilities as an ethical company senously
QOur approach to corporate social responsibility
1S embedded 1n our culture and positive attitude
towards everyone we deal with

Supplier ethics

We recognise it 1s important to build successful and
collaborative relationships with our suppliers and
we expect them to support our ethical approach
to business We base our working practices with
them on our core values, and in return ask them
to support our ethics Consequently we ask all
our suppliers to act in accordance with our ethical
supplier policy This requires them, among other
things, to comply with all laws and regulations,
not to exploit child labour and not to discnminate
agamnst therr workforce In order to ensure this, a
number of steps are taken These include (but are
not hmited to) rigorous due diligence of potenttal
suppliers during the tender process and regular
business assurance audits with suppliers to
monitor compliance

Governance and responsible investment
We are committed to being a responsible
investor and active owner This commitment 1s
shared by TAM who are responsible for managing
our Investments They follow governance and
responsible investment pnnciptes and procedures
based on the United Nations backed Principles
for Responsibie Investment (PRI), the UK
Stewardship Code as well as best practice
corporate governance guidelines

It 1s our Jjoint belief that well-governed companies
are likely to outperform in the long run and
therefore TAM consider a holistic understanding
of risks and opportunities associated with
certain companies, sectors or themes, as part of
generating sustainable returns for their clients
Theirr Governance and Responsible Investment (GRI)
tearmn has worked alongside the firm’s investment
professionals since 1998, facilitating integration
of matenal environmental, social and governance
(ESG) analysis into the investment process The
GRI research and engagement primanly focuses
on eguities and 1s being expanded to cover ESG
research to fixed income, where ESG nsks and
cpportuniies can impact credit scores

Complaints policy

We aim to provide an excellent standard of service
to our members and customers, but recognise
that there may be occasions where service falls
below expectations Our policy is to deal with any
complaints promptly, fairly and honestly

Processes are also in place to ensure we swiftly
take any necessary preventative action We call this
root cause analysis It means we closely monitor all
complamts enabling us to quickly identify if there 1s
a problem with our processes so we can put it nght
going forward

Where regulation or guidance govern complamnt
procedures, we have taken steps to ensure we
remain comphant If we are unable to resolve
the matter satisfactonly, the complainant will
he adwvised to refer the matter to the Financial
Ombudsman Service

Financial ¢crime

V= takes a highly proactive approach to fighting
financial cnme and in 2012 we achteved savings
of £39 million as a result of our robust attitude
We also handled a number of fraud cases that
have set market precedent in the high court and
in private and public prosecutions

Our goal 1s to create and deliver market-leading
financial crime management This will ultimately
enable us to offer lower premiums to customers as
a result of the successful cancellation of fraudulent
policies and the tackling of fraudulent claims

HR matters

The success of LV= continues to be driven by
committed people nght across the business We
believe that happy people make happy customers
and therefore we have created a culture of
empowerment and support for our people

V= continues to grow and dunng 2012 the HR
team handled 30,000 job applications with a
thousand new employees joining us dunng the year

As we grow, It 15 important to ensure that we
maintain a sense of shared purpose and values

s0, every year, we conduct an independent survey
to find out how engaged our employees feel This
allows all of our people to give us detalled feedback
about hfe at LV= across a broad range of topics

In 2012 we were recognised as a UK High
Performing Orgarisation (HPO) by Towers Watson
Towers Watson reviews businesses across the
globe and publishes a hst of those that it believes
have high-performance cultures, focused on
improving the return on talent investment and
delivering measurable business results

We provide employees with information on 1ssues
relevant to their employment and our performance
through meetings, regular magazines and an
employee intranet We also drive an upbeat




Corporate Social Responsibility 41

people culture through an effective internal
communications programme which celebrates our
values, image and competitiveness

The management team actively engages with an
Employee Consultative Forum on issues important
to employees, including their working environment,
facilities, terms of employment and safety

Equal opportunities

We are committed to equal oppertumties and the
fair treatment of all our employees In line with
our corporate values we undertake to treat all our
employees with dignity, respect, and consideration
We recognise our commitments under the law
and are resolute to providing equal opportumities
by ensuring that our practices and procedures
follow legal requirements and good practice,

as recommended by the Commission for Racial
Equality, the Equal Opportunities Commission,
and the Disability Rights Commussion

Qur policy I1s 10 treat all employees and applicants
fairly and equrtably regardless of gender, racial or
cultural grounds, disability, age, marital status,
rehgious beliefs, sexual onentation, trade umon
activity or any other category where discrimination
cannot be reasonably justified We will ensure that
no requirement or condition will be iImposed without
justification that could disadvantage individuals on
any of these grounds

Diversity

Diversity and inclusion are fundamental to our
culture and core values, and In creating an
Innovative, collaborative and high-energy work
environment By embracing an inclusive culture
that supports diverse talent, our people enable
L= to be successful

Qur workforce gives customers access to a nch
range of talent, representing different styles,
perspectives and expenences This range of
diversity, iIncluding gender balance, at all levels in
the orgamsation 1s a cntical strength that we are
committed to fostenng through a clear diversity and
Inclusion programme

LV= recognises the need to address gender
imbalance at semor levels and therefore s working
to identify and assist senior women through an
approprtate mentoring and diversity programme

Our new chairman for 2013, Mark Austen, has been
invited to join the 30% club (a group of chairmen
voluntarly committed to bninging more women

onto UK corporate boards) and refiects the board's
commitment to encouraging diversity within the
workplace The board also sets perodic targets for

female representation at semor levels and
reviews progress

Talent management

We're committed to training and developing our
people so they fulfil their potential Everyone
has access to training programmes and fcllows
a personal development plan to ensure they are
equipped with the right skills and behawviours for
their job

All our people have access to an e-learning platform
which helps our people develop their skills through
training that 1s accessible from both work and
home It offers an extensive programme that can
be tailored to the individual's personal development
needs — covering iInduction and core knowledge to
operational and leadership skills

We offer a range of training academies, open primarily
to internal candidates, with the aim of providing a
structured career path and the opportunity to gain
external qualifications whilst in their role We also
encourage our people to seek career progression
within the group Dunng 2012 over 750 people
moved Iinto a different position internally

Our pay and reward structure 1s designed to support
the retention of our talented people and more
information can be found in the Remuneration
Report on pages 44 to 49

Our environment

Looking after the environment 1s part of bemng
a responsible business As such we have an
environmental strategy and poticy to provide

a structured approach across all areas of our
business to manage, monitor and mimmise our
environmental Impact We're committed to the
continucus improvermnent of our impact on the
environment and wherever practical we seek to
reduce our footprnt

Some of the ways we do this are

* Acuvely promoting and investing in efficiency
measures In our offices,

+ Ensuring all offices are ‘binless’ with recycling
faciliies in break areas,

= Effectively reducing the use of water by using
water savers,

+  Minimising waste and promoting recycling
wherever possible,

» Placing energy efficiency as a significant factor in
the purchase, lease or refurbishment of any LV=
office, and

« Monitoning our environmental performance, code
of conduct and ethical standards
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Our Corporate
Social Responsibility
Programme
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Giving something back
to our local commumties
and supporting our

people’s charitable
actiities 1s hugely
important to us

28,000

youngsters helped
by LV= S0S Kit Aid

250

chantes, good causes and
projects supported in 2012

91%
employees who think we

do good things in the
community

This score was achieved in
an tndependent employee
survey conducted in
October 2012

We take our responsibilities to our
members, customers, employees

and the wider community senously
and we're passionate about making a
positive impact — particularly for those
most in need Last year as a business
and through our employee efforts we
contributed £1 04 mllion, around 1%
of our profits towards this aim

Supporting our local communities

We believe our employees know where our support
1s needed most — 50 we put them n the driving seat
to look at where we can best offer help

We established a network of 13 Community
Committees representing our larger offices Each
committee 1s made up of a small group of V=
employees who meet on a monthly basis to assess
requests for help from their local communities and
to decide which good causes could benefit from
our support

In 2012 the commitiees distnbuted £265,000
Therr actvities ranged from donating a minibus to
Huddersfield's Forget Me Not children’s hospice, to
funding a pantomime for 2,400 needy Bournemouth
familtes They supported a total of 250 local
chanties, good causes and projects dunng the year

Last year we Invested £55,000 1n the Lv=
schools programme This programme focuses
on five schools near our biggest offices, teaching
pupils about business, finance and how to
prepare themselves for employment Last year
58 volunteers from across V= helped deliver
workshops and mock assessment centres o
around 780 students

Qur umique approach has not gone unnoticed
Dunng 2012 three of our committees were officially
recognised with our Huddersfield, Hitchin and
Bristol offices winming awards for their outstanding
contribution to the community

As well as the work our committees do, we also
have a number of long term local sponsorships in
place These include LV= KidZone, V= Streetwise,
The Mary Rose Museum in Portsmouth and the Lv=
Brentwood half marathon and fun run

Sponsorships

Working with nationai partners means we can
broaden our reach and benefit more people with our
canng approach, and we invested £222,000 in our
pursuit of this

A large number of disadvantaged children can't take
part Iin sport because they don't have the necessary
kit or equipment LV= S50S Kit Aid IS an iInnovative

scheme which collects and recycles unwanted
ericket and rugby kit and distributes it to kids who
need it most

Not only does V= S0OS Kit Aid complement our
commercial sponsorships in cricket and rughby, but
last year it gave 28,000 young people a chance
to play these types of sports that they otherwise
wouldn’t have had

Our support of the Queen Elizabeth 1l Fields
Challenge 15 helping to safeguard access to outdoor
recreatlonal spaces across the UK and by working
with them we've managed to save 13 playing fields
near our main offices for future generations

Supporting our people to do good

We believe that by providing our employees with
the tools and support to do good things creates a
carng culture at the work place We offer a vanety
of support to recognise therr contributions and help
them make a difference

Qur chanty and time matching schemes give

our people the tools to go out and help others

We offer our people matched funding on money
they personally raise, up to £500 and up to two and
half days each year to velunteer in the community

We encourage our people to get behind national
fundraising events, such as BBC Chifdren in Need
and Comic Relef, to which we make corporate
donations n appreciation of ther efforts

We also prowvide payroll gving, a mechamsm
whereby our employees can donate money from
their monthly salary to a chanty close to their heart
We also run a scheme where the pennies from their
net pay are collected and donated to a chanty near
their office

Through these activities our employees raised
£296,000 for good causes, which we supported
with matched giving and corporate donations of
£115,000

Supporting our members

We award grants to members in financial hardship
from the Member Support Fund In 2012 these
grants helped 43 members and amounted to
almost £33,000 We also operate a Member Care
Line which offers members medical and legal
advice and handles enquiries about the Member
Support Fund This helpline was provided at a cost
of £42,000

For the first time 1in 2012 we gave our members

the opportunity to select a chanty to benefit from
our AGM donation £15,000 was donated to Scope
which was chosen at random after being nominated
by one of our members
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Directors’
Report on
Remuneration

Cath Keers
Chairman of the
mination Committee

Recent years have seen a marked change in
remuneration practices across the financial services
sector External regulation has sought to strengthen
the Iink between remuneration and the long-term
financial health and stabihity of firms in our industry
Whilst detailed regulation on executive pay in the
insurance sector has yet to emerge, the committee
has sought 1o ensure that the way in which we
reward the Society's leadership 1s consistent with
members interests and the fong-term health of

the Society

To that end, the Remuneration Committee carned
out a review during 2012 of our remuneration
framework to ensure that it remains consistent
with both members’ interests and our aspiration
to be a “destination employer™ This included a
review of the structure of our variable pay schemes
In the context of evolving best practice among
FTSE 250 financial sector companies and others
in the mutual sector As a result, we have made
changes to the Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP} and
introduced a deferral mechanism into the annual
bonus for our most senior employees 1o ensure that
a sufficient portion of their pay 1s linked to longer-
term performance Details of these changes are
set out 1in this report We also set prionties around
reviewing the levels of remuneration from the

maost junior to the most senior employees, and we
continue to monitor this

Activities in 2012
In 2012 the committee met four times The matters
addressed included

+ Reviewing, and recommending to the board, the
LTIP for the period 2012-14,

* Recommendtng the salary, bonus and LTIP
awards for the group chief executive, the
executive directors and certain key executives,

+ Reviewing all incentive schemes in operation
across LV=, with particular reference to sales
incentives and ensuring the nght behaviour
towards customers at all times, including the
payments which may be earned under the
201012 LTIP,

» Continuing to ensure that risk 1s properly
assessed as part of the award of bonuses and
that adjustments are made to reflect any breach
of agreed nsk appetites,

» Determining the impact of and associated
actions required from relevant remuneration
regulation,

+ Reviewing LV="s overall remuneration model
to ensure that it continues to meet afl of the
group’s employment objectives while taking
account of changing external trends,

+ Assessing the impact of the upcoming changes
to the governance and reporting of executive pay
in listed companies, and determining how the
Society will reflect these changes as a matter
of good practice in its own governance and
reporting, and

* Rewiewing the effectiveness of the committee
and the continuing approprateness of its terms
of reference
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The Remuneration Committee

The responsibihities of the remuneration
committee include determining the broad policy for
remunerating the executive directors and agreeing
the remuneration of each executive director and
other senior managers The committee reviews
remuneration policy and strategy at least oence

a year Allincentive and bonus schemes are
established and monitored by the committee

Members of the committee are provided with
regular training and topical briefing sessions on
developments and trends in executive remuneration,
particularly as this relates to the financial sector

Committee membership

During 2012 the commitiee members were,

« Cath Keers {who chaired the committeg)

+ Dennis Holt

» lan Reynolds {who served until 26 July 2012)

= Mark Austen (who joined the committee from
the same date)

Attendance at committee meetings
and advisors

The group chief executive I1s invited to meetings
except when his own remuneratton I1s being
discussed Other semor employees, such as the
group chief nsk officer, the human resources
director and the group head of reward, regularly
provide advice {o the committee and normally
attend meetings by invitation

New Bridge Street (which 1s a part of Aon plic) is the
committee’s idependent external adwsor Duning
the course of the year, New Bridge Street provided
advice to the committee on remuneration levels and
structures, and attended meetings at the mvitation
of the committee Dunng the course of the year, Aon
provided other services to the Society, however, the
committee considers that adequate structures are
In place to ensure the independence of the advice
recewved from New Bridge Street

Seeking the views of members

The commuittee 1s keen to hear members’
perspective on the Soclety's remuneration

policy and the remuneration decisions which the
committee takes on members’ behalf To this

end, the chairman of the commttee conducted

a presentation and feedback session to the
members’ panel immediately before the Society’s
2012 AGM, at which a detailled explanation of
remuneration policy and its implementation was
given and there was an opportunity for members to
ask questions We intend to hold a similar session
in the future

In additton, the Directors' Remuneration Report
IS subject to an advisory vote of members at the
AGM In 2012, the report was approved with 90%
of votes cast being in favour From 2014, two
separate votes will be taken one on the Society’s
remuneration policy for directors, and a second
on the implementation of the policy during the
prior year This 15 in ling with upcoming changes in
legislation on executive pay governance that wll
apply to listed companies and which the Society,
whiist not formally required to do so, proposes 1o
adopt as a matter of good practice

Remuneration policy

Our approach to remuneration policy 1s designed
to support recruitment, motivation and retention,
and hence align to our members’ best interests
Remuneration 1s considered in the context of

the financial services sector and our indmvidual
businesses Our objective continues to be to
provide total remuneration packages at the
relevant mid-market level for good performance
(with a significant propertien of total remuneration
dependent upon performance) and top guartile
remuneration for exceptional performance Our
remuneration policy 15 strongly influenced by

good nisk management practice to ensure that
management 1S not incentmsed to act in a manner
that 1s prejudicial to the longterm interests of
members This policy for executive directors is
described in more detall below

While we currently remain outside the scope of the
FSAs remuneration code, we keep it under regular
review and aspire to follow its spint

In determining the remuneration of the Society’s
directors, the committee takes into account the
pay arrangements across the Society as a whole
The committee seeks to ensure that the underlying
principles which form the basis for decisions on
directors pay are consistent with those on which
reward decisions for all our colleagues are taken

Remuneration policy for

non-executive directors

Fees for the non-executive directors are determined
by the board, based on the responsibihty and time
commutted to the group’s affairs and appropnate
market comparisons Individual non-executive
directors do not take part in discussions regarding
therr own fees

No other remuneration 1s paid apart from these
non-pensionable fees, except where we reimburse
authorised expenses Non-executive directors’
contracts state that either party can give three

. months' notice of termination
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Element of pay CObjective

Award level

Performance criteria

Performance period

Base salary

To atiract and retain
high performing
individuals 10 lead
the society

QOur policy is to pay salaries at the
mid-market level for satisfactery
individual performance, in line with
the relevant market for the job.

No performance criteria per

se, but the performance of
the individual is taken into
account when salary leve!s
are reviewed

N/A

Benefits

To operate a competitive
benedits and pension
structure that provides
adequate protection

to our employees

and aids recruitment
and retention

Car allowance
Medical insurance

Income protection cover
{executive level only)

Group product discounts, which are

available to all staff and directars
on egual terms.

N/A

Pension *

To provide the facility
for competitive and
viable retirement income

We operate two pension schemes:
a defined benefit pension scheme

{DB) and a defined contribulion pension

scheme (DC): executive directors are

eligible to participate in one, depending

on their date of joining Lv=.

Emplover contributions paid are:
DB scheme - 17.8% of salary
DC scheme - up to 14% of salary

Alternatively an executive director
may choose to receive a cash sum
of up to 22% of salary in lieu of
pension contributions.

Annual bonus

To drive and reward
delivery of nearterm
business objectives

Chief executive max: 110%

Board executive directors and other
directors max: 80%

Around half the maximum is paid
for target performance

Evaluation against annual
group and divisional
financial objectives,

risk metrics andg a
balanced scorecard of
personal objectives

1 year performance period

Awards may be partly
deferred {see below) for
up to three further years,
during which time they
remain linked to ongoing
performance

Long-term
incentive plan
{LTIP)

To drive and reward
longer term business
objectives, including the
value of the society to
its members

Chief executive award value:
100% of base salary

Board executive directors award value:
75% of base salary

Other participants below Board
Executive Director: maximum 60%

Growth in Enterprise Value
and reiative investment
performance of the Society

3 year performance penod

Two thirds of any resulting
payment will be deferred
for up to two further
years, during which time
it remains linked o
ongoing performance

Executive director’s salaries

w.e.f1 April w.e.f1 April
2012 2013
£508.000 £520,700

* With effect from 1 luly 2013 we will be closing our final
£348.500 £355.000 salary scheme to the build up of future benefits. All existin,
£307,500 £315,000 final salary scheme members will have the option te Mo

8 00 into our defined j i
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Remuneration policy for executive
directors

The remuneration of our executive directors
compnses salary, an annual performance bonus,
participation in LTIP with returns based on group
performance, together with a contnbutory pension
and other benefits Bonus and incentive schemes
are designed to provide a strong alignment of
interest between the individual and the members of
the Society Qur executive directors are subject to a
notice penod of 12 months

Salary

Salaries are set taking account of several factors
including individual expenence, responsibilities,
function and sector, along with indvidual and
company performance, they are reviewed (but

not necessarlly increased) each year In order to
provide an external context, the committee reviews
a range of benchmarking information on pay levels
in organisations of comparable size and complexity
to V=

Group annual performance bonus
Executive directors are eligible to recewve an annual
non-pensionable performance bonus If they achieve
a number of challenging financial, business and
personal objectives These are ail inked to the
achievement of our strategic chjectives

For the executive directors, the scheme for 2012
could pay a maximum of 80% of salary (110% n the
case of the chief executive} The maximum payment
could anly be achieved 1n the case of exceptional
indvtdual performance and significant divisional
out-performance

Our annual performance bonus scheme rewards
other employees Iin the same way on the basis
of group resuits, divistonal results and personal
contributton A performance plan 1s agreed with
each executive for the performance year using
a balanced scorecard approach, comprising the
foliowing goals

« strategic and financial

+ customer and member

* risk and compliance

s« people

Risk 1s taken into account when appraising all
performance measures and the committee may
reduce or cancel any bonus payment If it considers
that nisk exceeded acceptable levels Progress and
achievements are monitored at the half year point
and at the end of the year via a formal performance
development review In the case of the CEQ this is
conducted by the chairman of the beoard with input
from the nonexecutive directors

Bonus deferral

From 2013 onwards (1 € the annual bonus paid
In respect of 2012 performance), part of an
executive’s annual bonus may be required to
be deferred How much deferral 1s required 1s
determined by the overall balance of the total

remuneration package and ts designed so that

we are in line with FSA's guidelines on deferred
remuneration Whilst the Society does not fall
within the scope of these regulations, it seeks to
adopt these principles as a matter of best practice

In general, the committee will ensure that at least
40% of the vanable remuneration paid to any
senior employee (including executive directors) 1S
delivered in long-term pay If this ratio i1s not met,
then a portion of the annual bonus payment for
that year will be deferred For employees whose
variable remuneration 1s £500,000 or more, the
requirement will be that 60% be in long-term pay

Any amount deferred will be paid in equal parts over
the following three years Duning the deferral pernod,
the value of deferred amounts will be tied to the
value of the with-profits fund, thereby creating a link
to ongoing performance

Long term incentive ptan (LTIP)

The Society operates a long-term incentive plan
{LTIP} for semior employees, which 1s designed to
ensure alignment between reward and the long-
term mterests of cur members Each LTIP scheme
runs for a three year period, with a new scheme
commencing on 1 January each year

It 1s the role of the committee to approve the
structure of each year's LTIP, ensuring that its
appropriately designed so as to provide appropnate
incentives {o individuals to contribute towards the
achievement of the Society's objectives and, at the
matunty of each scheme, to ensure that outcomes
have not been inappropriately influenced by taking
nsks outside the corporate nsk appetite

The LTIP i1s designed to ensure 1t rewards
performance in @ manner closely aligned to
members’ interests This means payment reflects
our medium and long-term targets to grow
Enterprise Value, which 1s our estimate of the
market value of the group and 15 the benchmark

by which we measure our long-term performance
For the purposes of the LTIP, the Enterprise Value
of the group I1s assessed with reference to clearly
defined valuation bases These valuation bases are
reviewed every three years by independent advisers
For any LTIP payments to be made, Enterprise
Value must grow at a minimum stipulated annual
growth rate over each year of the scheme, takung
into account the nature of the nsks which the group
undertakes Payments are made after review and
approved by the Remuneration Committee

Membership of the LTIP 1s by invitation of the board
and restricted to those few individuals who, by their
roles and position within the group, are best placed
to influence or directly contribute to our longerterm
growth Indmduals are granted an amount (‘the
award’) at the date of joining the scheme, which

Is calculated as a percentage of their salary (up

1o a maximum of 100% n the case of the group
chief executive)
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Board remuneration — audited

Annual remuneration (£ 000)

Total remuneration {£ 000)

Deferred Other Tota) Total e Total Total

salary Bortus bonus benefits 2012 2011 201012 2012 2011

Mike Rogers? 505 427 132 127 1,191 1,131 1,431, 2,622 2177
Philip Moore?! 346 208 52 55 661 809 732 1,393 609
Richard Rowney! 306 240 - 51 597 568 585 1,182 943
John Q Roarke!®2 281 220 - a5 546 54 - 546 314
Dennis Holt 153 - - - 153 150 n/a 153 150
Mark Austen 72 - - - 72 68 n/a 72 68
John Edwards 62 - - - 62 58 n/a 82 58
Cath Keers 61 - - - 61 57 n/a 61 57
lan Reynolds? 60 - - - 60 64 n/a 60 64
Carohne Burton* 56 - - - 56 15 n/a 56 15
james Dean® 22 - - - 22 - n/a 22 -
Gill Notts - - - - - 28 n/a - 28
1,924 1,095 184 278 3,481 2,802 2,748 6,229 4,483

1 Other benefits includes payments in lleu of pension contnbutions {Mike Rogers £111 000
Philip Moore £41 000 Richard Rowney £37 000 John O Roarke £31 000)

# Appointed 23 November 2011

* Res:gned 31 October 2012

* Appointed 8 November 2011
8 Appointed 26 Juty 2012
¢ Resigned 26 May 2011

Long Term Incentive Plan summary of awards and amounts vested - audited

Award Unvested awards at 1 Awards made Additional value Te be pald in respect of Unvestad awards at
January 2012 (1) in the year (1} on vesting of 2010-2012 scheme (2) 31 Docember 2012 (3)
2010-2012 schemsa {2)
Mike Rogers 2010-12 477,000 - 954,000 {1,431,000) -
201113 477,000 - - - 477,000
201214 - 495,000 - - 495,000
Philp Moore 201012 244,000 - 488,000 (732,000) -
2011-13 244,000 - - - 244,000
2012-14 - 255,000 = - 255,000
Richard Rowney 201012 195,000 - 390,000 {585,000) -
2011-13 212,000 - - - 212,000
2012-14 - 225,000 - - 225,000

1 Unvested awards are shown at the base award level Unvested awards st 1 January 2012 ere

In respect of awards granted :n 2010 and 2011

2 For the 2010-2012 LTIP scheme growth in Enterprise Value and investment performance both

exceeded the "above benchmark™ targets and accordingly the ameunts paid to participating
employees were al the maximum level {1 e i aggregate three imes the base award)

The amount paid depends on the group’s performance against
our Enterpnse Value targets and also on investment performance,
with a maximum achievable payout of three times the award In
determining whether Enterpnse Value targets have been achieved,
the Remuneration Committee may, where appropnate, make
positive or negative adjustments for the financial impacts of any
management actions which affect the calculation of the Enterpnse
Value, to ensure that the calculation 1s fully aligned to the interest
of members For some LTIP scheme participants, a proportion of
any payment 1s inked to the group’s investment perfoermance

For this portion to produce a maximum payment, an average
outperformance of the relevant benchmark of at least O 6% per
annum must be achieved

Durning the course of 2012, the commuttee made a number

of changes to the structure of the LTIP which are intended to

strengthen the alignment with members' interests and reinforce

the ink to the Society s underlying financial strength For the

2013 cycle, the fallowing changes will apply

+ No payment will be made unless a mutual bonus 18 also paid
in that year (any amounts earned 1n a year in which no mutual
bonus 1s paid would be deferred until such time as a bonus
was paid),

+ No payment will be made uniess the Society 1s operating at
least at a threshold level of capital adequacy in that year, and

s For senior participants in the LTIP {including the executive
directors) payment of any resulting award will be made one
third after the three year penod, one third after a further year of
deferral and the final third after two years further deferral, the

3 Unvested awards at 31 December 2012 are in respect of awards granted in 2011 and 2012
4 John O Roarke did net participate in the LTIP schemes summansed above

value of any deferral will be directly inked dunng the deferral
period to the value of the Society's with-profits funds

Additionally from 2013 onwards, the maximum payout under the LTIP
scheme will reduce from three times the award value 1o two times

Neither the annual bonus nor the LTIP are contractual
entitlements of those potentially eligible to participate in them

Both annual performance bonuses paid and/or deferred and
LTIP payments are subject to claw-back in the event of any
materal misstatement {in¢cluding where significant losses
subsequently emerge which were not recorded at the time) or
gross misconduct

Pensions and other benefits

Since 1 January 2010 we have provided a defined contribution
pension scheme for new employees where we contribute twice the
amount contributed by each employee within a range of employee
contrtbutions frorm a minimum of 3% to a maximum of 7% of
salary Previously we offered a final salary scheme, although now
closed to new members, existing members continued to accrue
benefits in this scheme

with effect from 1 July 2013 we will be closing our final salary
scheme to the build up of future benefits All existing final salary
scheme members will have the option t¢ move into our defined
contribution pension scheme from that date
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Remuneration during 2012 LTIP cycles currently in progress

The remuneration of individual directors, including + The schemes which started on 1 January 2011

that of the charman and highest paid director, 1S and 2012 require a mimmum of 8% per annum

detaled on page 48 growth in the Enterprise Value of the business

units to be achieved by 31 December 2013 and

: Annual bonus 2012 2014 respectively For some participants, these

During 2012, the group significantly exceeded schemes also require an above benchmark

many of its financial performance targets, whilst return on investment performance of 60 basis

continuing to grow the business and delivenng points per annum These schemes are still

on our major pronises and commitments to our open and have 56 and 79 remaimning

members The commitiee determined that the participants respectively

bonuses for the executive directors should therefore ¢ For the schemes which started on 1 January

be at 110% for the chief executive, 75% for the 2011 and 1 January 2012, f the performance

finance director, 78% for the MD, Life Insurance, conditions are met these would pay out between

78% for the MD, General Insurance £2 2 million and £8 8 million and £2 8 mullion

and £11 3 milhon respectively, depending

LTIP payments in 2012 on perfarmance

The LTIP scheme which started on 1 January 2010 + The amount charged to comprehensive income in

required annual growth in total of the business units 2012 in respect off all open LTIP schemes was

Enterprise Value of between 9% and 20% per annum £9 6 million (2011 £7 3 mullion)

over the three year period ending 31 December + The estimated costs of any expected awards

2012 For some LTIP scheme participants an above under the schemes are charged as expenses

benchmark return on investment performance of 60 in equal instalments over the three year

basis points per annum was also required |t has performance penod concerned

been determined that these hurdles were
exceeded and accordingly a maximum payout
of £7 5 mullion {(excluding employer's national
insurance contrnibutions) has been distnbuted
among 47 participants

Long Term Incentive Plans — performance of current schemes
The tables below summarise the performance targets of the LTIP Scheme awards granted in 2010,
2011 and 2012 together with performance from the start of each Scheme to 31 December 2012

Performance targets

Level of award Enterprise Value Growth (1} Relath t Pert ()]
Minimum (75% of base award) 9% 0O basis points
Maximum (300% of base award) 20% 260 basis polnts

Cumulative performance versus target

LTIP Scheme Enterprise Value Growth (3) Investment Performance {4)
2010-2012 LTIP Scheme (started 1 January 2010) 29 5% +117 basis points
2011-2013 LTIP Scheme (started 1 January 2011) 16.2% +50 basls points
2012-2014 LTIP Scheme (started 1 January 2012) 22.1% +142 basis points

For Scheme participants measured on investment performance, 75% of their intial award 1s based
on Enterprise Value performance and 25% on Relative Investment Performance

1 Annualised growth in SBU Enterpnse Value

2 Annualised nvestment performance return relative to benchmark return

3 Annualised growth in Enterprise Value from start of Scheme to 31 December 2012

4 Annualised performance return refative 10 benchmark from start of Scheme to 31 December 2012
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Directors’ loans

I
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 3
there were no loans outstanding from directors 3
=
The directors approved the Directors’ Report on 5
Remuneration on 27 March 2013 '53
Exl
//
Cath Keers

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Glossary

ABI: Associaticn of Bntish Insurers
AFS Association of Friendly Socreties

Annual Premium Equivatent (APE): A measure
commonly used to calculate and compare the size
of a ife company It 1s calculated by adding the total
annual prermiums recewved and 10% of all single
premiums received In the year

Asset shares Asset shares reflect the amount

of money paid into with-profits policies by way of
premiums and investment returns, less the costs of
administering those policies

Assoclation of Financial Mutuals (AFM) The trade
body that represents mutual insurers, Fnendly
Societies and other financial mutuals in the UK

It was formed in January 2010 after a merger

of the Association of Friendly Societies and the
Association of Mutual Insurers

Capital resources. The amount of capital that we
have 10 run our business

Enterprise Value: As LV= 5 not quoted on the
stockmarket, Enterprnise Value 1s our measure

of the market value of the business Any rise or
fall in Enterpnse Value will also tell us if we are
growing member value A complex formula 1s used
to calculate our Enterprise Value, and the figure 15
independently verified every three years

Friendly Society. Frniendly Socteties were set

up in the 19th century to help and encourage
underprivileged people to improve their financial
wellbeing As they are mutuals, Fnendly Societies
are owned by members rather than shareholders

FSA' The Financial Services Authonty reguiates the
financial services industry in the UK

FTSE FTSE i1s an independent company that
provides indices to measure how stockmarkets and
other financial markets perform In the UK, the FTSE
100 index 15 widely used by the media to report on
the valuation of the largest 100 quoted companies
on the UK Stock Exchange

Heritage business: Principally, the Society’s with-
profit policies, together with the policies acquired
from RNPFN

GWP Gross written premiums

ICA Individual capital assessment 1s the process by
which the Financial Services Authonty (FSA} requires
Insurance companies to make an assessment of
the regulated company’s own capital requirements,
which 15 then reviewed and agreed by the FSA

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards
are used to ensure a company s reported accounts
are prepared to common standards across

the world

ILAG Investment and Life Assurance Group

Industrial branch Part of our hentage business and
typically contains smatl premium whole of life and
endowment policies

Mutual: A business that 1s owned by its members
rather than by shareholders

Mutual bonus A discretionary enhancement to
asset shares to share the results of the group’s
performance

QEICs Open-Ended Investment Compantes are
investment funds similar 1o investment trusts

They are open-ended because they can take money
from new investors at any time Equally they can
pay back investors whenever the investor chooses
OEICs often adopt an umbrella structure where the
investor can get access through the umbrella fund
to a number of sub-funds which invest with different
objectives

Ordinary branch Part of our hentage business
and typically consists of traditional with-profits
endowments, whole of life policies, annuities
and pensions

Pension annuity: An annuity uses the proceeds of a
pension fund to provide an income for a fixed term
or the rest of your life

Periodic payment orders (PPOs) An annuity style
award paid to claimants instead of a lump sum,
where indexed payments can be varied to meet
ltkely future changes in circumstance This transfers
mortality and investment nisk from the ciaimant to
the insurer

PHI: Permanent Health Insurance 1s an insurance
policy paying benefits to policyholders who are
incapacitated and hence unable to work due to
Hiness or accident
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Protection A policy providing a cash sum on the
death or cnitical iliness of the life assured

PVIF: Present value of acquired in-force business
occurs when a life insurance company makes an
acquesttion Part of the purchase pnce represents
the vatue of the insurance contracts in the target
company This 15 in effect, the present value of the
policies acquired

RCM Risk capital margin 1s the additional capital
a firm would need to hold to cover the effects of

a number of ‘What If ?* scenaros that have been
prescnbed by the FSA These scenanos assess the
capital implications from ¢combined movements in
financial markets {equity, property, credit spreads,
interest rates) and persistency of the business
The RCM 1s the capital required to cover the worst
case scenario

Retall Distribution Review (RDR): A fundamental
review by the FSA designed to help address insufficient
trust and confidence In financial services products and
services In particular, it 1s intended to dnve increased
professionalism in the tied and independent financial
advice areas and will change the way that financial
advice 1s organised and paid for

RNPFN Royal Nationa! Pension Fund For Nurses

Risk appetite The amount of sk that a business
15 prepared to accept or keep when carrying out its
everyday activities

Self Invested Personal Penslon (SIPP) Unlike
normal personal pension plans, where the pension
company limits your chotce of investments to

those that it manages, SIPPs allow investors the
opportunity to make therr own investment decisions

SME Small, Medium Enterprises — within the
commercial ine of the general nsurance business

Solvency i} An EU-wtde project that sets out

to provide a comprehensive new framework for
insurance supervision and regulatton This aims to
strengthen protection for policyholders by ensuring
that companies allocate enough capital to cover all
the risks in thewr business

Strategic busliness unlt (SBU) LV= s made up of
two business units (Life and General Insurance),
each of which focuses on profitably delivening a
specific part of our overall group business plan

Threadneedle Asset Management {TAM)

A leading international investment manager with
a strong track record of cutperformance across
asset classes

TCF Treating Customers Farly 1s an industry-wide
initiative designed to ensure financial providers
meet basic principles of product information,
suitability and performance

UK Corporate Governance Code® The Code sets out
standards of good practice for sted companies

It covers, amongst other things, the board
composition and its accountabihty and relations with
business owners Mutual orgamisations such as V=
do not have to adhere to the Code, but we choose
to comply with the Annotated Code as published by
the AFM as we believe it 1s good business practice
to do so

Unallocated divisible surplus (UDS) The amounts
that have yet to be formally declared as bonuses
for participating policyholders together with the free
assets of the group

Underlying operating profit The operating profit
before one-off items such as basis and methodology
changes, shortterm investment fluctuations and
amortisation of intangibles

With-profits fund An investment fund where we
combtne all of our with-profits investors’ money and
manage 1t on their behalf The fund normally invests
in UK and overseas shares, fixed interest secunties
including Government stocks and bonds, property,
cash, and our own business activities We regularly
monitor where we invest the fund to take account of
future habilities
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Independent
auditors’ report to the
members of Liverpool
Victoria Friendly
Society Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Liverpool Victona
Friendly Society Limited for the year ended 31 December 2012
which compnse the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Statermnent of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows
and the related notes for the Society and the Group The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in therr preparation 1s
apphcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of the Board of Directors
and auditors

As explamned more fully in the Responsibilities of the Board of
Directors for the financial statements set out on page 39, the Board
of Directors is responsible for preparnng financial statements which
Eive a true and fair view The Society has also chosen to comply
with the Annotated UK Corporate Governance Code specified by
the Association of Financial Mutuals Our responsibility 1S to audit
and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, ncluding the opinions, has been prepared for and only
for the Society’'s members as a body In accordance with the Fnendly
Societies Act 1992 and the Regulations made under 1t and for

no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save
where expressly agreed by our prnor consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financtal statements sufficient to give
reasonabie assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Group’s and Soclety's circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
Board of Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information tn the Report and Financiai Statements to identify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements

If we become aware of any apparent maternal misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

e gdive a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union, of the state of the Society’s and the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of the mcome and
expenditure and cash flows of the Society and the Group for the
year then ended, and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the Friendly
Societies Act 1992

Opimion on other matters prescribed by the Friendly
Societies Act 1992

In our opinion the Directors’ Report has been prepared In
accordance with the Friendly Societies Act 1992 and the
regulations made under i, and the information given theretn 1s
consistent with the financial statements for the financial year

Matters on which we are required

to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters

where the Friendly Societies Act 1992 requires us to report to you

if, N our opinion

e proper accounting records have not been kept, or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records, or

e we have not recerved all the information and explanations and
access to documents that we require for our audit

In accordance with our Instructions from the Society we
review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects
the Society’s compliance with the eight provisions of the
Annotated UK Corparate Governance Code specified by the
Association of Financial Mutuals We have nothing to report
in respect of this review

David Roper

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Bristoi

27 March 2013
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2012

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated see
Note 1
Notes £m £m £m £m
Gross earned premiums 4 24462 21965 9591 862 8
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 4 (108 8) {93 0) (75 6) (99 7)
Net earned premlums 4 23374 2,103 5 8835 7631
Fee and commission income 6 165 185 66 52 |
Investment income 7 3202 261 4 3370 284 9 \
Net gains on Investments 8 3747 425 4 2141 3729 |
Other income 9 417 510 59 191
Total Income 3,0905 28598 14471 1,4452
Gross benefits and claims 10 (1,8193) (1,669 3) {646 B8) (657 3)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 10 1108 864 618 102 4
Net benefits and clalms 10 (1,708 5) (1,582 9) (584 8) (554 9)
Gross change n long:term contract liabihbies 22 {711 3) (771 6) {714 8) (773 4
Change n long-term contract habilities ceded to reinsurers 22 74 4 96 0 744 71
Net change in contract liabllitles 22 {636 9) {675 6} (640 4) (766 3)
Finance costs 11 (05) {0 5) - -
Investment return allocated to external unit holders (329) 21 - -
Other operating and administrative expenses 12 (608 5) {619 8) {(2186) (171 7)
Other expenses {641 9) {618 2} (2186) (171 7)
Total benefits, claims and expenses (2,987 3) (2,876 7) (1,443 8) (1,4929)
Profit /{loss) bhefore tax and mutual bonus 103 2 (16 9) 33 (47 7Y
Mutual bonus 14 (20 9) {18 6} (20 9) (18 6)
Income tax expense 34 (34 3) {42 2) {13 4) (26 9)
Pension scheme actuanal {losses)/gains net of tax 39 (145 5) 697 (145 5) €97
Transfer from the Unallocated divisible surplus 46 975 80 176 5 235

Total comprehenslive Income for the year - - - =

As a Friendly Society, all net earmings are for the benefit of participating polticyholders and are carned forward within the Unallocated
divisible surplus Accordingly, there 1s no profit for the year shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Group and the Society have not presented a Statement of Changes in Equity as there are no equity holders in either the Group or
Society as the Society 1s a mutual organisation
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Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2012

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated Restated
see Note 1 see Note 1
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assets
Intangible assets 26 2519 2615 - 46
Deferred acquisition costs 23 100 1 947 - -
Pension benefit asset 39 - 108 1 - 1081
Property and equipment 27 239 206 69 50
Investment properties 28 164 7 2199 1317 151 4
Investments in group undertakings 29 - - 902 3 957 6
Corparation tax asset 35 - - 20 -
Deferred tax asset 36 142 310 130 177
Prepayments and accrued income 31 106 6 613 64 3 481
Financial assets
— Fair value through income 15 9,4841 80203 70589 60161
— Dervative financial mstruments 16 708 143 8 685 143 8
Loans and other recewvables 19 103 0 116 0 128 6 154 9
Reinsurance assets 24 447 2 3369 297 4 2230
Insurance recewvables 30 2273 2186 5 126 102
Cash and cash equivalents 436 6 7191 1233 2834
Total assets 11,4304 10,3497 88095 812398
Liabilities
Unallocated divisible surplus 46 860 9 958 4 8786 10551
Insurance ¢ontract habilities 21 8,6574 7,7480 6,6033 59462
Investment contract habilities 17 959 3 8009 959 3 8009
Net asset value attributable to external unit holders 5039 4291 - -
Pension benefit obligation 39 102 12 102 12
Provisions 40 66 0 555 631 520
Corporation tax liabilty 37 76 284 - 130
Financial habilities
- Dernvative financial instruments 16 512 38 512 38
- Other financial habilities 20 755 772 814 727
Insurance payables 32 447 416 26 2 3186
Trade and other payables 33 193 7 2056 136 2 147 4
Total liabilities 11,4304 10,3497 8,8095 88,1239

The financial statements on page 55 to 125 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2013 and signed on its behalf by

RS Small
Secretary
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Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 December 2012
Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated Restated
see Note 1 see Noteg 1
Notes £m £m fm £m
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 7191 547 4 283 4 2890
Cash flows arising from
Operating actlvities
Cash generated from operating activities 50 4118 414 4 2725 1405
Net increase In investments held at fair value through income (985.0) {582 9) (720 6} {497 2)
Purchase of investment properties (0 2) (12 5) (02} 29
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 54 2 1061 187 96 2
Dvidend income recelved 961 1195 165 2 152 0
Interest and other income receved 180 4 1370 1509 123 4
Rental income on invesiment properties 61 73 65 71
Finance cost pad 11 (05) (C5) - -
Income tax paid {38 3) (13 6) (23 7) (13 6}
Net cash flows (used In)/generated from operating activities (275 4) 1748 (130 7) 55
Investing actlvities
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment (01) - - -
Increase i investment in group undertakings - - {451) (15 2)
Redemption of loans to subsidiaries - - 130 -
Repayment in long-term loan from subsidiary - - 58 45
Purchase of property and equipment 27 {70) (31) {(31) {0 4)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from investing activities {71) (31) (29 4) (11 1)
Net (decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents {282 5) 1717 {160 1) (56)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 436 6 7191 123 3 283 4
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Bank balances 98 0 1569 224 107 6
Short-term bank deposits 3386 562 2 1009 1759
436 6 7191 1233 283 4

The Group classifies the cash flows for the acquisition and disposal of financial assets as operating cash flows, as the purchases are
funded from the cash flows associated with the ongination of insurance and investment contracts
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Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2012

Significant accounting policies

This sectlon describes the LV= Group's significant accounting
policies and accounting estimates that relate to the financial
statements and notes as a whole If an accounting policy or an
accounting estimate relates to a specific note, the applicable
accounting policy and/or accounting estimate 1s contalned
within the relevant note.

1. Significant accounting policies

1 1 Basis of presentation

The Group financial statements consolidate the results of

the Society and its subsidiary companies The Group's and
Soclety's financial statements conform te International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations 1ssued by the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as published by the international
Accounting Standards Board and adopted by the Eurepean Union
In addition the Society's financial statements comply with the
Friendly Societies {Accounts & Related Provisions) Regulations
1994 (the Regulations}

In accordance with IFRS 4 on Insurance Contracts, the Group has
applied existing accounting practices for insurance contracts and
participating investment contracts modified as appropriate to
comply with the {FRS framework and applicable standards
Further details are given in accounting policy 1 3b below

Insurance contracts are accounted for in accordance with the
Statement of Recommended Practice 1ssued by the Association

of British Insurers in December 2005, and amended in December
2006 In certain businesses, the accounting policies or accounting
estimates have been changed, to measure designated insurance
habilities using current market interest rates and allowing for other
changes to regulatory reporting practices The Group measures
the liability on insurance and with-profit contracts in line with the
‘realistic’ reporting regime of the Financial Services Authority
{FSA) More detail on the valuation of insurance and investment
contracts 1s given In the accounting policies disciosed within
Notes 17 and 21

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties and financial assets and habiities {(including
derivatives)} at fair value through income

The principal accounting polictes apphed in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below
These policies have been consistently applied to all years
presented, untess otherwise stated

After making enquires, the directors have a reasonahle
expectation that the Group has adeguate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future The Group
therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparnng
its consolidated financia!l statements

Restatements

The Statement of Comprehensive Income has been restated to
reclassify interest on loans secured on residential property from
Fee and commission income o Investment income

The Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cash Flows
have been restated to gross up Bank balances and Other financial
labilities to reflect cash collateral received

1 2 Slgnificant accounting estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS
requires the use of estimates It also requires management to
exercise judgement in applying the accounting pohicies The key
areas involving a high degree of jJudgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions are significant to the financial statements are
highlighted under the relevant note

Significant accounting estimates and judgements are disclosed in

o Fair value of financial assets (Note 15)

s Insurance contract liabihties (Note 21)
*Goodwill and intangible assets (Note 26)
sPension benefit asset/{obligation) (Note 32)

1.3 Accounting policies

a Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are all entities, including Open Ended Investment
Companies {(OEICs}, over which the Group (directly or indirectly)
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than ene half of
the voting nghts The existence and effect of potential voting nghts
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity Subsidianes
are fully consolidated from the date on which contro! 1s transferred
to the Group using uniform accounting policies consistently
apphed across the Group They are excluded from consolidation
from the date on which control ceases

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting to account
for the acquisition of subsidianes Accordingly, the cost of an
acquisition 1s measured as the fair value of the cash or other
assets given, equity Instruments 1ssued and liabifities mcurred or
assumed at the date control passes ldentifiable assets acquired,
llabiities and contingent liabiities assumed In a business
combination are measured nitially at ther fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest
The excess of the cost of acquisitton over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired 15 recorded
as goodwill If the cost of acquisition 15 less than the fair value

of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference I1s
recognised directly in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for
the period

intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
intra-group transactions are ehminated on consolidation
Unrealised losses are also ehminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

Where the Group invests in specialised investment vehicles

(such as QEICs) and owns greater than 50% of the unit
shareholding, they are consolidated The interests of other parties
in these vehicles will be classified as liabilities and appear as
‘Net asset value attnbutable to external unit holders’ because
they are puttable instruments The external unit holders' share

of the net investment return on the OEICs 15 charged or credited
to the Statement of Comprehensive income as investment return
allocated to external unit holders

Details of the Society’s principal subsidianes are given in Note 43
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

31 December 2012

1. Signiflcant accounting policies {continued)

Associates and foint ventures In property holding companies
The Group Invests In assoclate companies and jointly controlled
entities that hold mmvestment properties, with holdings ranging
between 25% and 99%

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting nghts

The investments in associates and the Group's interests in jointly
controlled entities have not been consolidated under the equity
method but are designated as investments at fair value through
income under UK unhisted investments in accordance with the
exemptions permitted under IAS 28 and IAS 31 applicable to
investment-linked insurance funds

b Contract classification
The Group 1ssues contracts that transfer insurance nsk, financial
nsk or both

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant
insurance risk Such contracts may also transfer financial nsk

As a general guideling, the Group defines as significant insurance
risk the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of
an insured event that are at least 10% more than the benefits
payable if the insured event did not occur

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial
nsk with no significant insurance risk

All participating contracts have been classified as participating
insurance contracts as these contracts entitle the holder to
receve, as a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional
benefits or bonuses

* that are likely to be a significant portion of the total
contractual benefits,
& whose amount or tming 1s contractually at the discretion
of the Group, and
* that are contractually based on
1} the performance of a specified pool of contracts
or a specified type of contract,
11} realised and/or unrealised investment returns on
a specified pool of assets held by the fund, or

) the unallocated surplus of the fund that issues the contract

¢ Forelgn currencles

Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated to sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the year Purchases and sales of investments denominated

in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevalling at the
dates of the transactions Exchange gains and losses are dealt
with in that part of the Statement of Comprehensive income in
which the underlying transaction 1s reported

d Financlal assets and liabilitles

Recognition

The Group classifies its financral assets and habiihies upon inthal
recognition into the following categones

¢ Fiancial assets and habilities at fair value through income

* Derwvative financial instruments

® Loans and recevables

s QOther financial hlabilities

The accounting policy for each type of financial asset or hablity 15
included within the relevant note for the category

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised when
¢ the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
¢ the Group has transferred its nghts to receve cash flows from
the asset and has
- transferred the nisks and rewards of the asset, or
- has transferred control of the asset

A financial hamiity 1s derecognised when the obligation under the
hiability 1s discharged or cancelled or expires

e Llability adequacy testing

Insurance and participating Investment contract llabilities

At each reporting date, an assessment 1S made of whether the
recognised long-term contract habilities are adequate, using
current estimates of future cash flows If that assessment shows
that the carrying amount of the liabilities (less related assets)

1s insufficient 1n ight of the estimated future cash flows, the
deficiency 1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income by setting up an additional hability

General Insurance

At each Statement of Financial Position date liabihty adequacy
tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of insurance contract
liabilines, net of related deferred acquisition costs In performing
these tests current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and admimistration expenses as well
as investment income from the assets backing such habilities are
used Any deficiency Is immediately charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive income imitially by wrnting off deferred acquisition
costs and by subsequently establishing an unexpired risk
provision Any deferred acquisition cost written off as a result of
this test cannot subsequently be reinstated

f Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwili,
are not subject to amertisation and are tested annually

for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation or
depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generaung units}

Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, that suffered impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date

g. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
and short-term deposits with an onginal matunty of three months
or less

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents are as defined above hut are shown net of
outstanding bank overdrafts
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1. Significant accounting policles {continued)

1.4 Changes and future developments in accounting policles

(1) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective

for the first time for the financial year beginming on or after

1 January 2012, that would be expected to have a matenal impact
on the Group

(i) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
Iinterpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after

1 January 2013, and have not been applied in prepanng these
consolidated financial statements None of these Is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out below

Amendment to IAS 1, Financial statement presentation’ regarding
other comprehensive iIncome The main ¢change resulting from
these amendments 15 a requirement for entities to group items
presented in ‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI) on the basis

of whether they are potentially reclasssfiable to profit or loss
subsequently {reclassification adjustments) The amendments

do not address which items are presented in QCI

IFRS 13, ‘Far value measurement’, aims to improve consistency
and reduce complexity by prowiding a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of farr value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs The requirements, which are
largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP do not extend the use
of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be
applied where its use 1s already required or permitted by other
standards withuin IFRSs or US GAAP

IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’, was amended in June 2011

The impact on the Society will be as follows to iImmediately
recognise all past service costs, and to replace interest cost and
expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that
15 calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit hability {asset} The Group 1s yet to assess the full
impact of the amendments

{FRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
habilities IFRS 9 was 1ssued in November 2009 and October
2010 It replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the
classtfication and measurement of financial instruments

IFRS 8 requires financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categonies those measured as at fair value

and those measured at amortised cost The determination I1s
made at mnittal recognition  The classificatron depends on the
entity’s business model! for managing its financial instruments
and the contractual cash flow charactenstcs of the instrument
For financial habilities, the standard retains most of the 1AS 39
requirements The main change 15 that, \n cases where the fair
value option 1s taken for financial habilities, the part of a farr value
change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than the tncome statement, unless

this creates an accounting mismatch The Group 1s yet to assess
IFRS 9’s full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later than the
accounting penod begining on or after 1 January 2015, subject to
endorsement by the EU The Group will aiso consider the impact of
the remaining phases of IFRS 9 when completed by the Board

IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’, builds on

existing princtples by identifying the concept of control as the
determiring factor in whether an entity should be included within
the consolidated financial statements of the parent company

The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the
determinatien of control where this 1s difficult to assess The
Group 15 yet to assess IFRS 10's full impact and mntends to adopt
{FRS 10 no later than the accounting penod beginming on or after
1 January 2013, subject to endorsement by the EU

IFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests 1n ather entities’, includes the
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles
and other off balance sheet vehicles The Group is yet to assess
IFRS 12's full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 12 no later than
the accounting perod beginning on or after 1 January 2013,
subject to endorsement by the EU

1AS 27 {revised) ‘Separate financial statements’, 1ssued 1n May
2011 This standard includes the provisions on separate financial
statements that are left after the control provisions of IAS 27 have
been included in the new IFRS 10 The Group Is yet to assess the
full iImpact of the amendments and intends to adopt the amended
IAS 27 no later than the accounting period beginning on or after

1 January 2013

IAS 28 (revised) ‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’,
1ssued In May 2011 This standard includes the requirements

for Joint ventures, as well as associates, to be equity accounted
following the i1ssue of IFRS 11 The Group IS yet to assess the full
impact of the amendments and intends to adopt the amended 1AS
28 no later than the accounting penod beginning on or after

1 January 2013

IFRS i1 ‘Jont arrangements’, 1Issued in May 2011 This standard
provides for a more realistic reflection of joint arrangements by
focusing on the nights and ebligations of the arrangement, rather
than its legal form There are two types of joint arrangements
Jjoint operations and joint ventures Joint operations arise where
a Jjoint operator has nghts to the assets and obligations refating
to the arrangement and hence accounts for its interest in assets,
liabihties, revenue and expenses Joint ventures anse where the
Joint operator has nghts to the net assets of the arrangement and
hence equity accounts for its interest Proporttonal consolidation
of joint ventures 1s no longer allowed The Group Is yet to0 assess
IFRS 11's full mpact and intends to adopt IFRS 11 no later than
the accounting pernod beginmng on or after 1 January 2013

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not
yet effective that would be expected to have a matenal impact
on the Group
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Capital and risk management

This section details the capital and risk management approach of the Soclety and Group The Group seeks to create value for Its
members by maintaining an appropnate batance between the capital available to support nsk and the level and type of risk it takes
on [n order to achieve returns The nsk appetite for each type of princlpal risk 15 set based on the amount necessary to meet the
FSA’s capital requirements

2. Capital management
The Society retains capital within its Unallocated divisible surplus to meet the key objectives

(1) To ensure financial stability and to support the nsks it takes on as part of its business,

(1) To enable the Group's strategy to be implemented,

() To give confidence to policyholders and other stakeholders who have relationships with the Group, and
(w) To comply with capital requirements imposed by 1ts UK regulator, the FSA

At least annually, these objectives are reviewed and benchmarks are set by which to judge the adequacy of the Group's capital

The caprtal position 1s monitored against those benchmarks to ensure that sufficient capital 1s available to the Group !n the event that
sufficient capital 1s not available, actions would be taken either to raise additional capital or to reduce the amount of nsk accepted thereby
reducing the capital requirement through, for example, reinsurance, reducing business volumes or a change in investment strategy

The Group complied with all externally imposed capital requirements to which it was subject throughout the reporting period

Capital statement
The tables below set out the capital resources avallable to the individual hife funds and other activities of the Group

Reconcillation of Available Capital Resources
The following table reconciles the Unallocated divisible surplus presented in the Statement of Financial Posttion and total available
capital resources calculated on a regulatory basis

2012 2011

£m £m

Unaltocated dvisible surplus B78 6 10551
Regulatory adjustments

- Adjustment to reserves to realistic basis 3551 196 6

- Adjustment to cost of mvestment In subsidiaries {note 1) (319 8) (362 1)

- Inadmissible assets (note 2) (132) (130 4)

9007 759 2

RNPFN Fund not available to the Group (note 3) 1795 164 5

Total Available Capital Resources 1,080 2 9237

Notes

1 Represents the difference between the cost of investment in subsidianes and the value for regulatory purposes net
of the capital requirement

2 Inadmussible assets include pension scheme, deferred tax and goodwill

3 RNPFN denotes Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses, which is a nng-fenced fund The free assets attributable to this fund are
reported as insurance contract liabilities of the Society

Movements in capital are analysed below

2012 2011

£m £m

Capital at 1 January 923.7 1,0509
Effect of investment vanations 199.2 239
Effect of changes mn market conditions (52.6) {9 5)
Effect of changes in assumptions 166.3 {13 9)
New business (128.6) {94 3)
Qther {27.8) {33 4)
Capital as at 31 December 1,080 2 9237
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2. Capital management (continued)

2012 2011
Regulatory Capltal £m £m
Admissible assets 7,865 7 7,1859
Add back capital requirements of reguiated related undertakings 2539 2415
Mathematical reserves (after distnbution of surplus) {6,686 0) (6,123 1)
Regulatory current liabilities {353 4) {380 6)
Available capital resources 1,080 2 9237
Capital requirements of regulated related undertakings {253 9) {241 5)
Capital resources of RNPFN fund {179 5) (164 4)
Peak 1 capital requirement {239 6) {218 Q)
Peak 1 excess regulatory capital {excluding RNPFN surplus} 407 2 299 8
With-profits insurance capital component {220 8) (64 6)
Peak 2 excess capltal resources (excludlng RNPFN surplus) 186 4 2352

The RNPFN fund s capital is avallable to support the RNPFN participating contract fund only It 1s comfortably in excess of the required cap|tal margin
and, therefore, the Society 1s not required to provide further capital support to this business

Available capital - Long-term Insurance contracts

For the long-term insurance contract funds the Group is required t¢ hold sufficient capital to meet the FSA capital requirements based on the
risk capital margin (RCM) determined in accordance with the FSAs regulatory rules under tts realistic capital regime together with the indwvidual
Capital Assessment (ICA) which takes into account certain business rnsks not reflected in the RCM The deterrmination of the RCM depends on
vanous actuanal and other assumptions about potenttal changes in market prices, future operating expenence and the actions management
would take in the event of particular adverse changes in market conditions

Management intends to mamntain surplus capital in excess of the RCM and ICA to meet the FSA's total requirements and te maintain an
appropnate additional margin over this to absorb changes in both capital and capital requirements

i) Participating insurance contracts

For the Group's participating contract {with-profits) funds the avallable capital 1s determined in accordance with the ‘realistic balance sheet’
regime prescnbed by the FSA's regulations under which habilities to policyholders include both declared bonuses and the constructive obligation
for future bonuses not yet declared The available capital resources include an estimate of the value of their respective estates, which 1s the
surplus in the fund In excess of any constructive obligations to policyholders The unallocated capital represents the capital resources of the
indwvidual participating contract fund to which 1t relates and 1s avaiable to meet regulatory and other solvency requirements of the fund For these
participating contract funds the liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position compnise only amounts relating to policyholders

il) Non participating insurance contracts

For non participating business the relevant capital requirement 1s the minimum solvency requirement determined In accordance with FSA
regulations For thus business a tower capital surplus 1s targeted by management since the capital requirement is less subject to fluctuation and
the capital amount Is after deducting liabilities that include additional prudential margms

The other activities of the Group have total available capital which 1s significantly higher than the minimum requirements established by the FSA
for each of the regulated entites and, in principle, the excess 15 available to the Society In practice, higher levels of capital are held within each
business operation to provide appreprtate cover for nsk and new business growth

All available capital within LVFS 1s ultimately available to support the Society's participating contract fund However the avallable capital resources
of each regulated entity are generally subject to restrictions as to their availability to meet requirements that may arise elsewhere (n the Group
For other nen participating funds, the avaitable surplus held in the fund 1s attnbutable to Society policyhalders and, subject to meeting the
regulatory requirements of these businesses, this capital 1s available to meet requirements elsewhere in the Group

Sensitivity of long-term Insurance contract liabilities

Long-term insurance contract habilites are sensitive to changes In market conditions and other assumptions which have been factored inte their
calculation, such as mortality or persistency rates In some cases allowance 1s also made when calculating liabitiies for the effect of management
and/or pohcyholder actions in different economic conditions on future assumptions such as asset mix, bonus rates and surrender values

Market conditions — assumptions are made about investment retumns and interest rates when valuing llabilites  Any adverse change i either
vanable may have the effect of reducing avaiiable capital as they may alsoc impact corresponding asset valuations

Assumptions - long-term trend differences in mortality, morbidity, expense or persistency rates will result in the need to change assumptions
This may require a strengthening or release of reserves Depending on policy type this sensitmty will differ, for example a change in mortality
rates will have a different impact for annuity contract hlabiities when compared to term assurance habilities In addition to persistency,
assumptions are made about policyholders’ behaviour in relation to guarantees and options In turn these assumptions are sensitive to both
nvestment return and interest rates

Further disclosure of the impact on the Unallocated divisible surpius from sensitmvity analysis Is provided in Note 3 Risk management and control
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2. Capital management (continued)
Financlal guarantees and options

a) Participating insurance contracts
As a normal part of operating activities, the Society has given guarantees and options, including interest rate guarantees, In respect of certamn
long-term insurance contracts

Provisicn 1s made for such guarantees and opttons within the FSA realistic habilities of the Group's participating insurance contract funds Under
the F5As rules these must be measured at fair value using market consistent stochastic models A stochastc approach includes measunng the
time value of guarantees and options, which represents the additional cost ansing from uncertainty surroundmg future economic conditions  The
time value 1s evaluated by projecting a {arge number of possible future outcomes under a wide range of economic scenanos, for example possible
outcomes for interest rates and equity returns These realisuc habilities have been included within the Statement of Financial Position

The maternal guarantees and options n the participating insurance contract funds are

1} Guaranteed annuity options - the RNPFN participating insurance contract fund has wrikten individual pensions which contain guaranteed annuity
rate options (GAOs), where the policyholder has the option to take the benefits from a policy In the form of an annuity based on guaranteed
conversion rates

iy Matunty value guarantees - many of the Group's participating Insurance contracts have minimum matunty values reflecting the sums assured
plus declared annual bonus

) Money-back guarantees - some of the policies wntten within the Group provide a guarantee or option to pay out all the premiumns paid in (at a
certain pomnt in time}

b) Non particlpating insurance contracts

The Group has also written contracts which include guarantees and options within its non participating insurance contract funds These funds
are not subject to the requirements of the FSAs realistic reporting regime and habilities are evaluated by reference to statutory reserving rules
Provision for guarantees and options m the non participating funds has been Included within hatlities

The matenal guarantees and options in the non participating insurance contract funds are guaranteed annurty options Similar options to those
written tn the participating insurance contract fund have been wntten in relation to non participating contracts Provision for these guarantees
does not matenally differ from a provision based on a market consistent stochastic model

c) No Negative Equity Guarantees
The Group has made promises to certamn policyholders in relation to equity release mortgages that payments on these policies will meet the
mortgage value covered Further details on these are disclosed within Note 15

3. Risk management and control

The Group seeks to create value for its members by maintaining an appropnate balance between the capital available 1o support nsk and the
level and type of nsk it takes on in order to achieve returns for policyholders The principal types of nsk, which are detalled below, have been
identified and nsk appetite for each of these has been set based on the amount necessary to meet the FSAs capital reqguirements The Group
recogntses the ¢ntical importance of having efficient and effective nsk management systems in place and these take the form of

- Board and Execubive committees with clear terms of reference

- Financial and nonfinancial committees

- A clear orgamsation structure with documented allocation of responsibilities

~ A umform methodalogy of nsk assessment, which 1s embedded within all companies in the Group so that they operate within agreed
tolerances and with appropriate controls in place

- Regular reviews of nsks by senior managers, where frequency of review 1$ determined by the potential impact of the nsk and its hkelihood

a) Insurance risk

Insurance risk 1s the nsk that arnises from the mherent uncertainties as to the occurrence, amount and timing of msurance llabilities Long-term
insurance nsk anses from mortality, morbidity, persistency and expense vanances General insurance nsk anses from nsks in general insurance
contracts which lead to significant ¢laims in terms of quantity or value These would mclude significant weather events, subsidence, substantial
medical claims and major acaidents on a simgle policy Systems are in place to measure, monitor and contro! exposure to all these nisks These
are documented In pohcies for underwnting, pricing, claims and reinsurance To mitigate nsk in the ife and general insurance businesses the
Group places reinsurance

Long-term Insurance contracts

Protecuion and annuity business ts at nsk from adverse changes in mortality expenence from the time when the policies were underwntten In the
case of policies that pay out on death, the nisk is that mortality experience worsens, whereas for annuities, the nsk 1s that mortality expenence
improves These two types of business therefore to some extent offset each other in a nsk sense On protection business, the Group uses
underwnting procedures, backed up with medical screening If appropniate, designed to price accurately for such risks and reinsurance 1s in place
to imit the quantum of nsk retained on each policy The Group s annuity busingss 1s parbially reassured
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3. Risk management and control {continued)

Income protection and entical iliness business Is at nisk from changes in morbidity rates Where there 1s an increased incidence of 1ll health

or an increase in the duration of such It health, the Group 1s exposed to higher claims than expected The Group has underwriting procedures,
including medical and financial screening If appropnate, to price accurately for such nsks and reinsurance 1S 11 place to mit the risk retained on
each policy

Persistency nsk mfiuences the ability to recover acquisiion costs from margins within the products The risk I1s greater n early years but reduces
significantly as time passes For long-term insurance contract liabihities there is an allowance built in to allow for future withdrawals

Higher than expected expense costs will increase the reserves required The Group 1s exposed to the nsk that the charges it deducts from
policyholder benefits are not sufficient to cover future expenses

The table below sets out the concentration of long-term insurance and mnvestment contract habilities on a realistic basis by type of contract
All business 1s written In the UK

2012 2011
Qross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Whole hife 1,462 6 (447) 11,4179 14267 (186) 1,4081
Endowment 678 7 - 6787 7589 - 758 9
Term Assurance 834 {116 3) (329) 450 (17 2) 322)
Guaranteed annuity pensions 1,281 9 (225) 1,2594 12697 (21 2) 1,2485
Pure endowment pensions 2,797 7 (199) 2,7778 2,108 4 (24 1) 2,084 3
Cntical illness 486 (333) 153 581 (38 1) 210
Income protection 67 ¢ {55 9) 111 96 3 (40 8) 555
ISA 698 - 698 687 - 687
Other 86 9 (4 8) 821 91 9 (30) 889
6,576.6 (287 4) 6,2792 59247 (223 0) 57017
Long-term claims habilities 42 4 - 424 400 - 400
Unit inked 964 6 - 964 6 806 9 - 8069
7,583 6 {297.4) 17,2862 6,771 6 (223 0Q) 6,5486

The table below sets out the impact on long-term insurance contract liabilities, the Unallocated divistble surplus and Profit before tax for
movements In key assumptions

Impact en

gross

Impact on the long term

Impacton  Unallocated  insurance

Profit befora divisible contract

tax surplus Itabliities

Sensitlvity analysis for the change in assumptions used In long-term Insurance contract liabllitles £m £m £m
Increase in mortality rates by 5% 428 42 8 {14 7}
Increase in morbidity rates by 5% {8 0) (80) 244
Reduction 1n persistency by 5% 01 o1 63

Increase in expenses by 10% (15 6) {15 6) 216
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3. Risk management and control {continued)
General tnsurance

The Group’s general nsurance ( GI') activities are pnmanly concerned with the pricing, accepting and management of nsks from its policyholders
in accepting nsks the Group 1s committing to paying claims and therefore these rnisks must be understood The Group manages these nsks
through its underwnting strategy, reinsurance arrangements and proactive claims handhing

For a portfelio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability 1s applied to pnicing and prowisioning, the principal nsk that the Group faces
under its insurance contracts IS the nsk that actual claims exceed the carrying value of the Group’s insurance llabilites The risk anses from the
inherent uncertainties as to the occurrence, amount and timeng of Insurance claims For general insurance contracts this 1s pnmarnly represented
by exposure to nsks which may lead to significant claims in terms of frequency or value These would include sigrificant weather events,
subsidence and {arge single claims ansing from either the moter business {inury claims) or SME business (hability and/or property claims)
Procedures are in place to measure, monitor and control exposure to all these risks

Expenence shows that the larger the portfolio of similar nsurance contracts, the smaller the relative vanability about the expected outcome will
be In addiion, a more diverstfied portfolio 1s less ikely to be affected by a change in any subset of the portfolio The Group has developed its
insurance underwnting strategy to diversify the type of insurance nsks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large
population of nsks to reduce the vanakility of the expected outcome

Property business (domestic and commercial) i1s exposed to catastrophic nsks such as result from storms or floods as well as nsks such as
subsidence The Group has entered into reinsurance contracts which provide protection against catastrophic weather events

Motor business 1s exposed to the nisk of large personal injury claims, where the claim amounts can be significant due to the cost of care required
for the clarmant The Group has entered into excess of loss reinsurance contracts which reduce its exposure to large claims The reinsurance
retention 1s £5 Om per claim (2011 £5 Om per claim)

Commercial business 1s exposed to large mdwvidual property losses and also to habilities ansing from employment and commercial actmvties
The Group has entered Iinto reinsurance contracts which provide protection against these liabililies

The Group has histonc Quota share and Excess of loss reinsurance contracts which reduce the Group’s exposure to large claims

The table below sets out the concentration of General insurance contract habilities by type of contract

2012 2011

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Rensurance Nat

Group £m £m £m £m Em £m
Motor 1,071 5 (117 8) 953 7 857 3 (843) 7630
Household 878 {0 2) 576 539 - 539
Travel 1.0 - 10 10 - 10
Commercial 153 4 (17 0) 136 4 114 8 (66) 1082
Other 34 - 34 29 - 29
1,287.1 (1350) 1,1521 1,029 9 (1009) 9290

The claims provision is the estimated cost of outstanding clams from expired nisks The provision 1s calculated largely from using our own histonc
claims development data How much the past claim development will reflect future claims development will be impacted by the following factors

® Changes In actuanal processes and methodology

® Changes in nsk profile

& Changes in underwnting, rating and policy conditions

* Changes in legislation and reguliation {e g Penodic Payment Orders (‘PPOs'), Mirustry of Justice reforms, changes to the Ogden discount rate, ete)
® Changes in other external factors (e g claims farming/accident management firms)

It 1s therefore very important that the impact of these items on claims development 1s understood Whilst every effort has been made to ensure
the claims provision appropriately allows for such changes, there remains uncertainty in the eventual reserve outcome as a result
This uncertainty can change from year to year depending on the timing and magnitude of these items

The Group has identified two specific areas of uncertainty that it has exphicitly allowed for within the clarms provision but where the outcome could
be worse than the amount allowed for These are

¢ Uncertainty in the proportion of claims identified by the Group as being likely to settle on a PPO basis that actually settle on a PPO basis
® Uncertainty in relation to the Ogden discount rate

The claims proviston includes a specific allowance for claims idenufied as having the potential 1o settle on a PPO basis This allowance 15 based
on the mean cost of claims derved from a range of scenanos based on the PPO settlement rate for the claims If all of these claims settled as
PPOs, the reserves would deteriorate by an estimated £8 6m from the position shown above
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3. Risk management and control (continued)

The Ogden discount rate 1s set by the Lord Chancellor 1t i1s currently 2 5% but a revision 1s under consideration with a decision possible
by late 2013 Whilst there are many views across the industry in terms of what the change should be, the general consensus Is that a
reduction 1n the rate 1s likely The claims provision has included an allowance for a change in the Ogden discount rate, using a scenano
based approach as for PPOs The allowance is broadly equivalent to a reduction in the discount rate to 1 75% If the discount rate was to
reduce to 1 5%, the claims provision would detenorate by £4 4m A reduction 10 1% would lead to a detenoration of £14 3m

The claims provision i1s also sensitive to the number and cost of large motor claims (defined as greater than £1m}, which have been
incurred but not reported and reserved We would typically expect a number of large claims from expired risks to be identified in the
future, either from being newly reported or from existing claims increasing in magnitude above the £1m threshold The claims provision
allows for £23 7m of late reported/reserved large claims Therefore, if six new claims at £5m each were reported, for example, this would
lead to a £6 3m detenoration in the reserves, whereas four new £5m claims would lead to a £3 7m improvement

The tables below reflect the cumulative incurred claims including both claims notified and incurred but not reported (‘'IBNR'} for each
successive accident year at each Statement of Financial Position date, together with the cumulative payments to date The Group aims to
maintain appropriate reserves in order to protect against adverse future ¢laims expenence and developments

Analysis of claims development 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 2012 Total
- gross of reinsurance £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m m
Initial estimate of gross provision 3969 5009 5215 5510 5602 5396 6069 7712 9064 10862

One year later 4028 4872 5236 5275 5126 5402 5892 8230 9125

Two years later 3804 4663 4945 5051 4894 5002 5892 8385

Three years later 3563 4500 4721 4902 4859 4900 5879

Four years later 3464 4378 4626 4772 4876 4810

Five years later 3436 4347 4573 4775 4925

Six years later 3428 4360 4576 4766

Seven years later 3429 4359 4547

Eight years later 3424 4361

Nine years later 3446

Current estimate of cumulative claims 3446 4361 4547 4766 4925 4910 5879 8385 9125 1,0862 61206
Cumulative payments to date {336 6) (428 2) (451 2) (469 5) (461 3) (461 5) (515 3) (654 6) (6507) (455 2)(4,8841)

Liabihty recognised in the Statement
of Financial Positicn for 2003 to 2012
accident years 80 79 35 71 312 295 726 1839 2618 6310 12365

Liabilty recognised n the Statement of
Financial Position n respect of
prior accident years 338

Claims handling provision 168

Gross General Insurance claims
liabllities as at 31 December 2012 1,2871
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Analgsls of claims development 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Total
- net of reinsurance m £m £m £m £m £m im £m £m £m £m
Imtial estimate of net provision 3574 4456 4842 5134 5058 5068 5840 7621 8972 10606

One year later 3643 4371 4738 4747 4629 4829 5780 8029 8971

Two years later 3528 4158 4392 4670 4402 4640 bs47 8189

Three years later 3281 4070 4295 4514 4411 4567 5621

Four years later 3275 3932 4234 4437 4301 4576

Five years later 3166 3915 4219 4419 4313

Six years later 3147 3927 4211 4412

Seven years later 3152 3894 4198

Erght years later 3166 3910

Nine years later 3199

Current estimate of cumulative claims 3199 3910 4198 4412 4313 4576 5621 8189 8971 10606 65,7995
Cumulative payments to date (315 3) (3886) (417 2) (434 3) (420 3)(434 4) (506 8) (653 5) (6458) (4552) 46714

Liability recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position for 2003 to 2012
accident years 46 24 26 69 110 232 553 1654 2513 6054 1,1281

Liability recogrused in the Statement of
Financial Position in respect of

prior accident years 72
Claims handling provision 16 8
Net General Insurance claims

liabilitles as at 31 December 2012 11521

b} Financial risk

i} Market risk

Market nisk 1s the risk of adverse or favourable impacts due to fluctuations in equity prices, interest rates (including credit spreads and
bond yields}, exchange rates or property prices It anses due to fluctuations in iabiliies ansing from products sold and the value of
investments held The Group has defined policies and procedures in place to control the major components of market nsk Threadneedle
Asset Management Ltd i1s our investment manager who operates under contractual Investment Management Agreements Assets are
Invested under agreed investment guidelines that reflect the Group s tnvestment risk appetite Investment performance 1s monitored
closely by the Group Chief Investment Officer and the Investment Committee in order to ensure compliance with the relevant regulatory
limits for solvency purposes and with guidehnes set for each fund Investments held are primarily listed on recognised stock exchanges

Limits on the Group's exposure to equities are defined both 1n aggregate terms and by geography, industry and counterparty Tactical asset
allocation meetings are held weekly, and strategic asset allocatton meetings guarterly, to discuss Investment return and concentration and
to agree any changes required

Equity price risk

The Group 15 exposed to equity price nsk from daily fluctuations in the market values of the equity portfollo These assets are used to
support contractual habilities ansing from investment and long-term insurance contracts For investment and long term linked insurance
contracts the price movements are matched with corresponding movements in contractual obligations For partictpating insurance
contracts the aim (s to achieve growth in excess of the obligations The associated rnisk i1s hedged using derwvatives For general insurance
contracts, eqguities are held to achieve an investment return The associated nsk 1s mitigated by investing in a diverse portfolio of high
guality secunties Holdings are diversified across ndustries and concentrations i any one company or industry are hmited by parameters
established by the Investment Committee

Interest rate risk

The Group monitors mterest rate risk by calculating the mean duration of the investment portfolio and the habilities 1ssued The mean
duration 1s an indicator of the sensitivity of the assets and liabilittes to changes in current interest rates The mean duration of the
habities 1s determined by means of projecting expected cash flows from the contracts using best estimates of mortality and voluntary
terminations The mean duration of the assets 1s calculated in a consistent manner Duning 2012 the Group managed this nsk through an
active use of gilt yield hedges, in the form of contracts for differences

Credit spread risk

In addition to Interest rate nsk, described above, a widening of corporate bonds spreads over and above nsk-free ytelds will lead to a fall

in the fair value of the Group’s portfolio of corporate bonds and viceversa For the investment and long-term hnked insurance contracts
this movement 1s matched with corresponding movements 1n contractual iabihties, for the general insurance business liabilities are
undiscounted and so unaffected in current value by changes in credit spreads The Group momitors Credit spread nisk by regularly reviewing
Its expasure to corporate bonds by both credit rating and duration
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3. Risk management and control (continued)

Currency risk
The Group 15 exposed to foreign currency exchange nsk within the investment portfolio supporting the Group's operations from purchased
investments that are denominated or payable in currencies other than stering There 1s no other exposure {0 currency nsk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure, after hedging, to foreign currency exchange risk in sterling

2012 2011

Eure U5 Dollar Yen Other Tota! Euro US Dollar Yen Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m im £m £m £m

Derwvatives {34 6) (46 8) - (6 1) (87 3) (13 1} (32 4) - {4 1) {49 6)
Equity securities 879 1368 609 1035 3891 105 1 2053 590 906 460 0
Debt secunties 240 430 - - 67.0 89 323 33 05 450
Other investments 146 - - - 14 6 27 - - - 27
Cash and cash equivalents 113 56 - 02 17.1 217 37 01 04 259
103 2 1388 609 97 6 400 5 125 3 208 9 62 4 87 4 484 0

The sensitivity of investment assets to a 10% increase/decrease in Euro and US Dollar exchange rates, net of derivatives, 1s £10 3m
and £13 9m respectively In determining the percentage rates to use In this sensitivity analysis the movements in actual market rates
of Euro and US Dollars during 2012 was taken into account The above table incorporates all material currency risk to profit before tax
Therefore, a 10% increase/decrease across all currencies could impact profit before tax by up to £40 1m

Some foreign debt secunties are denominated in sterling $o bear no currency nsk and have not been included within the above table
Eurozone exposure

The Group has some exposure to the main countnes involved in the ongoing difficulties being experienced within the Eurpzone as
disclosed below, the table shows the Group's exposure by country of incarporation of the counterparty at 31 December 2012

ign Non-S ign Total &

£m £m £m
Ireland - 3328 3328
ltaly 04 35.9 36.3
Portugal - 2.7 2.7
Spain - 90.3 90.3
France - 322.6 3226
Other Eurozone - 872.6 8726
Total 04 1,656.9 1,657.3

The Group has no exposure to either Greece or Cyprus Non-sovereign exposure inctudes £74m of subordinated debt

Property price nsk

The Group 15 exposed to property price risk on the ¢commercial properties it holds as investments Values of properties are determined
from the future value of cash flows and the Group enters into leases following an assessment of the tenant's ability to pay the rent
and service charges For investment and long-term linked insurance contracts the pnce movements are matched with corresponding
movements in contractual obligations For participating insurance contracts the aim s to achieve growth in excess of the obligations
The associated nsk 1s mitigated by investing in a diverse portfohio of high quality properties

Derivative risk

Dervatives are used to reduce exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates and for efficient portfolio management :
purposes The principal derivatives used for this function are interest rate contracts (including mterest rate swaps and options), forward
foreign exchange contracts and equity denvatives {index futures and options) respectively This risk 1s managed through the Group Asset

and Liability Committee

Asset and liability matching

The Group manages its financial positions with an asset hability management (ALM) framework that has been developed to achieve long-
term investment returns in excess of its obligations under insurance and nvestment contracts The principal techmque of the Group's
ALM 1s to match assets to the habilities ansing from insurance contracts by reference to the type of benefits payable to contract holders

The Group's ALM 1s integrated with the management of the financial risks associated with the Group's other financial assets and
habilities not directly associated with insurance and investment liabilities
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Summary of market risk sensttivities
The table below sets out the impact on long-term insurance contract labilities, the Unallocated divisible surplus and Profit before tax for
movements In sectors of the market that the Group s invested in, net of denvatives

Impact

on gross

Impact on the long-term

Impact on  Unallocated  [nsurance

Profit before divisitle contract
tax surplus llabilities
Sensitivity analysls to movements In key market sectors
£m £m £m
Equity values fall by 20% {36.5) (35 8) (1905)
Equity values increase by 20% 50.9 501 180.8
Property values fall by 12 5% (10 3} (10 3) (15.7)
Property values increase by 12 5% 101 101 173
Credit spreads fall by 100bps 709 604 1691
Credit spreads increase by 100bps (66 4) (56 4) (157 1)
15 year Gilt yields fall by 17 5% 24.6 232 264 3
15 year Gilt yietds increase by 17 5% (21.2) (20.0) (240 8)

In determining the percentage rates to use in the sensitivity analysis the Group has made reference to those set by the regulators for
calculating the risk capital margin

Asset values and, where appropnate, asset shares are adjusted to reflect the change i each sensitivity Future policy related babihties
are recalculated using these revised values and, where appropniate, economic scenarios generated by an asset model calibrated to the
revised nsk free rate

il} Credit risk
Credit risk 1s the nsk of loss due to counterparties failing to meet all or part of their obligations in a timely fashion

The principal credit nsks anse from exposure to counterparties through exposure to corporate bonds, reinsurers’ share of insurance
llabiities, amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid, amounts due from insurance contract holders, amounts due
from insurance intermedianes ang counterparty nsk with respect to derivative transactions

Policies are in place to control the major components of credit ngk, including counterparty default and concentration nsk The Group
places mits on its exposure to a single counterparty, or groups of counterpartes, and to geographical and industry segments

Remnsurance I1s used to manage insurance rnisk This does not, however, discharge the Group’s liability as pnmary insurer If a reinsurer
fails to pay a claim, the Group remains liable for the payment to the policyholder The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered by
reviewing their financial strength prior to finalisation of any contract and on an annual basis

sassamsng Mo | SMIATY PUR SIIIUINEIG

The tables below show the credit profile of the Group's assets The credit nsk profile of the Society 1s materially consistent with that of
the Group

Balow ;f
AAA AA A BEB BBB Not rated Total L
Credit risk exposure 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt and other fixed income securities 3,006 2 4020 41,7123 11265 336 325 6,313.1 E
Loans secured on residential property - - - - - 415 3 415 3 g
Other - - - - - 54 54 5
Deposits with credit institutions - - - - - 146 146
Loans secured by policies - - - - - 04 04 -
Other loans - - - - - 03 03 o
Shortterm deposits - 375 2502 - - 509 3386 g
3,006 2 4395 19625 1,1265 336 5194 7,087.7 2
Reinsurance assets ?
- non linked - 2850 897 10 - 360 411 7 i}
- Iinked - 355 - - - - 355 E
3,006 2 7600 2,0522 1,1275 336 6554 7,5349 a
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Below
AMA AA A 888 BBB Not rated Total
Credit nsk exposure 2011 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt and other fixed income securties 290471 3821 12360 628 4 337 337 53410
Loans secured on residential property - - - - - 3342 3342
Other - - - - - 17 17
Loans secured by policies - - - - - 08 o6
Other loans - - - - - 04 04
Short-term deposits - 550 501 9 10 - 43 562 2
2,947 1 4471 17379 69% 4 337 3749 86,2401
Reinsurance assets
- non linked 35 1855 889 - - 360 3139
- linked - 230 - - - - 230
2,9506 6556 1,8268 699 4 337 4109 86,5770
The tables below show the age analysis of the Group's past due and/or impaired assets
Total past Past dus
<30 days 31to 81 to =90 days due but and Total
Age analysis of assets past due 60 days 90 days not Impalred Impatred
but not impaired 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans and ather receivables - - - - - - -
insurance recewvables 5.5 39 18 56 16 8 06 17 4
56 39 18 56 16 8 06 174
Total past Past due
<30 cays 31to 61 to >390 days due but and Total
Age analysis of assets past due 60 days 90 days not impaired smpaired
but not impaired 2011 £m £m £m im £m £m £m
Loans and other receivables 01 - - - 01 01 02
Insurance receivables 64 27 01 Q7 99 06 105
65 27 01 a7 100 07 107

Collateral
For over-the-counter denvative transactions undertaken by the Group, collateral 1s receved from the counterparty The collateral can be sold or

repledged by the Group and 15 repayable If the contract terminates or the contract’s fair value decreases At 31 December 2012, the fair value of

such collateral held was £65 5m (2011 £131 4m} No collateral received from the counterparty has been sold or repledged (2011 £ril)

In addition the Group has pledged £67 Om (2011 £m) of corporate bonds as collateral in relation to cash flow swaps entered into dunng the year
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3. Risk management and control (continued)
ill) Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk is the risk that the Group does not have sufficient available hquid assets to meet i1ts obligations as they fall due

Sources of quidity nisk have been dentified and systems are i place to measure, monitor and control lquidity exposures
These are documented in Lquidity policies

Liquidity 1s maintained at a prudent level, with a buffer to cover contingencies including the provision of temporary liquidity to
subsidiary companies

The matunty of the financial assets of the Group has been disclosed within the individual notes to the financial statements
The table below summanses the matunty profile of the financial Liabilities of the Group based on remaining undiscounted contractual

obligations, except for longterm insurance participating (commonly referred to as “with-profits”™) contracts where matunty profiles are
determined on the discounted estimated tuming of net cash outflows

Within 1 13 35 Over 5

Group year years yoars years Linked Total
Maturity profile of flnanclal liabititles 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Insurance contract liabilittes 497 1 646 0 340 7 65,3506 770 7,911 4
Investment contract habilities - - - - 9593 9523
Net asset value attnibutable to unit holders 5039 - - - - 503 9
Provisions 590 73 03 - - 66 6
Financiaf iabtities

- Denvative financial instruments - - - 51.2 - 512
- Other financial iabilities 655 03 - 97 - 755
Insurance payables 44 7 - - - - 44 7
Trade and other payables 1900 24 24 882 - 2830

1,360 2 656 0 3434 64997 1,0363 9,8956

Within 1 13 35 Cver §

Group year years years years Linked Total
Matunty profile of financial lrabilittes 2011 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Insurance contract lizbilities 4439 6196 3641 55154 576 7,0006
Investment contract liabiliies - - - - 8009 8009
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 4291 - - - - 4291
Provisions 65 a8 1 08 Q7 - 56 1
Financtal habilities

- Derivative financial instruments - 38 - - - 38
- Other financial labilites 671 - - 101 - 772
Insurance payables 416 - - - - 416
Trade and other payables 2017 23 24 89 4 - 2958

1,189 9 6738 3673 56156 8585 8,7051

For investment and long-term linked insurance contracts (umt linked) the Group matches all the assets on which the urit prices are
based with assets in the portfolio Therefore the Group 1s not expesed to price, currency, credit or interest nsk in respect of these
contracts The Group IS responsible for ensunng there 1s sufficient iquidity within the asset portfolio to enable habilities to unit hinked
policyholders to be met as they fall due
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Within 1 13 35 Cver 5
Soclety year yoars years years Linked Total
Maturity profile of financial liabilities 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m
insurance contract habilities 773 104 0 1644 66,1806 T0 66033
Investment contract llabilities - - - - 959 3 9593
Prowisions 578 50 03 - - 631
Financial habihties

- Denvative finanoial instruments - - - 512 - 512
- Other financial habilities 666 06 05 147 - 814
insurance payables 26 2 - - - - 262
Trade and other payables 136 2 - - - - 1362

363 1 1096 1652 6,2465 1,0363 7,9207

within 1 13 as Over 5

Socuety year years years years Linked Total
Maturity profile of financial habilities 2011 £m £m £m £m £m im
Insurance contract habilittes 107 8 1903 1847 5405 8 576 59462
Investment contract habilies - - - - 800 9 8009
Provisions 51 46 8 04 - - 523
Financiat liabihties

- Denvative financial Instrumenis - 38 - - - 38
- Other finanaial labikties 66 8 59 - - - 727
Insurance payables 316 - - - - 316
Trade and other payables 147 4 - - - - 147 4

358 7 246 8 1851 54058 8585 7,0549

v} Other risk types

Operational risk
Operational nisk 15 the nsk of loss, resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, systems, human error or from external events,
including legal and regulatory nsk

Senor managers are responsible for the identification, assessment, contrel and monitoring of operational nsks and for reporting these to the
Risk Committee 1in accordance with the Group's escalation critenia Operational nsks are assessed in terms of their probability and rmpact in
accordance with Group policy

Group risk
Group risk 1s the rnisk of contagion that the Society incurs from its membership of a group of firms The Group Risk Committee oversees the
management of such risks

Strategic risk
Strategic nsk 1s the risk ansing from the implementation of agreed strategy It includes nisks ansing from political, economic, sociological and
technological changes, competitor acttons and capital adequacy

Executive management identifies strategic nsks when drawing up business plans for approval by the Board and monitors these, ensunng that
excess sk is reported to the Group Risk Commuttee and Board
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Performance

The notes Included within this section focus on the performance and results of the Soclety and Group Information on the Income generated,
benefits and clalms paid, expenditure incurred and mutual bonus declared are presented here

4. Net earned premiums

Accounting for net earned premiums
Long-term insurance contracts

Regular premiums on long-term mnsurance contracts are recognised as income when due for payment For single premium business, recognition
occurs on the date from which the policy is effective Reinsurance premiums payable are accounted for when due for payment

Annual premium equivalent {APE)}, a measure of new business actiity that I1s calculated as the sum of annualised regular premiums from new

business plus ten per cent of single premiums on new business written dunng the perod

General insurance contracts

General insurance premiums wntten reflect business coming into force during the year Earned premium 1s wntten premium adjusted for unearned
premium Unearned premium s that proportion of a premium written in a year that relates to penods of risk after the Statement of Financial
Position date Unearned premuims are ¢alculated on a time apportionment basis The proportion attributable to subsequent penods 1s deferred

as a provision for unearned premiums

Investment contracts

Premiums and claims relating to investment contracts are not recogntsed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income but are recorded as

contributions to and deductions from the investment contract habihties recorded in the Statement of Financial Position

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
Gross written premlums £m £m £m £m
Long-term insurance contracts - participating business
Investments and savings - single premium 615 457 615 457 o
Pensions and annuities - single premium 108 87 108 87 =
Investments and savings - regular premium 44 3 529 44 3 529 ,5,
Pensions and annuities - regular premium 152 169 152 169 E
2
Long-term Insurance contracts - non participating business ;
Pensions and annuities - single premium 6773 6011 6773 601 1 i
investments and savings - regular premtum 03 05 01 D2 w
Pensions and annuities - regular premium 68 77 68 77
Life and health protection - regutar premium 131.7 1169 131.2 116 4 9
Long-term linked insurance contracts ;-‘:
Investments and savings - regular premium 03 09 03 09 ]
Pensions and annuities - regular premium 04 18 04 18 %
Life and heaith protection - regular premium 112 105 112 105 “
General Insurance contracts -
Motor 1,1091 1,1249 - - =
Household 140 3 1288 - - £
QOther 2355 2019 - - z
Change n unearned prermums provision 15 {122 7) - - og
Gross earned premiums 24462 219656 9591 8628 3
[}
=]
Premlums ceded to reinsurers -
Longterm insurance premiums (75 6) (68 1) {75 ©) (98 7) o
General Insurance business (35 0) (27 7) - - -§
Change 1n unearned premiums provision 18 28 - - a
{108 8) (23 0) {75 6) (99 7) g,
Net earned premlums 2,3374 2,1035 8835 7631 Z
]
Gross written prermums for investment contracts %
which are deposit accounted for and not included above 2700 2140 270 0 214 0Q

Ali contracts are wnitten in the UK apart from Highway Insurance Company Limited which wntes a proportion of its general insurance business In

Iretand These Insh net earned premiums totalied £3 9min 2012 (2011 £10 1m)
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5. New business premiums

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
Gross new business — long-term contracts £m im £m £m
Long-term Iinsurance contracts - participating business
Investments and savings - single premium 61.5 457 615 457
Pensions and annuties - single premium 108 87 108 87
Investrents and savings - regular premium 09 11 0.9 11
Long-term insurance contracts - non participating business
Pensions and annuities - sINgle premium 6773 6011 6773 6011
Life and health protection - regular premium 265 238 265 238
Long-term linked insurance contracts
Pensions and annutties - regular premium - o4 - 04
Life and health protection - regular premium 43 32 43 32
7813 684 0 7813 684 0
Investment contracts
Pensions and annuities - regular premium 2700 2140 2700 2140
1,051 3 898 0 1,051 3 898 0
Gross wnitten premiums for investment contracts are deposit accounted for and not ncluded within net earned premiums
All gross new business prermiums relate to individual business and are disclosed on an APE basis
Recurrent single premium rebates from the Department for Works and Pensions are included as new business single premiums
Pensions vested into annuity contracts dunng the year are included as new annuity single premiurn business at the annuity purchase price
Where penodic premiums are receved other than annually, the penodic new business premiums are stated on an annualised basis
2012 2011
Group gross premiums earned - general business £m £m
Motor 1,133 3 1,030 5
Household 135 2 12086
Commercial 151 9 1280
Other 66 0 538
1,486 4 1,332 9

6. Fee and commission iIncome

Accounting for fee and commission income

Fees from investment contracts for investment management, other policy administration charges and fund management fees are recognised as
income when earned Cornmussion earned from financial intermediary services 1S taken to income when earned This pnmanly compnses initial
commission income recevable on services provided to clients dunng the year when policies have gone on risk and renewal commission receved

durning the year on an accruals basis

Group Saciety
2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated
£m £m £m £m
Policy administration fees 133 116 63 48
Fund management fees - 27 - -
Commission Income 32 42 03 03

165 i85 66 52
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7. Investment income

Accounting for investment income

Investment income Includes dividends, interest from nvestments at fair value, interest on loans and receivables, interest on loans secured on
residentral property and rents Dividends are included on an ex-dividend basis Interest recewable on loans and receivables s calculated on an
effective interest rate basis The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financia! iInstrument or, when appropnate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financia! hability

Group Soclaty
2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated

£m im £m £m

Rental income from investment properties 61 74 61 74
Income from investments at fair value through income

- Interest \ncome 2046 123 2 1650 126 8

- Dimdend income 96 6 117 4 716 712

Interest on loans and recewvables 08 17 03 09

Interest on lpans secured on residential property 121 117 - -

Dwidend income from group undertakings - - 940 786

3202 261 4 3370 2849

8. Net gains/(losses) on investments

Accounting for net galns / (losses) on investments
- Realised gatns or losses
Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and purchase price

- Unrealised gains and losses

Unrealised gains and tosses on investments represent the difference between the valuation of far value assets at the Statement of Financial
Position date and their valuation at the last Statement of Financial Position date, or where purchased dunng the year, the purchase price An
adjustment I1s made to unrealsed gains and losses for the prior year's unrealised element included in the current year s realised gains and losses

Group Soclety

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m m

Investment properties (12) {19} 12} 19
Investments at fair value through Income

- Debt secunties 109 0 3503 86 4 3351

- Equity securities 295.0 (331} 2415 {34 5)

- Denvatives at fair value through income (28.1) 1101 (22 6) 1086

Investments in group undertakings - - (90 0} (34 4)

3747 425 4 214 1 3729

Included within net gains on investments are realised gams of £148 8m (2011 £174 4m) for the Group and realised gains of £126 Om
(2011 £114 9m) for the Society
9. Other income

Accounting for other income
Cther income primanly relates to interest receivable and unit linked \ncome

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Interest recevable 221 17 6 01 02
Unit inked income 55 38 55 38
Other income 141 296 03 i51
31,7 510 59 191
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10. Net benefits and claims

Accounting for net benefits and claims

Long-term Insurance contracts

Maturity ¢claims and regular annuity payments are accounted for when due for payment Surrenders are accounted for on the earlier of the date
when paid or when the policy ceases to be included within the long-term insurance contract llability Death clarms and other claims are accounted
for when the Group 1s notified The value of claims on participating insurance contracts includes bonuses paid or payable Claims values include
related internal and external claims handling costs Reinsurance recovenes are accounted for in the same penod as the related claim

General Insurance contracts

Claims incurred comprise claims and related internal and external ¢claims handling costs paid 1n the year and changes in the provisions

for outstanding claims, including provisions for claims incurred but not reported and related claims handhing costs, together with any other
adjustments to claims from previous years

The estimated cost of claims Includes expenses to be incurred in setthng claims and a deduction for the expected value of recoveries However, it
1s likely that the final outcome wull prove to be different from the original lability established Provisions are adjusted at the Statement of Financial
Position date to represent an estimate of the expected outcome

Group Soclaty
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Gross beneflts and claims
Long-term insurance contracts
Benefits and claims paid 649 3 667 7 6442 6618
Change n the provision for claims 24 (4 6) 24 {4 5)
General Insurance contracts
Claims paid 910 3 8165 - -
Change in the provision for ¢claims 257 3 1897 - -
1,8193 16693 646 6 657 3
Clalms ceded to reinsurers
Long-term Insurance contracts \
Benefits and claims paid (61 8) (54 5) (618) (1024}
General insurance contracts
Claims paid (14 9) (T 4} - -
Change in the provision for clams {34 1) (24 5) - -
(1210 8B) (86 4) (618) (1024)
1,7085 15829 584 8 554 9
Net benefits and claims for investment contracts which are deposit
accounted for and not included above (refer to Note 17) 192 6 1205 1926 1205
11. Finance costs
Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m im
Interest expense on loans and borrowings 05 05 - -

05 05 - _
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12. Other operating and administrative expenses

Accounting for other operating and administrative expenses

Other operating and admtnistrative expenses are accounted for as incurred Acquisition costs relate to the costs of acquinng new
business dunng the financial year These include all comrmission and mcentive payments to sales staff and third parties incurred in
writing new contracts Where the benefit of these costs will be recognised in future accounting periods the costs are deferred

Group Soclaty
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Commission paid on acquisition of business 195.6 184 2 577 50 1
Movement in deferred acguisition costs (5.4) {14 Q) - -
Whnte—off following termination of rensurance contract (see Note 23} - 881 - - .
Amortisation of intangible assets 12.0 130 46 47
Depreciation on property and equipment - owned 2.5 17 a8 08
Depreciation on property and equipment - finance leases 09 09 - -
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 04 - 04 01
Investment management expenses and charges 12 8 38 165 236
Auditors remuneration 22 14 1.6 o7
Employee benefits expense 216 4 2097 216 4 2007
Impairment of financial assets 04 (0 4) - 01
Management charge allocated to group undertakings - - {1911) (iBE 8}
Rent, rate and other facilities expense 286 18 2 211 132
Marketing and advertising 459 404 192 158
Other staff costs 307 290 131 143
IT costs 394 458 216 237
Fees 583 611 250 279 ®
QOther expenses 278 14 0 177 50 §
Claims handling cost recognised in Gross benefits and claims {60 0) (47 1) {6 0) (31 2) i !
608 5 619 8 218 6 171 7 E
=
oo
13. Auditors’ remuneration g
2012 2011 g
£Em £m e——n
Audit of Society 04 05
Fees payable to the Society’s auditors and Its associates for other services E’
- Audit of subsidianes 05 03 o
- Audit-related assurance services 02 02 E
- Tax advisory services o1 01 2
- Other non-audit services not covered above 1.0 03 &
22 14
14. Mutual Bonus .
The Board declared a mutual bonus of £20 9m (2011 £18 6m) In respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 ";‘
5
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Financial assets and liabllitles

This sectlon presents informatlon relating to the financia! assets and llabilitles (excluding insurance contract-related assets and
iiabilitles which are disclosed In Note 20) held by the Society and Group These financia! asset and liabillties are held at elther falr
value or amortised cost as defined by the Group’s accounting policies

15. Financlal assets - Fair value through income

Accounting for financial assets and habilities at fair value through income
Financial assets at fair value through income has two sub categones

— Financial assets held for trading, and
- Those designated at fair value through income at inception

All investments of the Group classified as far value are designated as fair value through income at inception Such assets are measured
at market prices, or prices consistent with market ratings should no price be avallable Any unrealised or realised gains or losses are
taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, as fair value gains or losses, or realised gains or losses respectively, as they occur

Financial assets at fair value through income include hsted and unlisted investments, units in authonsed unit trusts, open ended
investment companies (OEICs), loans secured on residential property and other investments

Financial habihties at fair value through income include dervative financial mstruments and investment contract habilities, see Notes 16
and 17 respectively

The IFRS “farr value hierarchy” levels for financial assets and liabilities required under IFRS7 are disclosed within Note 18

Loans secured on residential property

The fair value of the loans secured on residential property 1s determined using discounted cash flows which take into account the
interest rolled up on the loans, maturity profiles and expected future funding costs The swap rate used as an input to the discount rate
15 matched to the expected term of the underlying loans A 'No Negative Equity Guarantee lability 1s farr valued using discounted cash
flows and 15 netted off against the fair value of the assets

A Group undertaking provides ‘No Negative Equity Guarantee' contracts to customers on equity release mortgages The contractual terms
of these guarantees require the company to make payments equivalent to any shortfall between the market value of customers’ property
and the value of the loan plus accrued interest at the date of redemption

The guarantee 1S initially recognised at the fair value of the Liability on the date the guarantee is given and 1s subsequently measured at
fair value The farr value 15 calculated by applying stochastic scenario models, applying assumptions for interest rates, future house price
inflation and 1its volatility, mortality rates and early loan repayment rates, to give management's best estimate of the discounted value of
cash flows required to settle any future financial obligation ansing at the Statement of Financial Position date

The guarantee 1s included within Financial assets — Fair value through income in the Statement of Financial Position The movement in
the fair value of the guarantee 1s taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Falr value of financial assets

Market observable inputs are used wherever possible In the absence of an actve market, estimation of fair value Is achieved by using
valuation techniques such as recent arm'’s length transacttons, discounted cash flow analysis and option prcing models For discounted
cash flow analysis, estimated future cash flows and discount rates are based on current market information and rates applicable

to financial iInstruments with similar yields, credit quality and matunty charactenstics This valuation will also take into account the
marketability of the assets being valued

Details of the key assumptions used in the absence of an active market are contained in the fair value estimation tables, as required by
IFRSY, disclosed in Note 18
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15. Financial assets — Falr value through income {continued)

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets - Fair value through income
Shares, other vanable yield secunties and units in umit trusts
~ UK listed 2,10678 1,7253 3,051.7 2,756 3
- UK unlisted 112.3 1139 1123 1139
- Overseas hsted 4373 409 5 70.5 485
- Overseas unhisted 929 947 92.0 915
Debt and other fixed income secunties
- UK listed 41899 38412 2,595.7 2,198 9
— Overseas listed 21232 11,4998 765.2 5320
Loans secured on residential property 4153 3342 366.2 1111 w
Other 54 17 53 17
Loan to group undertaking - - - 162 2
94841 80203 7,058 9 6,016 1
Within one year 3,186 2 1,8523 3,5104 2,114 1
Over one year 86,2979 6,1680 3,548 5 3,202 0
94841 80203 7,058 9 6,016 1
Assets held to cover inked labilities mcluded above 1,000 8 8558 1,0008 8558

The loan to group undertaking was designated at fair value through income within the Society to avoid an accounting mismatch across
the Group, the loan was repaid in 2012 .

16. Derivative financial instruments

Accounting for derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are imtially recognised at fair value on the date on which a dernvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value There are no designated hedging relationships within the Group that qualfy for hedge accounting,
all are classified as held for trading

Changes in the farr value of denivative instruments are recognised immediately in gams or losses on investments in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the period Realised gans or losses are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on occurrence

2012 2011
Contract/ Contract/
notional Falr vatue Falr valuo notional Fair value Fair value
amournt - nssot = Hability amount - asset — llaisty
Group £m £m £m £m im £m
Interest rate swaps 6350 200 - 486 9 64 2 - I
Gilt hedges 14171 10 - - - -
Cash flow swaps 794 - (51.2) - - -
Swaptions 151.9 179 - 196 7 296 -
Forward exchange contracts 33 - - 35 - -
Equity/index derivatives 233.6 319 - 1111 4 500 (36)
Property index swap - - - 200 - (02)
25203 708 (51 2) 1,8185 1438 (38)
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16. Derlvative financial instruments (continued)

The Group uses derivatives to hedge the effect of changes in vanable rate borrowings on its fixed rate loan portfolio, to reduce exposure
to payouts under guaranteed annuity contracts and to protect against falls in the FTSE 100 In 2012, the general insurance business
entered into gilt hedge contracts for differences, as a result a significant proportion of the general insurance asset portfolio 1s hedged
against stock market and gilt yield movements

2012 2011
Contract/ Contract/
notional Falr valve Fair valus naobonal Fair value Fair value
amount - assat - llabllity amount - asset - liability
Soclety £m £m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps 6350 200 - 4869 642 -
Cash flow swaps 794 - (51 2) - - -
Swaptions 1519 179 - 196 7 296 -
Equity/index dervatives 153 6 30.6 - 11100 500 (36)
Property index swap - - - 200 - {02)
1,01929 685 (51 2) 1,813 6 143 8 {38)

17. investment contract liabilities

Accounting for investment contract llabillties

Investment contract habihties are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged These llabilities are initially
recognised at transaction price excluding any transaction costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of the contract

Deposits and withdrawals are recorded directly as an adjustment to the contract habity in the Statement of Financial Position, a method
known as deposit accounting Fees charged and investment income received are recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
when earned

Farr value adjustments are measured at each reporting date and are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Fair value

ts calculated as the number of units allocated to the policyholder in each umit inked fund muttiphed by the unit price of those funds at
the Statement of Financial Position date The fund assets and habilities are valued on a basis consistent with that used to measure the
equivalent assets and liabihties 1n the Statement of Financial Position, adjusted for the discounted effect of future tax ansing from any
unrealised gains or losses For a contract that can be cancelled by the policyholder, the fair value cannot be less than the surrender value

The liabiity 15 derecognised when the contract expires, 1$ discharged or 15 cancelied

Group Society

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 January 800 9 7412 8009 7412
Deposits recewved from policyholders 2700 2140 27¢ 0 2140
Payments made to policyholders and fees deducted {192 6) (120 5) (192 6) (120 5)
Change in contract liabiities as shown in the Statement of Comprehensive income 810 (33 8) 810 (338)
Balance at 31 December 959 3 800 9 959 3 8009

The change in contract habiities as shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises pnncipally the allocation of the net investment
return to policyholders of investment contracts less allowances for taxes Investment contracts are not reinsured
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18. Fair value estimation

The following fair value estimation tables, as required by IFRS7, present the Group s and Society’s assets and habilittes measured at fair
vaiue by level of the fair value measurement hierarchy at 31 December 2012

The farr value of financial instruments included in the Level 1 category 1s based on published quoted bid market prices 1 an active
market at the yearend date A market 1S regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurrnng
market transactions on an arm'’s length basis

Level 2 financial instruments are not traded in an active market or therr fair value 1s determined using valuation techniques These
valuation techniques maximise the use of data from observable current market transactions {where it 1s available) using pricing obtained
via pnicing services, even where the market 1s not active It also includes financial assets with prices based on broker quotes

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments classified as Level 3 include

* Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments (unlisted shares)

& The fawr value of interest rate swaps I1s calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable
yield curves

* The farr value of forward exchange contracts 1s determined using forward exchange rates at the Statement of Financial Posiuon date,
with the resulting value discounted back to present value

* The farr value of the loans secured on residential property 1s determined using discounted cash flows which take into account
the interest rolled up on the loans, maturity profiles and expected future funding costs The swap rate used as an input to the
discount rate 1s matched to the expected term of the underlying loans The No Negative Equity Guarantee liability 1s fair valued using
discounted cash flows and 1s netted off against the fair value of the assets

& The far value of Investment contract habilities are calculated on a consistent basis to the underlying investments as described
in Note 17

s Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the other financial instruments
if one or more of the significant inputs 1s not based on observable market data, the instrument 1s included in Level 3
Any changes to fair value are recognised within net gains/losses on investments within the Statement of Comprehensive Income with the

exception of Investment contract habilities where the movement 1s recogmised within the gross change in contract liabilities Details of
these gains/losses are disclosed within Notes 8 and 22 respectively
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18. Fair value estimation {(continued)

2012 2011
Lavel 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Tatal falr level 1 Level 2 kewel 3 Total falr
valye value
Group Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financlal assets
Derlvative financlal Instruments
Interest rate swaps - - 200 200 - - 64 2 64 2
Gilt hedges - - 10 1.0 - - - -
Swaptions - - 179 179 - - 296 296
Equity/index denvatives 12 - 307 319 103 - 397 500
12 - 69.6 708 103 - 1335 143 8
Financial assets held at fair
value through income
Shares, other vanable yield
secunties and units in urut trusts
— UK fisted 1,284 6 823 2 - 21078 1,095 6 6297 - 17253
— UK unlisted - - 1123 1123 - - 1139 1139
- Overseas listed 3957 416 - 4373 3787 308 - 409 5
— Overseas unhsted - - 929 929 - - 947 947
Debt and other fixed
Income securities
— UK listed 2,1551 2,0348 - 41899 2,3029 15376 07 38412
— Overseas listed 29 21203 - 21232 79 1,4908 11 14998
Loans secured on
residential property - - 415.3 4153 - - 3342 334 2
Other 54 - - 54 17 - - 17
3,8437 5,0199 6205 94841 3,7868 36889 5446 38,0203
3,8449 5,019.9 6901 95549 3,7971 36889 6781 8,1641
Financial llabllities
Investment contract liabilities - 844 6 114 7 959 3 - 687 5 1134 800 9

Denwvative financial instruments

Cash flow swaps - - 512 51.2 - - - -
Equity/index denvatives - - - - 36 - - 36
Property index swap - - - - - - 02 02

- - 512 512 36 - 02 38

- 844 6 165.9 10105 36 6875 1136 BO4 7
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18. Fair value estimation {continued)

2012 2011
Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total fair Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair
value value
Society £m £m £m £m £m £m £m im
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps - - 20¢ 200 - - 642 84 2
Swaptions - - 179 179 - - 296 296
Equity/index derivatives - - 306 3086 103 - 397 500
- - 68 5 68 5 103 - 1335 143 8
Financial assets held at falr
value through income
Shares, other vanable yeld
secunties and units In unit trusts
- UK listed 668.3 2,3834 - 3,0517 7272 20291 ~ 2,7563
— UK unlisted - - 112 3 1123 - - 1139 1139
- Overseas hsted 68 7 18 - 705 48 5 - - 48 5
- Dverseas unhsted - - 920 920 - - 915 915
Debt and other fixed
Income secunties
— UK listed 1,716 5 8792 - 2,5957 1,6705 BT T 07 21989
- Qverseas listed 28 7624 - 7652 7% 5234 11 5320
Loan to group undertaking - - - - - - 162 2 162 2 guj
Loans secured on residential property - - 366 2 366 2 - - 1111 1111 %
Other 53 - - 53 17 - - 17 2
24616 4,0268 5705 7,0589 24554 3,080 2 4805 6,0161 B
24616 4,0268 6390 7,1274 2,465 7 3,080 2 6140 6,1599 %‘
Financial flabilitles 2
Investment contract llabilities - 844 6 114 7 959 3 - 687 5 1134 8009 —
Derlvative financial instruments Q
Cash flow swaps - - 51.2 512 - - - - 5
Equity/index dervatives - - - - 36 - - 36 E
Property index swap - - - - - - 02 02 1]
- - 512 512 36 - 02 38 ]
- 8446 1659 1,0105 36 687 5 1136 804 7
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18. Fair value estimation {(continued)

The table below presents the movements In Leve! 3 financial instruments for the year ended 31 December 2012

Total gains/
(losses)
At1l recognised Transfers At 31
January through tolevell December
2012 Incomes Purchases Sales* and level 2 2012
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financlal assets
Derivative financlal Instruments
Interest rate swaps 64 2 (01} - {44 1) - 200
Gilt hedges - 10 - - - 1.0
Swaptions 296 (23) - (9 4) - 17.9
Equity/index denvatives 397 (9 0} - - - 30.7
1335 {10 4) - (53 5) - 696
Financial assets held at falr value through income
Shares, other vanable yield secunities and units in unit trusts
- UK unlisted 1139 116 08 (14 9) - 1123
- Overseas unlisted 947 10 06 (34) - 929
Debt and other fixed income securities
- UK listed (13 - - - o7 -
- Overseas listed 11 - - - (11) -
Loans secured on residential property 3342 108 890 (18 7) - 415 3
B44 6 234 90 4 {36 1) (18) 6205
678 1 130 90 4 {89 6) {18) 6801
Financial liabilities
Investment contract Habllities 113 4 13 - - - 1147
Derivative financial instruments
Cash flow swaps - {(43) 555 - - 512
Property index swap 02 - - {0 2) - -
02 {4 3) 6556 5 {0 2) - 512
1136 (32 0) 555 {0 2) - 165 9

* In relation to Loans secured on residential property, sales represents loans repaid
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18. Fair value estimatlon (continued)

Total gains/
{losses)
Atl  recognised At31
January through December
2011 neome Purchases Sales 2011
Group £m £m im £m im ‘
Finangial assets
Dernvative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 107 535 - - 642
Swaptions 330 89 - (12 3) 296
Equity/index dernvatives - 97 300 - 397
437 721 300 (123) 1335
Financial assets held at fair vatue through income
Shares, other vanable yield secunties and units in unit trusts
— UK unlisted 1461 {25 8) 41 (105) 1139
— Overseas unlisted 950 141 18 (16 2) Q47
Debt and other fixed income securities
— UK hsted 22 04 - (19) o7
- Overseas hsted - (31) 42 - 11
Loans secured on residential property 187 0 703 87 3 (104) 3342
4303 559 97 4 (390} 5446 "
474 0 128 0 127 4 {(513) 6781 E,
3
Financial hiabiliies g
Investment contract hiabilites 1374 - - (240} 1134 B
a.
Dernvative financial instruments 5
Swaptions 276 - - (27 8} - E
Property index swap - - 02 - 02 e
276 - 02 (27 6) 02
1650 - 02 {(516) 1136 g
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18. Fair value estimation {continued)

Total gains/
(losses)
At1  rocognised Transfers At31
January through tolevel1 December
012 Income Purchases Sales* and lavel 2 2012
Society £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financlal assets
Derivative financial instruments
interest rate swaps 64.2 (0.1) - {44 1) - 200
Swaptions 29.6 (2.3) - (94) - 179
Equity/index denvatives 39.7 {91) - - - 306
133.5 {11.5) - (53 5) ~ 685
Financlal assets held at falr value through income
Shares, other varnable yield securities and units in unit trusts
- UK unlisted 1139 116 08 {14 0) - 1123
- Overseas unhsted 915 04 06 ({0 5) - 920
Debt and other fixed income securities
- UK hsted 07 - - - (0.7) -
- Overseas iisted 11 - - - {1.1) -
Loan to group undertaking 162 2 (22 1) - (140 1) - -
Loans secured on residential property (note 1} 1111 430 2194 {7 3) - 3662
4805 329 2208 {161 9) (18) 5705
614 0 214 2208 {215 4) {18) 6390
Financial liabilities
Investment contract llabilities 113 4 13 - - - 1147
Derivatlve financlal instruments
Cash flow swaps - (43) 6656 - - 512
Property index swap 02 - - (0 2) - -
02 (4 3) 555 {(02) - 512
113 6 (30} 555 (0 2) - 1659

Note 1 The £219 4m included as purchases of Loans secured on residential properties includes amounts transferred from a subsidiary,
Liverpool Victona Equity Release Limited as part of a December 2012 loan restructure with the Society

* In relation to Loans secured on residential property, sales represents loans repaid
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18. Fair value estimation (continued)

Total gawns/
{losses)
Atl recognised At 31
January through December
2011 income Purchases Sales 2011
Society £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Denvative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 107 5356 - - 642
Swaptions 330 89 - {12 3) 296
Equity/index dernvatives - 97 300 - 397
437 721 300 (123) 1335
Financial assets held at farr value through income
Shares, other vanable yietd secunties and units in umit trusts
— UK unlisted 140 3 (25 8) 41 (47) 1139
— Overseas unlisted 881 14 3 18 (12 7) 915
Debt and other fixed income secuntes
— UK histed 22 04 - (19) o7
— Overseas listed - (31) 42 - 11
Loan to group undertaking 1317 291 64 (50) 1822
Loans secured on residential property - 256 873 (18) 1111
3623 a05 1038 (261) 4805
406 0 112 6 133 8 (384) 6140
Financial iabilities 5
Investment contract labilities 137 4 - - (24 0}y 1134 §
=3
Denvatwe financial instruments @
Swaptions 2786 - - (27 6) - E
Property iIndex swap - - 02 - 02 3
276 — 02 {27 6) 02 g
165 0 — 02 (516) 1136
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19. Loans and other receivables

Accounting for loans and other recelvables

Loans are initially measured at fair value and then subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

Recelvables are recognised when due and comprise amounts due to the Society from group undertakings and other receivables They are
initially recognised at fair value and then subsequently held at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each Statement of Financial Position date whether a loan or recevable, or a group of loans or recevables, 1s
impaired For loans, the amount of any tmpairment loss 18 measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of future cash flows For recevables, where there is objective evidence that the carrying value 1s impaired then the impairment loss
will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Provision for impalrment of ioans

Provisions for impairment of loans and receivables are based on appraisals of loans and recewvables both collectively and individually
Provisions are made to reflect the estimated net realisable amount, taking into account potential future recovenes and the onginal
effective interest rate Balances are written off in full when the debt 1s considered irrecoverable

Specific provisions have been made in respect of all identified impaired advances |n calculating the required provision an appropriate
factor 1S apphed based on the present value of expected future cash flows, which 1s subject to periodic review to ensure its continuing
applicability based on current expenence, to reflect the probahility that not all such loans will result In eventual loss Collective provisions
have been made in respect of losses which, although not yet specifically identified, are expected from experence to anse

Group Sociaty

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

Depaosits with credit institutions 14 6 - - -
Loans secured by policies 04 086 o4 06
Other loans 03 04 03 04
Amounts due from group undertakings - - 87 4 1096
Managing agents rental recewvable 125 170 1256 170
Investments recewable 16.5 132 165 132
Other recevables 587 84 8 115 141
103.0 116 0 1286 154 9

Within one year 98 8 112 4 126 0 154 0
Over gne year 42 36 26 09
1030 116 0 128 6 154 9

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date

20. Other financial liabllities

Group Soclety

2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated Restated

£m £m £m £m

Collateral received 655 66 8 655 66 8

Subordinated note (EUR12m - interest payable at the

3 month Euro Deposit Rate plus a margin of 3 65%) 97 100 - -
Amounts due to group undertakings - - 157 56
Other 03 04 02 03
755 772 814 727

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date
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Insurance contract-related assets and liabilities

This sectlon presents informatlon relating to Insurance contract-related assets and liabilities held by the Society and Group. The
assumptions used In the valuation of the Insurance contract llabilities are disclosed within Note 25 with sensitivitles to these
assumptions disclosed separately within Note 3

21. Insurance contract liabilities

Accounting for Insurance contract liabilitles

Partlclpating business

The hability 15 cafculated in accordance with the FSA's ‘realistic’ hability regime In particular, prewviston 15 made for all bonus payments
{deciared and future, reversionary and terminal) estimated, where necessary, In a manner consistent with the retevant fund's Principles
and Practices of Financial Management {(PPFM) The habihty includes an allowance for the time and intninsic value of options and
guarantees granted to policyholders and for possible future management actions

The realistic liabilities are based on the aggregate value of policy asset shares reflecting past premiums, investment return, expenses
and charges applied to each policy Allowance 1s also made for policy-related habilities such as guarantees, options and future bonuses
calculated using a stochastic model simulating investment returns, asset mix, expense charges and bonuses

Since the realistic liabilities include an allowance for future bonuses to participating contract policyholders that will be payable out of
returns on non participating business, an amount within the participating contract fund 1s recognised representing the value of non-
participating business Such an amount 1S not recognised for business wntten outside participating contract funds

In determining the realistic value of habihties for participating contracts, indirect account 1s taken of the value of future profits on non-
paruicipating business wrtten out of participating contract funds This Is separately identifiable and 1s all in respect of policyholder liabilities
The excess of the value of those future profits has been deducted from the reahistic habilities rather than recognising it as an asset

Non-participating business

The liabihity is calculated to comply with the reporting requirements under the FSA's Integrated Prudential Sourcebook using a gross
premium valuation methed or a method at least as prudent as the gross premium methed The principal assumptions are given in the
notes to the financral statements The Society and relevant subsidianes have adopted the modified statutory solvency basis in the
valuation of provisions for non-participating business

Liabihties for non-partictpating business are either included within the long-term insurance contract habilities or the investment contract
habihties, depending upon the product classification

General insurance clalms and insurance contract liabilitles

Claims incurred comprise claims and related internal and external claims handling costs paid in the year and changes In the provisions
for cutstanding claims, including provisions for claims incurred but not reported and related claims handling costs, together with any
other adjustments to claims from previous years Where applicable, deductions are made for recovenes from other parties

Provision 1s made for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled, inciuding the cost of claims incurred but not reported

The estimated cost of claims includes expenses to be incurred in settling claims and a deduction for the expected vaiue of recovenes
However, given the inevitable uncertainty in estabhishing claims provisions, it 1s likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from
the onginal habifity estabhshed Provisions are adjusted at the Statement of Financial Position date to represent a best estimate of the
expected outcome Provisions are calculated allowing for reinsurance recovenes and a separate asset 1s recorded for the reinsurers’
share of the provision

Unexpired risks

For general insurance contracts, provision s made, If required, for any anticipated claims and claims handhng costs that are anticipated
to exceed the unearned premiums, net of deferred acquisition costs An estimate 1s made for future investment income ansing from the
unearned premiums, and used to reduce the unexpired nsk provision Unexpired nsk surpluses and deficits are offset where business
classes are managed together and a provision 1s made if an aggregate deficit arises

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Valuation of investment and long-term insurance contract liabilities

The hiability 1s based on assumptions reflecting the best estimate at the time allowing for a margin of risk and adverse deviation
All contracts are subject to a habiity adequacy test, which reflects management’s best current estimate of future cash flows

The assumptions used for mortality, mortndity and longevity are based on standard industry or reinsurers’ tables, adjusted where
appropniate to reflect the Group’s own expenence In particular, for impaired annuities the mortality assumptions are based on reinsurers’
tables with an individual loading applied depending on the nature of the impairment The assumptions used for iInvestment returns,
expenses, lapse and surrender rates are based on current market yields, product charactenstics, and relevant claims expenence

The assumptions used for discount rates are based on current market risk rates, adjusted for the Group's own nsk exposure

Due to the long-term nature of these obligations, the estimates are subject to significant uncertainty
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21. Insurance contract liabilities (continued)

Valuation of general insurance contract Labilities

For general insurance contracts, estimates are made for the expected ultmate cost of claims reported as at the Statement of Financial
Position date and the cost of claims incurred but not vet reported (IBNR) to the Group It can take a significant period of time before the
ulttmate cost of claims can be established with certainty, and the final cutcome may be better or worse than that provided Standard
actuanal clasms projection techniques are used to estimate outstanding claims Such methods extrapolate the development of paid and
incurred claims, recovenes from third parties, average cost per claim and ultimate claim numbers for each accident year, based upon
the observed development of earlier years and expected loss ratios The main assumption underlying these technigues 1s that past
claims development experience 1s used to project ultimate claims costs Allowance for one-off occurrences or changes in legislation,
policy conditions or portfolio mix are also made in arnving at the estimated ultimate cost of claims in order that it represents the most
likely outcome, taking account of alf the uncertainties involved To the extent that the ultimate cost s different from the estimate, where
experience I1s better or worse than that assumed, the surplus or deficit wiil be credited or charged to gross benefits and claims within the
Statement of Comprehensive income n future years

a) Analysls of insurance contract llabilities and relnsurance assets

2012 2011
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group " Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Long-term insurance
contract habilities 2ib 6,504 9 {261 9) 6,2430 58528 {2000) 5,652 8
Long-term linked insurance
contract habilities 21¢ 770 (35 5) 415 779 (23 0) 54 9
Lang-term claims llamlihes 21d 42 4 -~ 42 4 40 0 - 400
6,624 3 (297 4) 6,326 9 59707 (223 0Q) 5,747 7
General insurance
unearned premiums 2le 746 0 (14 8) 7312 747 4 {(130) 7344
General insurance claims habilities 21f 1,287.1 (135.0) 1,521 10299 {(1009) 9290
2,033 1 (1498) 18833 1,777 3 {(1139) 1,663 4
8,657 4 (447 2) B8,2102 7,7480 {336 9) 7,411 1
2012 2011
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross  Rednsurance Net
Soclety Notes £m £m £m im £m £m
Long-term insurance
contract habilities 21b 6,484 0 {261 9) 6,2221 58284 (2000} 5,628 4
Leng-term linked Insurance
contract habilities 21¢ 770 {35 5) 415 779 (23 0) 54 9
Long-term claims habihiies 21d 423 - 423 399 - 399
6,603 3 (297 4) 6,3059 5,946 2 (2230} 5,723 2

Included within the “Other” category disclosed in tables 21b and 21¢ are amounts totaling £48 4m, as at 31 December 2011, n
relation to the termination of the reinsurance agreement between the Society and Liverpool Victonia Life Company Limited Further details
on this transaction are disclosed in Note 47

b) Movement in long-term Insurance contract liabilities 2012 2011

Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 58528 (2000) 65,6528 50380 {120 5) 49175
Premiums receiwved 105 7 (26 1) 796 2077 (276) 1801
Liabilities paid for death maturities,
surrenders, benefits & claims (624.6) 237 (600 9) {543 6) 245 (b191)
New business 652 4 (33 2} 619 2 5728 (421) 5307
Benefits and ¢claims vanation 98 8 {0 1} 98 7 25 (3 4) 09
Fees deducted (36 4) - (36 4} (17 4) - (17 4)
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 404 1 (1.9} 402 2 6139 01 6138
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions
- Mortality/ morbicity 301 {13.3) i68 {29) g5 66
- Investment return 356 {1.3) 343 (18 0} - (18 0)
- Expense (16 7) 1.9 {14 8) 07 30 37
- Lapse and surrender rates (30 2) - (30 2) 11 2 (0 3) 109
- D1scount rate (28 3) (41) (32 4) 768 (18 9) 579
- Model changes 63 2 - 632 {49 5} 106 {38 9)
- Other (22 5) (75 {30 0) {58 0} {(347) {92 7)
Mutual bonus 209 - 209 186 - 18 6

Balance at 31 December 6,504 9 (261 9) 6,243.0 5,852 8 (200 0) 5,652 8
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued

31 December 2012

21. Insurance contract llabilities (continued)

b) Movement In long-term insurance contract liabilities (continued)

2012 2011
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Soclety £m £m £m £tm £m £m
Balance at 1 January 5,828 4 (200 0) 5,628 4 5,0118 {165 6) 4,846 2
Premwms received 104 9 (26 1) 788 2157 (538) 1619
Liabiittes paid for death matunties, surrenders,
benefits & claims (619 9) 237 (596 2) (547 5) 373 (5102)
New busmess 652 4 (332) 619 2 569 8 {322) 53786
Benefits and claims vanation 991 {0 1) 99 0 09 18 27
Fees deducted (36 4) - (36 4) (18 4) 31 (15 3)
Accretion of investment income or change 1n unit prices 404 0 (19) 4021 614 4 {19 6125
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions
- Mortality/morbidity 301 (133 168 02 (0 6) (04)
- Investment return 356 (1 3) 343 (18 0} - (18 O)
- Expense (16 T) 19 (14.8) {0 2) 62 60
- Lapse and surrender rates {30 2) - (30 2) 112 (0 3) 109
- Discount rate {28 5) {(41) (32.6) 810 (32 8) 48 2
- Modei ¢changes 627 - 627 (51 4) 16 7 (347)
- Other (22 4) (75) (29 9) {59 7} 221 (37 6}
Mutual bonus 209 - 209 186 - 186
Balance at 31 December 6,484 0 (2619) 6,2221 5,828 4 {200 0) 5,628 4
c) Movement In long-term linked insurance contract habllities
2012 2011
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross Rensurance Net

Group £m £m £m m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 779 {23 0) 549 68 7 (6 5) 622
Premwums receved 812 {15 7) 655 319 (10 Q) 2i9
Liabihties paid for death matunties, surrenders,
benefits & clarms - (40 8) 142 (26 6) (35 8) 88 {27 Q)
New business {12 9) {22 5) (35 4) (0 1) (8 7) (8 8)
Benefits and claims vanation (9 5) (0.1) (9 6) (38) (12) (50)
Fees deducted (6 4) - (6 4} (2 4) - (24)
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 35 {1.2) 23 05 - (03
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions

Mortaltty/morbidity (91) (8 0) (17 1) 32 34 66

Expense {15 4) 11 (14 3) (4 8) 11 {37)
- Lapse and surrender rates - - - 02 {0 1) 01
- Discount rate 86 (25) 61 162 {4 1) 121
- Model changes - - - 87 38 (4 9)
- Other (0 1) 222 22.1 128 {9 5) 33
Balance at 31 December 770 (35 5) 41.5 779 (23 0) 54 9
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21. Insurance contract liabilities (continued)
¢) Movement in long-term linked Insurance contract liabilities {continued)
2012 2011
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Rensurance Net
Society £m £m £m m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 779 (23 0) 649 687 (50 4) 183
Premiums recelved 812 (15 7) 655 239 (19 4) 45
Liabilities paid for death matunties, surrenders,
benefits & claims (40 8) 142 (26 6) (31 7) 136 (18 1)
New business (129} (22 5) (35 4) 29 (5 1) (22)
Benefits and claims vanation (9 5} (01) (96} (2 2) 06 {1 6}
Fees deducted (6 4} - (64) (15) 11 (04)
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 35 (12} 23 - [(e0rs] 07
- Mortality/ morbichty {91) (8 0) {171) o1 {02 01
- Expense (15 4) 11 (14 3) (39 22 {(17)
- Lapse and surrender rates - - - 02 (0 1) a1
- Dis¢count rate 86 {2 5) 6.1 119 (9 1) 28
- Model changes - - - (6 8) 60 (08)
- Other (01) 22,2 221 16 3 385 54 8
Balance at 31 December 770 (35.5) 41.5 779 (23 0) 54 9
d) Movement in long-term clalms liabilities
2012 2011
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Remnsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 400 - 400 44 6 - 44 6
Claims notified 651 7 (61.8) 5899 663 1 (b4 5) 6086
Claims paid during the year {649 3) 618 {587 5) (667 7) 545 (613 2)
Balance at 31 December 42 4 - 42 4 400 - 400
2012 2011
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross  Remnsurance Net
Society £m £m £m im £m £m
Balance at 1 January 399 - 399 44 4 - 44 4
Claims notified 646 6 (61.8) 584 8 657 3 (102 4) 65549
Claims paid during the year (644 2) 61.8 (582 4) {661 8) 102 4 (559 4)
Balance at 31 December 42 3 - 42 3 399 — 399
e) Movement in general insurance unearned premiums
2012 2011
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross  Resnsurance Net
Group £m £m £m im im £m
Balance at 1 January T47.4 (13.0) 7344 6247 (102) 6145
Premums wntten in the year 1,484 9 {(350) 14499 1,455 6 (27 7) 14279
Premiums earned dunng the year {1,486 3} 332 {(1,4531) (1,332 9) 249 (1,308 0)
Balance at 31 December 746 0 (14 8) 731.2 7AT 4 (130} 7344
f) Movement In general insurance claims liabilities
2012 2011
Gross  Relnsurance Net 5ross  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 1,0299 (100.9) 9290 8401 (764) 7637
Movement in ¢laims incurred In pnor accident years 327 {23.5) 92 350 (22 7) 123
Claims mncurred in the current accident year 1,0801 {(255) 1,054 6 927 5 (22) 9183
Claims paid duning the year {855 6) 14 9 (840 7) (772 7) 74 (7653)
Balance at 31 December 1,287 1 (1350) 21,1521 1,029 9 (1009) 9290
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22. Net (increase) / decrease in long-term contract liabilities

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Gross (increase) / decrease in long-term contract liabllities
{Increase) / decrease in long-term Insurance contract habihties (652 1) (814 8) (655 6) (B166)
Decrease / (increase) in long term linked insurance contract liabihities 09 (9 2) 09 92
(Increase) / decrease In investment contract habilities (810) 3318 (81 0) 338
(732 2) (790 2) (735 7) (7920)
Mutual bonus (disclosed separately in Note 14) 209 186 209 186
(711 3} (771 6) (724 8) (7734)
Increase / (decrease) in long-term contract lizbilities ceded to reinsurers
Increase / (decrease) in long-term insurance contract liabilities 61.9 795 619 34 4
Increase / (decrease} in long-term linked insurance contract liabilihes 125 165 125 (27 3)
74 4 960 74 4 71
(636 9) (675 6) {640 4) (766 3)

23. Deferred acquisition costs

Accounting for deferred acquisition costs

The costs of acquirnng new business, other than for participating business, which are incurred dunng the financial year, but where
the benefit of such costs will be obtained In subsequent accounting periods are deferred and recogrised as an asset to the extent
that they are recoverable out of margins in future matching revenues

In respect of insurance contracts, acquisition costs compnse all direct and indirect costs incurred in writing new contracts
Deferred acquisition costs for insurance contracts are amortised over a penod which 1s consistent with the assessment of the
expected pattern of receipt of future revenue margins for each product type

For investment contracts, the costs of acquiring investment contracts are imited to the direct transaction costs associated with the
acquisition of the business Deferred acquisition costs for investment contracts are amortised over the expected contract penod

All deferred acquisition costs are tested for recoverability at each reporting date The carrying values are adjusted to recoverable
amounts and any resulting impatrment losses are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Long-tsrm General

Insurance Insurance

contracts contracts Total
Group £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 - 947 947
Acquisition costs deferred - 199 ¢ 199 0
Amortisation and impairment - (1936) (1936)
At 31 December 2012 - 1001 1001
At 1 January 2011 546 84 2 1388
Acquisition costs deferred 177 1856 2033
Amortisation and impairment {14 2} (1751) (1893)
Write-off following termination of reinsurance contract {58 1) - (58 1)
At 31 December 2011 - 947 94 7
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Deferred acquisition costs are all due within one year for both 2011 and 2012

Acquisition costs are costs of acquinng new business and include commissions, underwriting expenses and policy ISsue expenses
There were no deferred acqguisition costs held by the Society in 2012 (2011 £nil)

In 2011 the £58 1m write off in relation to the terrmination of the reinsurance contract was offset by a £57 4m movement n fong-term
insurance contract habiities disclosed within Note 21 The overall impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income was a toss of £0 7m
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24. Reinsurance assets

Accounting for relnsurance assets

The Group cedes insurance nisk in the normal course of business for its longterm and general insurance businesses Remsurance
assets represent balances recoverable from reinsurance companies Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner consistent with
the outstanding claims provision Remsurance premiums are recognised in the same pernod as the underlying contract that they relate to

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes £m £m £m £m

Reinsurers share of prowvision for unearned premiums 2l1a 148 130 - -
Reinsurers share of long-term insurance contract liabilities 21a 2619 2000 261.9 2000
Remmsurers share of longterm inked insurance contract rabilities 21a 355 230 35.5 230
Reinsurers’ share of claims llabilites 21a 1350 1009 - -
447 2 3369 297 4 2230
Within one year {107 7) {33 1) (141.5) (63 7)
Over one year 554 9 3700 438 9 286 7
447 2 3369 2974 2230

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date

25. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabllities valuation assumptions

The basis of the calculation of the long-term insurance contract liabilities i1s descnbed in the accounting policies The habihity 1s
calculated separately for each Life operation Matenal judgement is required in calculating the hability In particular there 1s discretion
over the assumptions used For participating business, the liability is calculated in accordance with the FSA's realistic capital regime
adjusted to exclude the associated tax lability Non participating hatlities are valued using a gross premium method

In calculating the realistic habilities, account has also been taken of future management actions consistent with those set out In the
Principles and Practices of Financial Management The most significant of these are changes to bonus assumptions and level of payouts

The assumptions used to calculate the labiity depend on the circumstances prevailing in each of the Iife operations The assumptions
used (n determining the labiliy are estimated to give a result within the normal range of outcomes To the extent that the ultimate cost
differs to the amounts provided, for example where expenence 1$ worse than that assumed, the surplus or deficit will be credited or
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in future years

When valuing options and guarantees the asset model used was the Barrie and Hibbert Market-Consistent Asset Model Thisis a
deflator model based on published financial economic theory that is capable of market-consistent valuations for multiple asset classes in
multiple currencies For this valuation it was calibrated to market data as at 31 December 2012 representative of the nature and term of
the guarantees inherent in participating insurance contracts within the participating insurance contract funds

The accounting policies for long-term insurance and investment contract llabilities are included within Notes 21 and 17 respectively,
sensitivities to changes in assumptions are micluded within Note 3

a) Soclety

1} Particlpating insurance contracts

For parucipating insurance contracts, a market consistent valuation 1s used to calculate the lability This involves placing a value on
habilities similar to the market value of assets with similar cash flow patterns The key assumptions used 1n this valuation are set out 1n
the tables below

Interest Rates
The nsk-free interest rates assumed are

Year 2012 2011
5 0 91% 114%
15 2 60% 2 81%
25 339% 337%
35 3 62% 348%

Other assumptions
Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency The future expense inflation assumption Is
modelled as RPi plus O 5% (2011 RPI plus O 7%}, where RPI in both 2012 and 2011 1s modelled stochastcally

Asset mix for assets backing asset shares at the valuation date 2012 2011
Cash 2 38% 273%
Fixed interest 40.68% 39 75%
Equities 48 79% 49 45%

Property 8.15% 8 07%
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25. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities vatuation assumptions {continued)

Mortality rate tables

2012

2011

Conventional Life Business
Conventional Pensions Business
Conventional Industnal Branch Business

Non Uritised Accumulating Pensions Business
Umitised Accumulating Life Business

Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business
Umtised Accumulating Bond Business
Unitised Accumulating Life ISA Business
Annuities in Payment

75% AMBO Females -3
60% AMSO Females -3
80% up to age 80, rising lInearly
to 100% at age 100 ELT16

65% AMSOD
80% AMB0/AF80
80% AMSBO
80% AMSO
B0% AMSBO select/AF80 select
Males RMVOQD CMI_2009 2% LT
Females RFVO0 CMI_2009 1 5% LT

75% AMB0 Females -3
€5% AMB0D Females -3
B0% up to age 80, nsing linearly to
100% at age 100 ELT16

65% AMBO
80% AMB0/AFB0
80% AMBO
80% AMBO
80% AMB0 select/AF80 select
Males RMV00 CMI_2009 2% LT
Females RFVO0 CMI_2009 1 5% LY

Per policy expenses - regular premiums 2012 2011
Conventional Life Business £34.90 £3260
Conventional Pensions Busmess £45.30 £42 00
Conventional Industnal Branch Business £6 80 16 90
Non Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business £28 30 £26 30
Unitised Accumulating Life Business £40 50 £36 B0
Umitised Accumulating Pensions Business £45 30 £42 00
Unitised Accumulating Bond Business £42 80 £37 50
Umitised Accumulating Life 1SA Business £49 20 £43 40
Annuities in Payment £48 20 £43 40

A percentage of these amounts 15 used for single premium and paid up policies

Persistency - lapses, surrenders and pald up rates

A review of persistency s carried out annually Assumptions for each product class are adjusted where necessary to reflect more recent
experience as evidenced In the persistency trend analysis or to reflect expected future trends as a result of anticipated future events

Options and guarantees

There are no guaranteed annuity or financial options within the Society participating contract funds There 1S an additional reserve
calculated on a market consistent basis to cover market value restricter (MVR) free guarantees on with-profits bonds

Bonuses

The cost of bonuses incurred during the year ended 31 December 2012 was £96 3m (2011 £84 6m) of which £19 6m (2011 £22 Sm)
was included in the longterm insurance contract habilities and £76 7m {2011 £62 1m)} was included n Gross benefits and claims paid

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

li) Non participating insurance contracts

Interest rate 2012 2011
Non-profit temporary assurances (original LVFS) 2 40% 1 90%
Non-profit temporary assurances Yield Curve* 2 50%*
Whole of life assurances Yield Curve* 2 50%*
Permanent health insurance

a) active lives Yield Curve* 2 50%*
b} claims reserves Yield Curve* 2 50%*
Cntical illness Yield Curve* 2 50%*
Other assurances Yield Curve* 2 50%*
Annuitres in payment Yleld Curve* + 1.2% 4 00%

* Adjusted by a margin for nsk and uncertainty which varies by product line
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25. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabllities valuation assumptions {continued)

Mortality rate tables 2012 2011
Non-profit temporary assurances {onginal LVFS) AMBO/AF80 AMBO/AFB0
Non-profit temporary assurances TMNGO,/TMS00 TFNOO/TFS00 TMNOO/TMS00 TFNOO/TFSOC
Whole of ife assurances AMCO00/AFC00 AMCOO/AFCO0C
Other assurances AM92/AF92 AMS2/AF92
Annuities in payment Males 100% RGA 2011 tables Males 100% RGA 2011 tables
with CMI_200% 1 25% LT with CMI_2009 1 25% LT
Females 100% RGA 2011 tables Females 100% RGA 2011 tables
with CMI1_2009 1% LT with CMI_2009 1% LT

Appropnate adjustments were made to the standard mortality tables to take account of actuat experience and publicly availlable market
data

Morbidity rate tables 2012 2011
Permanent health insurance

a) acuve lives CMIR12 CMIR12

b) claims reserves CMIR12 CMIR12
Crittcal iliness Relnsurer rates Remsurer rates

Appropriate adjustments were made to the standard morbidity tables to take account of actual expenence and publicly avallable market
data

Per policy expenses — regular premiums 2012 2011
Non-profit temporary assurances £1815 £1811
Whole of ife assurances £14 71 £16 06
Permanent health insurance

a) active lives £27 54 £25 16
b) clarms reserves (per policy in claim) £65049 £552 29
Critical iliness £2761 £29 86
Other assurances £34 93 £32 54
Annuities in payment £48 00 £38 00

Other assumptions
Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency The future expense inflation assumption ts
modelled as RPI {2011 RPI + 0 7%)

Options and guarantees
There are no significant options and guarantees in the non-participating business

ili) Investment and long-term linked insurance contracts

The provision for unit linked pensions 15 equal to the value of the assets to which the contracts are inked There 1s one product included
within the linked fund which 15 classified as an investment product and the hability 1s included within the long-term linked \nsurance
contract habilities

The prowision for property-hinked habilities 1s equal to the value of the assets to which the contracts are linked and is included within
investment contract liabilities

The provisions for index-tinked permanent health insurance claims and index-linked temporary assurances have been calculated using the
same mortality and mortndity assumptions as used for the corresponding non-inked liabilities for both 2012 and 2011

Interest rate 2012 2011
Urut inked penstons (onginat LVFS) Gilt yield + risk premium + margin for risk and uncertainty 1 90%
Mortality rate tables 2012 2011
Unut inked pensions (onginai LVFS) 92% AX92C20 80% AX92C20

b) LUverpoo! Victoria Life Company Limited - Ordinary Long Term Fund

i) Participating insurance contracts
Lwverpoo! Victorta Life Company Limited has no participating business
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25. Long-term Insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions {continued)

i1) Non participating insurance contracts

Interest rate 2012 2011

Non-profit temporary assurances 1 76% 1 88%

Other assurances 176% 188%

Mortality rate tables 2012 2011

Non-profit temporary assurances TMNOO/TMS00 TFNOO/TFS00 TMNOO/TMS00 TFNOQ/TFS00
Other assurances AM92/AF92 AMOZ/AFR2

Appropriate adjustments were made to the standard mortality tables to take account of actual experience

Per policy expenses - regular premiums 2012 2011
Non-profit temporary assurances £27 17 £19 92
Other assurances £27 17 £3579

Options and guarantees
There are no significant options and guarantees in the non-participating business

¢} RNPFN fund
RNPFN denotes Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses, which 1s a ring-fenced fund The free assets attnbutable to this fund are
reported as insurance contract liabilities of the Society

i) Participating business

For participating business, a market-consistent valuation Is used to calculate the hability This involves placing a value on habilities similar to

the market value of assets with similar cash flow patterns The key assumptions used in this valuation are set out in the tables below

Interest Rates
The rnisk-free interest rates assumed are

Year 2012 2011
5 091% 114%
15 2 60% 281%
25 3 3%% 337%
35 362% 3 48%

Other assumptions
Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency The future expense inflation assumption IS
modelled as RPI plus 0 5% (2011 RPI plus 0 7%), where RP! in both 2012 and 2011 15 modelled stochastically

Asset mix for assets backing asset shares at the

valuatlon date 2012 2011

Cash 16 32% 14 03%
Fixed interest 57 59% 57 86%
Equities 23 47% 25 40%
Property 2.62% 271%
Mortality rate tables 2012 2011
Conventional Life Business 60% AM/FOO ult 100% AM/F92 ult
Life Deferred Annuities 50% AM/FO0 ult 100% AM/F92 ult
Pension Deferred Annuities 50% AM/FO0 ult 100% AM/F92 ult
Urmitised with-profits Business 60% AM/FO0 ult 100% AG7/70 ult
Per policy expenses - regular premiums 2012 2011
Conventional Life Business £34 84 £3253
Pensions Deferred Annuities £45 34 £42 06

Life Deferred Annuities £34 84 £3251
Unitised with-profits 1SA £49 30 £4306
Unitised with-profits Bond £41.18 £38 14
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25, Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptlons (continued)

Persistency - lapses, surrenders and paid up rates
A review of persistency 15 carned out annually Assumptions are adjusted where necessary to reflect mare recent expenence as evidenced in the
persistency trend analysis or to reflect expected future trends as a result of anticipated future events

Options and guarantees
The provisions held in respect of guaranteed annuity options are determined on a market consistent basis The total amount provided n respect
of the future costs of the guaranteed annuity options was £92 3m (2011 £86 6m)

Bonuses

The cost of bonuses incurred during the year ended 31 December 2012 was £15 9m (2011 £21 Om} of which £0 7m (2011 £0 8m) was
included in the long-term insurance contract llabilities and £15 2m (2011 £20 2m) was included i gross benefits and claims paid in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income

il) Non participating business

Interest rate 2012 2011
Non-profits assurances 1 68% 1 44%
Non-profits general deferred annuities 1 68% 1 44%
Annuities in Payment {post 31/12/91) 1 68% 1 44%
Annuities In Payment {(other) 2 10% 1 80%
Pension Deferred Annuities 2 10% 1 80%
Mortality rate tables 2012 2011
Non-profits assurances 72 0% AM/FOO ult 115% AM/F92 ult
Non-profits general deferred annuities 42 5% AM/F0O ult 85% AM/F92 ult
Annuities in Payment {Male) 61.2% as 2011 basls up to 2007, 61 2% IMLOO with 1mprovements of
then CMI_2009, with 120% medium cohort over 2000 to 2004
a long-term improvement and future improvements 120%
rate of 2 0% medium cohort subject to a floor of 1 5%
Annuities in Payment (Female) 72 3% as 2011 basis up to 2007, 72 3% {FLOO with improvements of
then CMI_2009, with a long-term greater of 90% of medium cohort and
improvement rate of 1 5% CMIR17 over 2000 to 2004 and future

improvements of greater of 30%
medium cohort and CMIR17
subgect to a floor of 1 5%

Pension Deferred Annuities 42 5% AM/F0OO ult 85% AM/F92 ult
Appropriate adjustments were made to the standard mortality tables 1o take account of actual expenence and publicly avallable market data

The provision for inked and umtised with-profits contracts 15 equal to the value of the umits A non-unit hiability consisting mainly of a sterling
reserve calculated by carrying out cash flow projections on appropnate bases s included within the llability

Options and guarantees
There are no significant options or guarantees in the non participating business

iii) Linked fund

The prowision for unit linked assurances 1S equal to the value of the assets to which the contracts are hinked There are two products included
within the linked fund, one 1s classified as an insurance product and the hiability 1S included wathin the life and pension unit hinked insurance
contract habilities, the other 1s classified as an investment product and the liatility 15 included within the investment contract habilities

Interest rate 2012 2011
Unit inked assurances 1.68% 1 44%
Mortality rate tables 2012 2011

Unit linked assurances 72% AM/FOO ult 115% AM/F92 ult
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Fixed assets and investments
This section gives detail on the tangible, intangible and investment assets of the Society and Group that are used to generate profit for the
business

26, Intangible assets

Accounting for goodwill and other Intangible assets

Goodwilll

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary/associate at the acquisition date and 1s included in intangible assets Goodwill 1s reviewed for impawrment at the end of the first full

year of acquisition Thereafter, 1t 1s tested at each Statement of Financial Position date for impairment against the recoverable amount (being the

higher of value i use or farr value less cost) of the relevant cash generating unit and carned in the Statement of Finaneial Position at cost less

accumulated imparrment losses Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill retating to the entity sold |

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions pror to 1998 has been eliminated against the Unallocated divisible surplus This goodwill would be recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income should there be a subsequent disposal of the business to which it relates

Other intangibles
Where an acquisition takes place that gives access to existing customers, distnbution channels or the right to charge for investment or policy
administration services, the present value of these 1s recognised as an intangible asset

The carrying value of the asset 1s amortised, on a straight line basis over its expected economic hife, and 15 assessed annually for impairment

The expected economic life of other intangibles carned by the Group 1s determined by reference 1o acquired business, considenng factors such as
the remaining terms of agreements, the normal lives of related products and the compettive position, and hes within the range of 10 to 20 years

Present value of acquired inforce business (PVIF)

Cn acquisition of a portfolio of long-term insurance contracts. the net present value of the Group’s interest in the expected cash flows of the
in-force business I1s capitalised in the Statement of Financial Position as an asset and 1s amortised, in ine with the onginal expected run-off
of 20 years, based on the anticipated lives of the related contracts

The carrying vatue of the asset 15 assessed annually using current assumptions In order to determune whether any impairment has ansen,
compared to the amortised acquired value

Any amortisation or impairment charge 1s recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within other operating and admirustrative
expenses

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The Group determines whether goodwtll and other intangible assets are impaired at least on an annual basis This requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill 1s allocated The Group has allocated the goodwill to two single cash
generating units based on the key operating segments of the Group

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill 1s reviewed annually for impairment, or more frequently when there are indicators that impairment may have occurred, by companng
the camrying value to its recoverable amount The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit 15 based on valuedinuse calculations The
calculations are based upon discounting expected pre-tax cash flows at a nsk-adjusted interest rate appropnate to the cash generating unit,
the determination of both of which requires the exercise of jJudgement The estimation of pre-tax cash flows 1s sensitive to the penods for
which forecasts are available and to assumptions regarding the long-term sustainable cash flows While forecasts are compared with actual
performance and external economic data, expected cash flows reflect management s view of future performance

wiatmadeuwep ysryg l sIsSIUISIY MY ‘ SMITATY PUE SHINWNEIS

Details of the key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amounts and the carrying value at the reporung date are contamned
at the end of this note
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286. Intangible assets {continued)

Other
intangible

Goodwilk asaats PVIF Tatal
Group £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 lanuary 2012 2360 951 634 3845
Additions - - -
Disposats - - -
Increase In buy out value (See Note 40) 24 - - 24
At 31 December 2012 2384 951 63.4 3969
Accumuiated amortisation
At 1 January 2012 206 68 3 44 1 1330
Charge for the year 81 39 120
Disposals - - -
Impairment in year - - - -
At 31 December 2012 206 76 4 48.0 1450
Net book value at 31 December 2012 2178 187 i5 4 2519
Cost
At 1 January 2011 2307 951 63 4 3882
Increase in buy out value 53, - - 53
At 31 December 2011 2360 951 63 4 394 5
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2011 206 5988 396 1200
Charge for the year - 85 45 130
At 31 December 2011 208 68 3 44 1 1330
Net book value at 31 December 2011 215 4 268 193 26815

Present Value of acquired In-Force business (PVIF) 1s amortised in ine with the oniginal expected run off of 20 years, ending in 2018,

based on the market value of the hfe policies

Other intangible assets comprise the value of the future benefit denived from the customer bases of RNPFN (in the Society),
Bnitannia Road Rescue and Highway, and the value of the Tomorrow/Retirement Solutions distribution channel

Amortisation of £12 Om (2011 £1.3 Om) s presented within Other operating and adrmunistrative expenses 1n the Statement of

Comprehensive Income  There 18 no impairment in 2012 (2011 £nil)

Goodwill has been allocated to the indwvidual cash generating units which are based on the key segments of the Group as follows

Group
2012 2011
£m m
Long-term insurance business 66.7 66 7

General insurance business

1717 169 3

2384 2360
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26. Intangible assets (continued)

Other
Intangibls
assets
Soclety £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 509
At 31 December 2012 50 9
Accumuliated amortisation
At 1 January 2012 46 3
Charge for the year 48
At 31 December 2012 509
Net book value at 31 December 2012 -
Cost
At 1 January 2011 509
At 31 December 2011 50 9
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2011 41 6
Charge for the year 47
At 31 December 2011 46 3
Net book value at 31 December 2011 46

Key assumptions used in the annual impalrment testing of intangible assets
The key assumptions used for impairment testing are set out below for both the longterm insurance business and the general insurance business
The long-term insurance busmess incorporates both the Hertage and Life bustnesses

Long-term Insurance business

The recoverable amount of the long-term insurance business has been determined using cash flow predictions based on financial ptans approved
by management covenng a five-year penod, with a terminal growth rate of 2% applied thereafter The forecast cash flows have been discounted at
a pre-tax rate of 10% Based on the above assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount including goodwill by £156 8m

A two percentage point increase In the discount rate would reduce the recoverable amount by £52 3m, the discount rate would need to be
increased to 23% to recduce the recoverable amount to zero

A reduction in the forecast cash flows of 10% per annum would reduce the recoverable amount by £55 7m, the forecast cash flows would need to
be reduced by 25% per annum to reduce the recoverable amount 1o zero

General Insurance business

The recoverable amount of the general insurance business has been determined using cash flow predictions based on financial plans approved
by management covenng a five-year penod, with a terminal growth rate of 2% applied thereafter The forecast cash flows have been discounted at
a pre-tax rate of 10% Based on the above assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount including goodwill by £755 1m

A twe percentage point increase in the discount rate would reduce the recoverabie amount by £285 9m, the discount rate would need to be
increased to 20% to reduce the recoverable amount to zero

A reduction in the forecast cash flows of 10% per annum would reduce the recoverable amount by £151 4m, the forecast cash fiows would need
to be reduced by 50% per annum to reduce the recoverable amount to zero
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27. Property and equipment

Accounting for property and equipment

Operational property and equipment are held at ¢ost less accumulated depreciation Cost includes the onginal purchase price of the asset and
the costs attributable te bninging the asset to its working condition for its intended use Both property and equipment are depreciated on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives The periods used are as follows

Freehold bulldings and finance lease property* 50 years

Leasehold property enhancements* 10 years or lease term If shorter
Fixtures, fitings and motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

IT systems {spend over £1m) 3 years

Provision 15 made for any impairment in property and equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate, at each Statement of Financial Position date
Assets under construction represent the cost of assets under development These assets are not depreciated, the total cost 1s transferred
to the appropnate asset class on completion and then depreciated over their estimated useful lives

*These are properties used by the Group for operational purposes and are not Investment properties which are dealt with in Note 28

Flxtures,
Frechold and Leasehold fittings Asssts

leasehold property and mator under

property t hiicd IT syst construction Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 411 91 79 21 - 60 2
Additions . 02 35 23 10 . 70
Disposals - (05 01 - - {0 6)
At 31 December 2012 413 121 101 31 - 66.6
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 fanuary 2012 321 36 37 02 - 396
Provided in the year 10 10 o7 07 - 34
Disposals - ©2) (01 - - 03
At 31 December 2012 331 44 43 09 - 427
Net book value at 31 December 2012 82 77 58 22 - 239
Cost
At 1 January 2011 411 79 74 - 09 573
Additions - 12 07 12 - 31
Disposals . - 02 - - (0 2}
Transfers - - - 09 (C9) -
At 31 December 2011 411 91 79 21 - 602
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2011 311 28 33 - - 372
Prowided in the year 10 08 06 02 - 26
Disposals - - {0 2) - - {0 2)
At 31 December 2011 321 36 37 02 - 396
Net book value at 31 December 2011 90 55 42 19 - 206

Included within the Freehold and leasehold property category are assets held under finance leases with a net book value of £5 2m
(2011 £5 7m)

During 2011 £0 9m of assets were transferred from Assets under construction to IT systems representing the development cost of the
claims centre computer system that became operational in 2011
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27. Property and equipment (continued)

Flxtures,
Laasehold fittings
property and motor
hici Total
Society £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 47 60 107
Additicns 16 15 31
Disposals (0 5) {0 1) (0 6)
At 31 December 2012 58 74 132
Accumulated depreclation
At 1 January 2012 23 34 57
Provided in the year 04 04 08
Disposals - ©2) B {0 2)
At 31 December 2012 25 38 63
Net book value at 31 December 2012 33 36 69
Cost
At 1 January 2011 45 60 105
Additions Q2 02 ca
Disposals - {02} (02)
At 31 December 2011 47 60 107
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2011 19 31 50
Provided in the year 04 g4 08
Disposals - {01) (01)
At 31 December 2011 23 34 57
Net book value at 31 December 2011 24 26 50
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28. Investment properties

Accounting for investment properties

Investment properties are freehold and leasehold land and buildings held for long-term rental yields and capital growth They are held at
fair value and changes in fair value are recorded as fair value gamns or losses In the Statement of Comprehensive Income Fair value IS
determined annually by independent professional valuers based on market conditions

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Freeholds 1291 1838 961 1153
Long leaseholds 356 361 356 361
164 7 2199 1317 151 4

All investment properties held by the Group and the Society are occupied by third party tenants All properties occupied by Group
undertakings are shown separately within Note 27

The market value movements in the year on land and buildings were

Group Soclety

2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2199 3154 1514 246 6
Additions 02 125 0.2 29
Disposals (49 1) {89 2) (16 4) (89 2)
Net fair value adjustment {6 3) (18 8) (3.5) (89)
Balance at 31 December 164 7 . 2199 1317 151 4

Due within one year 475 - 145
QOver one year 1172 2199 117 2 151 4
164 7 2199 1317 151 4

Investment properties due within one year represent £33m of properties held within the Threadneedle UK Property Fund If ICVC that 15 in
the process of being wound up (refer Note 45) and an additional property held directly by the Society that 15 in the process of being sold

All investment properties are valued annually at fair value They were valued as at 31 December 2012 by qualified professional valuers
working for Colliers International {UK} Plc who are professional, third party, independent Chartered Surveyors All valuations were carned
out In accordance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards

The Group and Society enter into operating leases for all investment properties All rents are payable in advance and the rental income
ansing during the year amounted to £8 1m (2011 £8 9m) for the Group and the Society, which 1s included in investment income

Non recoverable expenses are deducted from rental income for iInvestment properties and amounted to £2 Om (2011 £1 8m) for the
Group and the Society
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29. Investments in group undertakings

Accounting for Investments In group undertakings

The subsidiaries are held in the Society’s Statement of Financial Position at cost less any provision for impairment An assessment of
the realisable value 1S made at the year end and, if the Directors assess that there has been a permanent fall in that value below the
carrying value, a provision 1S made to bring the carrying value down to the assessed realisable value

2012 2011
Society £m £m
Shares in subsidlaries
Cost less provisions at 1 January 7232 748 3
Additions 3996 40
Sale of LVGIG Group te subsidiary undertaking (484 6) -
increase / (reduction) in buy out provision (refer to Note 40) 24 53
Impairment write-off (90 0) (34 4)

5506 7232

Loan stock in subsidiaries

Cost at 1 January 2344 2232
Additions 3003 11 2
Redemption (183 0) -

3517 234 4
Shares and loan stock in subsldiaries at 31 December 902 3 957 8

Durnng the year the Society sold its investment 1n Liverpool Victonia General Insurance Group Limited (LVGIG) to LV Capital PLC,
a subsidiary undertaking at cost In addition the Society invested in £300m of loan notes 1ssued by LV Capital PLC

The Society made capital contributions dunng 2012 of £nil to Liverpool Victoria Genera!l Insurance Group Limited (2011 £4m),
these are disclosed within addiions in the table above

The Society has examined the carrying value of its subsidiaries and concluded that a provision for impairment of £90m was necessary
In regard to its investment in Liverpool Victona Life Company Limited {2011 £28 imj}, this impamrment arose due to the payment of
dividends to the Society thereby reducing the value of the company

Further details of the Group's loan stock are given in Note 47 and the Group's iInvestments in Notes 43 and 44
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Other assets and llablilities

This section describes the other assets and liabilitles arising from the life insurance business within the Society and the life

Insurance and general Insurance businesses within the Group.

30. Insurance receivables

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2041
£m £m £m £m
Due from policyholders 1481 1351 1.0 38
Due from agents, brokers and intermedianes 875 74 8 - -
Due from remnsurers 117 66 116 64
2273 216 5 126 102
Insurance recewvables are all due within one year for both the Group and the Society
The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate far value at the Statement of Financial Position date
31. Prepayments and accrued income
Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Accrued dividends 40 35 i5 11
Accrued interest 823 452 527 386
Other prepayments and accrued income 203 12 6 101 84
106 6 613 64 3 48 1
Prepayment and accrued income balances are all due within one year for both the Group and the Society
32. Insurance payables
Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £mn
Due to policyholders 332 301 255 301
Due to brokers and intermediarnes 04 c8 04 o8
Due to reinsurers 111 107 03 07
44 7 416 26 2 316

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date

33. Trade and cther payables

Accounting for trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised as they fall due They are measured initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables 158 112 15.4 105
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 371 377
Other taxes and social security costs 31.3 322 94 101
Cther creditors 49.8 595 158 217
Deferred rental income 3.3 33 26 22
Finance lease liabilities 5.0 51 - -
Accruals and deferred income 88.5 94 3 559 652
193 7 2056 136 2 147 4

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date
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Taxation
This section presents information relating to tax charge and movements in the corporation and deferred tax assets and Habllitles held
by the Society and Group

34. Income tax expense

- Current income tax

Current iIncome tax habilities and assets are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authonties
The tax rates and tax laws used 1o compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement of
Financial Position date

- Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax 1s recognised, using the liabihty method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and
liabihties and thewr carrying amounts in the consolidated financtal statements Deferred income tax 1s determined using tax rates

(and faws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset I1s realised or the deferred income tax hability 1s settled Deferred income tax assets are recognmised to the

extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be avallable against which the temporary differences can be utilised

a) Current year tax charge

Soclety
2012 201t 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Current tax charge
Current year 200 393 8.5 239
Adjustment in respect of prior years (25) 54 0.2 66
Total current tax 1756 447 8.7 305
Deferred tax
Excess of depreciation 02 10 (0.3) .
Adjustment In respect of prior years - (10 5) - (6 9)
Temporary differences 128 (7 5) 80 33
Tax losses 38 145 - -
Total deferred tax 168 (25) a7 {3 6)
Total income tax expense 343 42 2 134 26 9
b} Reconciliation of tax charge
Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m

Profit/{loss) before tax 103 2 (16 9) 33 (47 7)
Tax calculated at the average standard rate of corporation tax in the UK at 24 5%
(2011 26 5%} 253 (4 5) 08 (12 7}
Income and expenses not subject to tax (18) 132 (27) 17
Impact of change m UK corporation tax rate on deferred tax [ 3] o7 - -
Unprovided deferred tax asset {11.1) 221 (11 1) 221
Transfer pricing - - 25 -
Policyholder tax 23.9 158 237 161
Adjustment to current tax charge in respect of prior years (2.5) 54 02 66
Adustment to deferred tax charge in respect of prior years - (10 5) - (69)
Total charge 34.3 42 2 134 26 9

The standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK changed from 26% to 24% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012 Accordingly, the profits for this

accounting period are taxed, where applicable, at an effective rate of 24 5%

35. Corporation tax asset

Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Corporation tax receivable - - 20
- - 20
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36. Deferred tax asset

Group Sociaty
T m T &m
Balance at 1 January 2012 310 177
Amounts recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (16 8) (4 7)
Balance at 31 December 2012 142 13.0
Group Soclaty
2012 2011 2012 2011
1} Analysis of deferred taxation temporary differences Em £m £m £m
Excess of depreciation 30 30 08 05
Temporary differences on expenses 114 185 122 192
Temporary differences ansing on consolidation (16) (23) - -
Temporary differences on unrealised gains 14 80 - (2 0}
Tax losses - a8 - -
Deferred tax asset 14 2 310 13 0 17 7
Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
ii) Deferred taxation asset not recognlsed £m im £m £m
Temporary differences on expenses 223 96 223 96
Temporary differences on unrealised gains (14 9} (4 8) (14 9) (4 8)
Temporary difference for changes in actuanal base 08 (59 08 59
Tax losses unrecognised 192 336 139 276
27 4 325 221 265

The value of deferred tax assets expected to be recovered after more than 12 months 1s £7 6m 1n the Group {2011 £98m) and £7 7m
in the Society (2011 £12 4m)

Deferred tax balances have been measured taking into account the change in the rate of UK Corporation Tax from 24% to 23%
This change was substantively enacted on 3 July 2012 and will be effective from 1 Apnl 2013

In addition to the changes In rates of Corporation Tax disclosed above, a number of further changes to the UK Corporation Tax system
were announced in the 2013 draft Finance Bill and the March 2013 Budget Statement Further reductions te the main rate are proposed
to reduce the rate to 21% by 1 April 2014 and then to 20% by 1 Apnl 2015 These further changes had not been substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not included in these financial statements Furthermore, the Finance Act 2012 introduced
changes to the taxation of UK life companies, which will take effect from 1 January 2013 These changes have been taken into account
in calculating the deferred tax position of the Society as at 31 December 2012 The impact of these changes has been to reduce the
value of deferred tax assets by £5 1m when compared to the value of these assets had the changes not taken place

The valuation and recoverability of deferred tax assets relating to capital allowances in excess of depreciation, differences on expenses
and gains and tax losses, 1s dependent on the avalability of future taxable profits within the Society and Group Management forecasts
currently suppert the future recoverability of the deferred tax asset recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2012

37. Corporation tax liability

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m
Corporation tax 76 284 - 130

76 284 - 130
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Employee benefits
This section details the costs and commitments assoclated with employing our staff

38. Employee benefits expense

Accounting for staff costs under IAS19
The Society and Group applies IAS 19 Employee benefits in its accounting for staff costs

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, accrued bonuses and social security costs are recognised over the pencod in which the employees provide the services to which
the payments relate

Post retirement benefits
The accounting polictes and significant accounting judgements relating to pension benefits are disclosed within Note 39

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m E£m £m £m
Wages and salanes 181.9 1727 1819 1727
Socal security costs 17 2 161 172 161
Defined benefit and defined contnbution pension costs 173 209 173 209
216 4 20907 216 4 2097

The number of employees during the year, including executive directors, calculated on a monthly average basis, was as follows

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
Number Number Number Number
Member and customer contact 3,782 3,269 3,782 3,269
Administration 1,670 1,513 1,670 1,513
5,452 4,782 5,452 4,782
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39. Pension beneflt asset / (obligation)

Accounting for pension benefits under IAS19

For defined benefit schemes, the net surplus or deficit 1s calculated annually with the assets measured at the farr value at the Statement
of Financial Position date and the habihities discounted at the rate of return available on high quality corporate bonds The net surplus,
to the extent recoverable, or deficit 1s recognised as a pension benefit asset or hability in the Statement of Financial Position

The pension cost for the schemes 15 analysed between current service cost, past service cost and net return on penston scheme assets
Current service cost 1s the actuarnially calculated present value of the benefits earned by the active employees in each penod Past
service costs, relating to employee service In prior penods ansing i the current penod as a result of the introduction of, or improvement
to, retirement benefits, are recogrused in Other operating and administrative expenses on a straight-ine basis over the penod in which
the increases in benefits vest or are earned

All movements other than actuanal gains and losses In respect of the pension benefit obligation are recognised in other operating and
administrative expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income after profit/(loss) before tax and are disclosed net of tax

Contnibutions to defined contribution schemes are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The valuations of the pension benefit obirgations for the two defined benefit schemes are determined using actuaral valuations These
involve makmg assumptions about discount rates, expected future returns on assets, future salary increases, longevity and future
pension increases Due to the long-term nature of these obhgations, the estimates are subject to significant uncertainty

Betails of the principal assumptions used for each of the defined benefit schemes are disclosed within the valuations of the individual
schemes disclosed in sections (1) and (11} below

i} Summary
Pension benefit asset/{obligation)
2012 2011
LV Scheme Ockham Total LV Scheme Ockham Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Asset - - - 1081 - 1081
Obhgation (77 (2.5) {10 2) - {12 12)
{77) (2 5) {10 2) 108 1 (12) 1069
Actuarial net (loss}/galn
2012 2011
LV Scheme Ockham Total LV Scheme Ockham Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Actuarnal net {loss) / gain (138 0) (75) (145 5) 665 39 04
Income tax credit/(expense} - - - . 7 O7)
Amount c.harged to total comprehensive income {138 0) (7 5) {145 5) 66 5 32 697

Cumulative actuarial galn/{loss) recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income 44 0 (07 43 3 1820 68 188 8
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39. Pension benefit asset/(obligation) (continued)

i) LV Scheme

a) Information about the scheme

The Society 1S responsible for the LV= Employee Pension Scheme (LV Scheme}, a defined benefit pensign scheme The scheme closed
to new entrants on 31 December 2009 and on 1 November 2012 1t was announced that the scheme would close to future accrual for
existing members from July 2013 Accordingly allowance has been made for the closure to future accrual within the 31 December 2012
figures with a curtaiiment gain being recognised as a remeasurement event at the year end reporting date

On 6 December 2012 the Trustees of the LV Scheme entered nto a Longevity Swap to mitigate the future mortality risk Further detalls
on this are included within the Business Review section

From 1 January 2011 the rate of increase in deferred pensions changed from beng related to RPI to CPI The impact of this was a
reduction in the calculation of the liabilities

b) Net Statement of Financial Position

2012 2011
£m im
Present value of defined benefit obligation {1,059 0) (942 0)
Fair value of plan assets 1,051.3 10501
Pension benefit (obligation)/asset at the end of the year (77) 1081
2012 2011
The movement In the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows £m £m
Begtnning of year 8420 854 4
Current service cost 220 161
Interest cost 44 4 46 2
Gain on curtallment (13 0) -
Actuariai losses 1043 64 4
Benefits paid {371) {39 2)
Past service cost o1 05
Administrative expenses paid (37} (34)
End of year 1,059 0 942 0
2012 2011
The movement In the fair value of plan assets over the year is as follows £m £m
Beginning of year 1,050 1 8703
Expected return on plan assets 429 47 9
Actuarial {losses)/gains (337) 1309
Employer contnbutions 328 436
Benefits paid (371) (39 2)
Administrative expenses paid (37) (3 4)
End of year 14,0513 10501
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39. Pension beneflt asset/{obligation) {continued)
i} LV Scheme {continued)

2012 2011
¢) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income £m £m
Current service cost 220 191
Interest cost 44 4 46 2
Expected return on assets (42 9) (47 9)
Curtailment gain {13 0}

Past service cost o1 05
Amount charged to income 106 179
Actuanal net loss/(gain) 138 0 {66 5)
Total amount charged/(credited) to comprehensive iIncome 148 6 (48 6)
The actual return on plan assets was £9 2m (2011 £178 8m)

d) Principal assumptions used 2012 2011
Discount rate 41% 4 7%
Rate of salary increase 3 0% 365%
Expected return on plan assets n/a 4 1%
RP! Inflation 30% 29%
CPi Inflation 2 0% 20%
Pension increases for in-payment benefits

- RPI price intlation capped at 5% pa, floor of 3% pa 35% 35%
- RPI price inflation capped at 5% pa 30% 2 9%
- RPI price inflation capped at 2 5% pa 22% 21%
- CPI price inflation capped at 3 0% pa 19% 19%
Pension increases for deferred benefits

« pre 8 Apnl 2009 accrual 20% 20%
- post 6 Aprtl 2009 accrual 20% 2 0%
Scheme member valuation date 31 March 2012 31 March 2009

Mortality for members ts assumed to follow the tables below as at 31 December 2012

Pre-retirement mortahty Deferred pensioners
- Males
- Females

Postretirement mortalty Non-pensioners
- Males

- Females (former employees)

- Females {dependants)

Postretirement mortality current pensioners and dependants
- Males

- Females (former employees)

- Females (dependants)

1NMA x 0 95 tabte
1NFA x O 98 table

LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita

LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita

1NMA x O 95 table
1NFA x 0 98 table

1NMA x O 95 table
1NFA x O 88 table
INFA x 1 12 table

1NMA x 0 85 table
1NFA x O B3 table
1 NFA x 1 02 table

In all cases as at 31 December 2012 CMI Core 2011 projections with a long term trend of 1 25% have been apphed (31 December
2011 medium cohort improvements have been applied from 2002 onwards and from 2009 a minimum annua! rate of improvement of

1 25%pa has been applied)
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!
39. Pension benefit asset/{obligation) {continued)
i1} LV Scheme (continued)
e) Sensitivity analysis Impact on defined benefit obligation of making changes to key assumptions
Change in assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate Increase by 0 25% Decrease by £48 Om (4 6%)
Inflation rate Increase by O 25% Increase by £30 5m {2 9%)
Cash commutation Nil increase by £16 1m (1 5%)
Mortahty improvements long term rate Increase by 0 25% Increase by £14 Om (1 3%)
f) Plan asset information
Plan assets are comprised as follows Allocatlon  Allocation
percentage percentage
2012 2011
Equities 14 5% 11 3%
Debt secunties 73 4% 69 0%
Real estate/ property 8 6% 8 9%
Other 35% 10 8%
Total 100.0% 100 0%
Expected contrnibutions to the scheme for the year ending 31 December 2013 are £20m
g) Historlcal disclosure information 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Asset experlence
Asset (gains)/losses durning year 337 {130 9) {63 9) {304y 1076
Liability experience
Obligation (gans)/losses dunng year 172 32 (14 6) {15 5) -
Funded status
Defined benefit obligation (1,059 0) (942 Q) (854 4) (8139) (667 1)
Fair value of assets 1,051.3 1,0501 8703 7297 6717
Net asset/(obhigation) {(7.7) 108 1 159 {84 2) 46

h} Defined contributlon pension schemes

New employees are eligible to join the defined contnbutton scheme The assets of this scheme are held separately from those of the

Group 1n an independently administered fund The Group’s contnibution under this scheme amounted to £5 8m (2011 £4 2m)

WIS
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Notes to the financial statements continued

31 December 2012

39. Pension benefit asset/(obligation) (continued)
iti) Ockham Penslon Scheme

a) Information about the scheme

The Society 1s responsible for the Ockham Pension Scheme, a defined benefit scheme that 1s closed to new entrants

2012 2011

b} Net Statement of Financial Position £m £m
Present value of defined benefit oblhigation (117 5} (107 0}
Fair value of plan assets 1159 1058
Pension benefit obligation at the end of the year {2 5) {12)
2012 2011

The movement In the defined benefit obligation over the year Is as follows £m £m
Beginning of year 107 0 976
Interest cost 49 52
Actuanal losses 96 48
Benefits paid {4 0) {37)
Past service cost . 31
End of year 117 5 107 0
2012 2011

The movement in the fair value of plan assets over the year is as follows £m £m
Beginning of year 105.8 8838
Expected return on plan assets 40 50
Actuanal gains 21 87
Employer contributions 7.1 70
Benefits paid (4.0) {37)
End of year 115.0 105 8
2012 2011

<} Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income £m £m
Interest cost 4.9 52
Expected return on assets {40) (5 0)
Past service cost - 31
Amount charged to income 09 33
Actuanal net loss/{gain} 75 (39
84 (O 6)

Total amount charged/(credited) to comprehensive income

The actual return on plan assets was £6 1m (2011 £13 7m)
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39. Pension benefit asset/{obligation)} (continued)

i) Ockham Pension Scheme (continued)

d) Principal assumptions used 2012 2011
Discount rate 41% 4 7%
Rate of salary increase 3 00% 3 65%
Expected return on plan assets n/a 37%
Pension increases

- linked to inflation 30% 2 9%
- fixed rate 5 0% 5 0%
Prnice inflation

- RPI 30% 2 9%
- CPI 20% 2 0%

Mortality rate assumptions are based on the same mortality tables as disclosed within the LV Scheme

€) Sensltivity analysis. Impact on defined benefit obligation of making changes to key assumptlons

Change in assumption

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Discount rate

Inflation rate

Cash commutation

Mortality improvements long term rate

f) Plan asset information
Plan assets are compnsed as follows

Increase by O 25%
Increase by 0 25%
Nil

Increase by 0 25%

Decrease by £4 8m {4 1%)
\ncrease by £3 3m (2 8%)
increase by £3 7m {3 2%)
Increase by £1 6m (1 4%)

Allocation Allocation
percentage percentage
2012 2011

Equities
Debt secunties
Derivative swaps

41 2% 8 3%
290% 639%
14 9% 16 8%

Cash 3.6% 4 1%
Property 0 8% 07%
Other 10 5% 6 2%
Total 100 0% 100 0%

Expected contnbutions to the scheme for the year ending 31 December 2013 are £7m

g) Historical disclosure information 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m

Asset experience

Asset gains during year (21) 87) (6 5) {6 2)

Liability experience

Obligation toss during year 29 - 11 37

Funded status
Defined benefit obligation
farr value of assets

(117 5) {107 O} {97 6) (88 6)

1150 105 8 8388 752

Net obligaticn

(25) {12) (88} (134)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

31 December 2012

Provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments

This section describes the provisions, contingent liabilitles and commitments of the Soclety and Group arising from the ongoing life
and general insurance businesses and the exit from the banking and asset management businesses In prior years

40. Provisions

Accounting for provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 1t 15 more likely than
not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated Where the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed 1t 1S recognised as a separate asset when the reimbursement i1s certamn

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the nisks specific to the obhgation

The expense relating to provisions 1s presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Onerous contracts
A provision 1s made for onerous contracts in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation exceed the expected future econemic
benefits

Movement during the year on provisions

Growp Soclety
Buy out PP Other Buy out PPI Other

payments provision provisions Total pay provisl provisl Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 January 2012 386 66 10.3 55.5 386 66 68 520

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income - 150 3.3 18.3 - 150 30 180

Capitalised within goodwill 24 - - 24 24 - - 24

Utilised duning the year - (82) {20) (10 2) - (82) {11) {9 3)

Balance at 31 December 2012 410 134 116 66 ¢ 410 134 87 631
Other provisions relate to

Group Soclety

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

Employer taxes 57 53 57 53

Onerous contracts on property leases 30 18 21 04

Compensation payable on customer complaints 20 19 - -

Other 09 13 9 11

116 103 87 68

The buy out payments provision relates to the acquisition in 2006 by the Society of 95% of LV Insurance Management Limited (then
known as ABC Insurance Solutions Limited) The 2006 contract provides for the Society to purchase the remamning 5% of LV Insurance
Management Limited from its vendors, who include John O'Roarke, for a price based on the market value of the general insurance
business at 31 December 2012 The consideration under this contract 1s being determined but was provisioned on 31 December 2012
at £41m Mr O Roarke has a 22% interest in this hability

The payment protection insurance {PPI) provision 1s held to cover future payments in respect of claims relating to PPl policies potentially
mis-sold to customers Following a review of outstanding PPl claims carned out during the year Lv= increased the provision by £15m

to cover the costs of expected future redress and admimistration At 31 December 2012, following payments made during the year of
£8 2m, the provision was £13 4m Given the assumptions made 1t 1s expected that up to £10m of payments will be set against this
provision dunng 2013, with the remainder of the provision utilised within five years

There are a large number of interdependent assumptions underpinmung the PPl provision When considering the key assumptions
separately, the most significant dnver of the prowvision 1s complaint flow If the level of complaints were 10% higher {lower) than the
estimated level for alt policies, assuming no change in other assumptions, then the provision would have increased (decreased) by
approximately £1 2m

The Group will re-evaluate the assumptions underiying its analysis at each reporting date as more information becomes available
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Notes to the financial statements continued

31 December 2012

41. Contingent liabilities

Accounting for contingent liablilities

Contingent liabillties are disclosed If there Is a possible future obligation as a result of a past event, or if there is a present obligation
as a result of a past event but erither a payment s not probable or the amount cannot be reasonably estimated

The Society has granted a contingent loan facility to the RNPFN fund, a closed fund within the Group, up to a maximurn of £100m,

to be used 1n the event of a shortfall in the capital resources of that fund No drawdown of this facility 15 anticipated The Society has
also granted a capital facility of £20m to the board of Liverpool Victona General Insurance Group Limited to be used in the event ofa
shortfall in the capital solvency

As part of the arrangements whereby the Society transferred responsibility for the management of its investment portfolio to
Threadneedle Asset Management Ltd and Threadneedle Investment Services Ltd (“Threadneedle”}, Liverpool Victoria Portfolio Managers
Ltd (“LVPM") resigned, and Threadneedle was appointed, as the Authonsed Corparate Director (“ACD™) of the LV= Property OEIC
Simultaneous with the change in ACD, the Society provided an indemnity to Threadneedle for any losses incurred by Threadneedle

as a result of any actual or suspected mis-pricing of the LV= Property OEIC by LVPM, including any costs of rectification or investor
compensation No ¢laims have been made under this indemnity

42. Commitments
Accounting for assets held under leases

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements and the risks and rewards are substantially transferred to the Group, such finance
leases are treated as If the assets had been purchased outnght and the corresponding hability to the lessor 1s Included as an obhgation
in trade and other payables Depreciation on leased assets I1s charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight line
basis over the lower of the term of the lease or its estimated useful hfe The caprtal element on finance leases 1s shown in the property
and equipment note

Lease payments are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements and the interest 1s charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

All other leases are operating leases and the costs In respect of operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease
term The value of any lease incentive received to take on an operating lease (for example, rent free periods} s recognised as deferred
income and 1S released over the life of the lease

a) Capital commitments Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m

Authonsed and contracted commitments payable after
31 December not provided for in respect of

- property investments 07 14 07 14
— other financia! investments 352 495 352 495
— property and equipment - 09 - 09

359 518 359 518
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Notes to the financial statements continued

31 December 2012

42. Commitments (continued)

b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various properties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal nghts The future aggregate mmimum lease payments net of income under noncancellable operating leases
are as foliows

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m Im £m £m
Within one year 6.7 67 48 50
Between one and five years 194 196 14 3 138
Qver five years 33 57 21 33
294 320 21.2 221

The Group has entered into commercial subleases for some of 1ts properties that are unoccupied These leases have varying terms
and escalation clauses Where these subleases are insufficient to cover the Group’s operating lease agreements an onerous contract
provision for unused premises Is set up The future aggregate minimum sublease payments expected to be recenved under operating
subleases 15 as follows

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m Em
Within one year 10 o4 07 01
Between one and five years 26 07 23 -
36 11 3.0 01

¢) Flnance lease commitments

It1s the Group's policy to lease certain of its properties under finance leases The average lease term 1s 99 years Interest rates are
fixed at the contract rate All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent
payments The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets

Group
2012 2011
£m £m
Gross finance lease habilities - minimum lease payments
Within one year 11 11
Between one and five years 48 47
Over five years 88 2 890 4
941 95 2
future finance charges on finance leases {891) {90 1)
Present vatue of financial lease habiliues 5.0 51
Group
2012 2011
£m £m
The present value of finance lease habilities 1s as follows
Within one year 02 02
Between one and five years 07 o7
Dver five years 41 42
50 51

d) Other financial commitments

The Group has entered into several long-term contracts following service outsourcing These contracts will end no iater than 2018 An
option to withdraw from some of these commitments in 2013 is available The present value of the remaining comnutment 1S estimated
at £89 5m (2011 £89 1m) for the Group and the Society These amounts have not been provided for in the financial statements
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Scope of consolidation

This section presents information on the Group's investments in subsidiarles, Joint ventures, assocliates and open ended Investment
companles (OEICs).

Detail 15 alse given of the unallocated dvisible surplus of the Society and Group
43. Subsidiary undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Society at 31 December 2012 are shown below

The Group and all principal undertakings are incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales All hotdings are in relation to
ordinary shares

The registered office 15 County Gates, Bournemouth BH1 2NF

Name Principal Activity Percentage Held
Subsidiaries

Fnzzell Financial Services Limited Property management 100 0%
Highway Insurance Company Limited * General insurance 100 0%
Highway Insurance Group Ltd * {Note 1) General insurance holding company 100 0%
Liverpoo! Victona Financial Advice Services Limited (Note 1) Financial advice services 100 0%
Liverpool Victona General Insurance Group Limited * General insurance holding company 100 0%
Liverpool Victona Insurance Company Limited * General insurance 100 0%
Liverpool Victoria Life Company Limited Life insurance 100 0%
Liverpool Victoria Portfolic Managers Limited Investment management 100 0%
LV Capital PLC Holding company 100 0%
LV Equity Release Limited Equity release fetime mortgages 100 0%
LV Insurance Management Limited * (Note 1) Management services 95 0%
LV Life Services Limited {Note 1) Management services 100 0%
NM Pensions Trustees Limited {(Note 1) Self invested personal pension (SIPP} administrator 100 0%

* Owned by a subsidiary undertaking of the Society

Note 1 - The financial statements of these subsidiary undertakings have not been audited for the year ended 31 December 2012 These
subsidiary undertakings are exempt from the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of indwvidual accounts by
virtug of Section 479 of the Companies Act 2006 The following other subsidraries are also taking advantage of this exemption from the
audit requirement LV Protection Limited, Liverpool Victona Asset Management Limited, Ayresbrook Limited, NLC Name No 2 Limited, NLC
Name No 7 Limited and Liverpool Victornia Banking Services Limited

All the principal subsidianes have the same year end as the Scociety and all have been included in the consolidation

44. Associates and joint ventures

The associates and joint ventures of the Society at 31 December 2012 are shown below
They are incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales

Name Class of shares Year end Principal actlvity Percentage held

Joint ventures
Great Victona Partnership * 31/03/2012 Investment property 50 0%

* The percentage held represents the share of the partnership capital and partner leans held by Liverpool Victona Fnendly Society as at
31 December 2012
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Notes to the financial statements continved

31 December 2012

45, Open ended investment companies

The Open ended investment companies (OEICs) of the Society and Group at 31 December 2012 are shown below

All OEICs are incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales

Name ' Principal Activity Year end Percentage of Units Held”
Threadneedle Investment Funds 1) ICVC Open Ended Investment Company 31/12/2012 96 21%
which consists of

Threadneedle European ex-UK Growth Fund 97 16%
Threadneedle Japan Growth Fund 100 00%
Threadneedle Pacific ex-Japan Growth Fund 100 00%
Threadneedle UK Equity income Fund 92 31%
Threadneedie US Equity Income Fund 99 99%
Threadneedle UK Growth Fund 93 11%
Threadneedle Investment Funds Il ICVC Open Ended Investment Company 31/12/2012 72 03%
which consists of

Threadneedie UK Corporate Bond Fund 95 61%
Threadneedle UK Fixed interest Fund 99 70%
Threadneedle UK Index Linked Fund 96 01%
Threadneedle UK Money Market Fund 99 52%
Threadneedle Balanced Managed Fund 96 11%
Threadneedle Medium Long Corporate Bond Fund 40 47%
Threadneedle Short-Dated Corporate Bond 88 74%
Threadneedle Worldwide Select Fund 69 58%
Threadneedle Investment Funds IV ICVC Open Ended {nvestment Company 31/03/2012 83 34%
which consists of

Threadneedle Diversified Income Fund 40 10%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 3 79 28%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 4 84 51%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 5 85 43%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 6 89 50%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 7 86 21%
Threadneedie UK Property Fund Il iICVC Open Ended Investment Company 31/12/2012 31 41%
which consists of

Threadneedle UK Property Fund 31 41%

in December 2012 1t was announced that the Threadneedle UK Property Fund Il ICVC was to close Threadneedle have conseguently
obtained permission from the Financial Services Authority to close the Company and have commenced the winding up process, which 1s

expected to he completed in 2013

* excludes units held by the LV= Employee Pension Scheme
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46. Unallocated divisible surplus

Accounting for the Unallocated divisible surplus

The Unallocated divisible surplus represents the excess of assets over and abave the long-term Insurance contract habilities and other
labihties It represents amounts that have yet to be formally declared as bonuses for the participating contract policyholders together
with the free assets of the Society and Group Any profit or loss for the year ansing through the Statement of Comprehensive Income
(for the Socrety and for the Group) is transferred to or from the Unallocated divisible surplus

UK regulations, the Group’s Principles and Practices of Financial Management, and the terms and conditions of participating contracts
set out the bases for the determination of the amounts on which the participating additional discretionary contract benefits are based
and within which the Group may exercise its discretion as to the guantum and timing of thewr payment to contract holders

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 958 4 966 4 10551 10786
'Transfer 1o the Statement of Comprehensive Income (97 5) (80) {176 5) {23 5)
Balance at 31 December 860 9 958 4 B786 10551

Cumulative goodwill of £199 8m in the Group {(£62 2m in the Society) ansing on acquisitions prior to 1998 has been eliminated aganst
the Unallocated divisible surplus This goodwill would be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income should there be a
subsequent disposal of the business to which 1t relates
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Other disclosures

This sectlon details other disclosure matters, comprising. related party transactions, directors’ emoluments, with-profit actuary
detalls and other relevant Society Information.

47. Related party transactions

The Group and Society enter into transactions with key management personnel in the normal course of business All transactions
between group companies took place in accordance with relevant agreements Details of significant transactions carned out dunng the
year with related parties are as follows

a) Sales of insurance contracts and other services

The Group has related party transactions with the V= Employee Pension Scheme Until 31 October 2011 the Society provided fund
management and administration services to the Scheme

In 2012 and 2011 the following amounts were charged to the Pension Scheme for the following services

Fund Management Administration
Services Services Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Liverpool Victona Friendly Society Limited - - - 24 - 24
Liverpcol Victona Asset Management Limited - 11 - - - 11

As at 31 December 2012 the LV= Employee Pension Scheme owed the Society £nil in respect of administration services (2011 £1 8my

b) Other related parties disclosure
As disclosed in Note 41, the Society has granted a contingent loan facility to the RNPFN fund, a closed fund within the Group, which 1s
disclosed in contingent habilities

¢) Key management compensation

Key management personnel of the Group comprise all executive and non-executive directors and senior management The summary of
the compensation of key management personnel for the year 1s as follows

Group
2012 2011
£'000 £000
Short-term employment benefits 6,139 6,740
Other long-term benefits 2,865 2,746
Post-employment benefits 216 440
Termination benefits - 240
Total compensation of key management personnel 9,220 10,166

The Society makes contributions to the LV= Employee Pension Scheme of an average of 17 8% of pensionable salarnes (2011 17 1% of
pensicnable salanes), subject to annual allowance limits, in respect of all permanent staff, including executive directors

Included within key management personnel are all the vendors of ABC Insurance Seolutions Limited who, as part of the acquisition in
20086, entered into a contract with the Society Further detalls are disclosed within Note 40

The aggregate premiums payable for the year by the Group Executive and Non-Executive Directors in respect of the Group’s products was
£57,827 (2011 £58,756)
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'. Related party transactions {(continued)
The following transactions have taken place between the Soclety and other group companies

2012 2011

£m £m

inagement charge by the Society 1911 186 8
estment management charge to the Society - {7 9)
msurance ceded by the Society - ctaims recovenes - 47 g
insurance ceded bty the Society - premiums paid - (319)
ferred margin {included 1n other financial habilities) 101 56
neficial interest of subsidiary In lcans sold to the Society 2256 S04
ragroup loans - net interest receved by the Society 58 38

llances outstanding between the Society and other Group companies

2012 2011

£m £m
iyable by the Society {(528) (433)
874 108 6

aceivable by the Society

»ans owed to the Society 351.7 396 6

P Loans to related parties

Jans owed to the Society represent a subordinated loan of £mi (2011 £183m} to Liverpool Victonia General Insurance Group Limited,
ecured loans of £51 7m (2011 £51 4m) to Liverpool Victona Equity Release Limited and two new loans of £13Cm (unsecured
ubordinated lgan} and £170m {unsecured senior [oan note) to LV Capital PLC 1ssued on 21 December 2012 All these loans are
1sclosed withen loan stock in Note 29

1 addition the Society has a loan of £nil (2011 £162 2m} to Liverpool Victona Equity Release Limited designated at farr value through
wome disclesed In Note 15 This loan was repaid in December 2012 as part of the loan restructure with the Society

1 March 2013 the remaining loan halance of £51 7m to Liverpool Victona Equity Release Limited was repaid

he subordinated loan to Liverpool Victorna General Insurance Group Limited bore interest at 1% above UK six menth LIBOR and was of a
nedium to long-term nature, this loan was repaid n full In December 2012

he terms of the loans to LV Capital PLC are

1} A £130m unsecured subordinated loan note repayable in 2015 with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 8 5%

1y A £170m unsecured senior loan note repayable 1in 2047 with an interest rate of 9%

V Capital may, subject to one month’s notice and obtaining wnitten agreement of the Society repay all or part of these loans
In addition to the loan notes disclosed above a £300m Ioan note was 1ssued to LV Capital PLC by the Society on 10 December 2012 and

subsequently cancelled on 21 December 2012

The loans to Liverpoel Victernia Equity Release Limited have fixed interest and repayment terms established at the outset of each
advance

On 30 November 2011 the Cnitical lliness and Income Protection reinsurance agreement between the Society and Liverpool Victona Life
Company Limited was terminated Assets totaling £34 4m were transferred to the Society in settlement of £31 8m of insurance contract
liabihties less the value of the estimated future profits for the business stream A loss of £0 7m was recorded in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income as a result of this transfer

48, With-Profits Actuary

The following information has been provided in accordance with section 77 of the Fnendly Societies Act 1992

a) The With-Profits Actuary of the Society until 16 February 2012 was Mr P M Downey, who 1s employed by Liverpoo! Victona Fniendly
Society The total emoluments of Mr Downey during this penod on a pro rata basis were £23,604 (2011 £175,312) including car
allowance and medical benefits Mr Downey 1s a partcipant in the Society’s long term incentive plan and holds one insurance policy
1ssued on normal staff terms by a subsidhary of the Society

b} On 16 February 2012, Mr N | Dumbreck took over as the Society’s With-Profits Actuary from Mr P M Downey Mr Dumbreck ts a
Principal with the London office of Milliman LLP, an external consultancy firm The Society paid fees of £388,491, inclusive of VAT and
expenses, to Milllman LLP dunng 2012 in respect of Mr Dumbreck’s professional services It also paid fees of £54,000, inclusive of
VAT and expenses, to Miliman LLP dunng 2012 in respect of services unrelated to Mr Dumbreck's role as With-Profits Actuary

¢} Mr Dumbreck held four insurance policies 1ssued on standard terms by one of the Society’s subsidianies He had no other pecuniary
interest in any transactions with the Society at any time dunng the year
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49. Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amount of directors’ emoluments was as follows

2012 2011
a) Aggregate emoluments including penslon contributions and LTIPs £m £n
Aggregate emoluments 63 4€
b) Emoluments of individual directors, Including emoluments of the Chairman and highest paid director were as follows
for the Society.
Annual remuneration £ 000 Total remuneration £ 000
Detorred Other Total Total LTIP Total Tote
Satary Bonus bonus benefits 2012 2011 201612 2012 201
M J Rogers 505 427 132 127 1,191 1,131 1,431 2622 2,17
PW Moore 346 208 52 55 661 609 732 1,393 60¢
R A Rowney 306 240 - 51 597 568 585 1,182 94
J B O'Roarke (appointed 23 November 2011) 281 220 - 45 546 54 - 546 314
D Hoit 153 - - - 153 150 n/a 153 15(
M E Austen 72 - - - 72 68 n/a 72 6§
J Edwards 62 - - - 62 58 n/a 62 5¢
C Keers 61 - - - 61 57 n/a 61 57
D | W Reynolds (resigned 31 October 2012) 60 - - - 60 64 n/a 60 64
C Burton {appointed 9 November 2011} 56 - - - 56 15 n/a 56 15
J Dean (apponted 26 July 2012) 22 - - - 22 - n/a 22 -
G Nott (resigned 26 May 2011) - - - - - 28 n/a - 28
Total 1,924 1,095 184 278 3,481 2,802 2,748 6,229 4,483

Deferred bonus represents the amount of the 2012 performance bonus payable over the next three years Further detalls are disclosed

within the Directors Remuneration Report

Other benefits include cash allowance in ieu of pension, car allowances, medical, retocation, life assurance and other henefits in kind or

their equivalent monetary value

c¢) Penslon arrangements

R A Rowney and J B O'Roarke are members of the LV= Employee Pension Scheme, which 1s a defined benefit scheme PW Moore left

the defined contribution scheme during the year

The directors’ emoluments table above excludes the Society contributions to defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes

The Society makes contributions to the LV= Employee Pension Scheme of an average of 17 8% of pensionable saiaries (2011 17 1% of
pensionable salanes), subject to annual allowance fimits, in respect of all permanent staff This included amounts on behalf of executive

directors of £0 1m (2011 £0 1m)

The Society has made no contributions to personal pension arrangements dunng 2012 (2011 £nil)

There were £8,500 of contnbutions to defined contribution pension schemes i 2012 (2011 £42,542)

2012 2011
Accrued pension at end of penod £'000 £ 000
R A Rowney 27 23
J B O Roarke 30 26
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50. Cash generated from operating actlvities
Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated Restated
£m £m £m £m
Profit /(loss) before tax and mutual bonus 103 2 {16 9) 33 47 7)
Investment income (320 2) (261 4) (3370) (2849)
Net gains on investments (374 7) (425 4) (304 1) (407 3)
Finance costs 05 05 - -
Net decrease/(Increase) In denvatives 923 (12 7) 1001 (14 1)
Non-cash items
Expenses deferred dunng the year (54) 441 - .
Amortisation of intangible assets 120 130 46 46
Depreciation on property and equipment 34 26 08 08
Loss on disposal of property and egquipment 04 - 04 01
Increase in capitahised goodwill {2.9) (53) (24) (S 3)
Decrease in provisions and pension obligation (17.9) {25 5) (17 3) (16 B)
Imparrment wnite-offs 1n subsidiaries - - 200 344
Mutuai bonus (20 9) (18 6) {20 9) {18 6)
Changes in working capital
Decrease/{Iincrease) in loans and recevables 130 {36 8) 263 (77 B}
Increase In reinsurance assets (110 3) {123 3) (74 4) (7 0)
(Increase)/decrease 1n Insurance receivables (10 8) (23 3) (2 4) 47
Increase in other prepayments and accrued income (77) (12) {17 {18)
Increase in insurance contract habilities 9094 1,1319 6571 8213
Increase in investment contract habdities 158 4 597 158 4 587
Increase in borrowings - - - 56
{Decrease)/increase in other financial habilities 17 553 87 559
Increase/(decrease) In insurance payables 31 90 {5 4) 79
{Decrease)/increase m trade and other payables (11.9) 487 {11 6) 264
4118 414 4 272.5 1405

Cash generated from operating actlvities

51. Valuation

The latest published report on the valuation of Assets and Liabilities of the Society (the Annual FSA Insurance Return) was made at
31 December 2012 and i1s available on request from the Group Company Secretary, County Gates, Bournemouth, BH1 2NF and LV com

52. Society information

Liverpool Victoria Friendly Society 1s a UK-incorporated and domiciled Frnendly Society registered under the Fnendly Societies Act 1992

V= and Liverpool Victona are trademarks of Liverpoo! Victona Friendly Society Limited LV= and LV= Liverpoo! Victonia are trading styles
of the Liverpool Victona group of companies Liverpool Victona i1s authonsed and regulated by the Financial Services Authonty and 1s a

member of the ABI, AFS and ILAG

Registered office

County Gates
Bournemouth

BH1 2NF

Telephone 01202 292333
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